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Financial Highlights Bi i =

FINANCIAL SUMMARY BEEE
2014 2015 2016
—Z—mF —T—RF —E-RE
(RMB million) (RMB million)  (RMB million)
(AR®BET) (AR%®BEET) (AR¥EER)
Revenue A 28,495 21,072 26,427
Gross Profit EH 1,368 357 2,674
EBITDA' HIBRFTSH - BT -
WEREHEAEF 1,721 1,151 3,022
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRATISRIATEFI(B518) 245 (890) 1,055
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERF/ (BE) 66 (936) 531
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of AABEZFHEE
the Company FEIEEF, (E18) 67 (767) 722
Basic earnings/(losses) per Share (RMB)  FAXEAWE /(E18)
(ARETT) 0.02 (0.26) 0.25
Net Assets HEER 9,772 8,912 9,365
Total Assets BEE 23,743 22,364 21,049
Net Assets value per Share BRFEEBE(FRRIEE
(excluding non-controlling interests) B )
(RMB) (AR#T) 3.16 2.90 3.16
1 The Company defines EBITDA as profit for the year before finance 1 NATIE EBITDAME ZE BRI &%

costs-net, income tax expense, amortisation of intangible assets,
amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights, depreciation
and non-recurring items. Non-recurring items for the year ended 31
December 2016 included RMB 810 million (2015: RMB 521 million)
as impairment of property, plant and equipment.

A FIEHER  BEREESH A
&M N A b R B - PTE R IERE
BEREMNBRAZEFE &N - REZE=
T-XE+-_/F=+—HItFERXN Ik
KEELENBERIEARBKSI0ET
(ZZ2—FF : ARES21ETIEED
¥ BMEREEZRE-

Revenue Profit/(Loss) Attributable to owners of the Company
WA AATERFEEEGER(BR)
RMB million RMB million
AREBEET AREBET
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Financial Highlights Bi &=

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT/ BITEENHSEREWMTYHEERE
(LOSS) PER TONNE OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL HEER ()
PRODUCTS
2014 2015 2016
—F-mF ZT-HF  ZB-AF
(RVB) (RVB) (RMB)

(AR¥7T) (AR¥%7T) (AR®T)

Average Selling Price per Tonne ST HEEE 2,657 1,918 2,057
Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne BHEER, (EE)
H-section steel products H Y 8 2 S 174 64 258
Strips and strip products A & A SR E S 167 50 319
Billets R 10 (135) 49
Cold rolled sheets and RELIR R 3 AR
galvanised sheets (124) (196) 205
Rebar Y2450 5l 65 41 127
Sheet piling iR 7 180 182 321
Combined RE 131 33 233
Average Selling Price per Tonne Gross Profit per Tonne
BV HEERE BHER
RMB RMB
AR® T AR® T
4,000 300
233
3,000
2,657
200
1,918 207
2,000 - .
100
1,000
33
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
—T—mE —ZE-hF —T—RF —T-mFE —T-HF —T—REF
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Financial Highlights Bi i =

SALES VOLUME OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL BITEENHEE RIREREEE s 2
PRODUCTS CLASSIFIED BY PRODUCTS HEE
2014 2015 2016
—T-mFE —E-hF —E-XRE
('000 tonnes) (‘000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
(Fmg) (Fma) (Fmg)
H-section steel products H AU $ 72 & 3,062 3,278 3,247
Strips and strip products A5 i) K A5 AR 2 4,025 3,952 4,381
Billets SR 668 638 1,526
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR I 8 SR
galvanised sheets 503 398 291
Rebar SR 1,074 1,545 1,712
Sheet piling iR 5 39 119 200
Total &t 9,371 9,930 11,357

Sales Volume of Self-manufactured Steel Products

BITEENHEERNHER
5.4% 11.5% 4.0% 15.6% 2.6% 15.1%

SN - 0.4% 6a% 13.4%
'-\/ v 1.2% ? 17

) e

32.7%

201 4 201 5 33.0% 28.6%
—E—-F —E-—FE

42.9% 39.8% 38.6%

. H-section steel products H A §ff] Z @ . Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /% L1 & % $ 1
. Strips and strip products #5 80 K %5 30 48 & & . Rebar 12 40 5H
I sillets 3845 Sheet piling $0#7 15
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Corporate Information 2 5& %!

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun
(Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li
(appointed as the Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial
Officer on 8 December 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 2016)

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing

(appointed on 15 July 2016)
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Corporate Information 2 F& %!

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing

(appointed on 15 July 2016)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Lam Pak Kan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Pak Kan

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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Corporate Information 2 5& %!

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

LIST OF PRINCIPAL BANKERS (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDERS)
ABN AMRO

Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of Cangzhou

Bank of Communications
Bank of Hebei

China Construction Bank
Nanyang Commercial Bank
Bank of Chengde

Ping An Bank

Rabobank

ERETELEME
BEET

B EE 23 55
[BEHLIEII-2X10E

BREFERMDBFELE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
BHOBFEEEEED KR
FEEHFBLARAT

B BEm
RERBUKEE IR

AGIE

www.chinaorientalgroup.com
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Chairman’s Statement = E#H%

In 2017, the Group will continue to develop its

business towards the direction of largest section

steel production base in the world.

REZB—+F  AEENEBGEEREZ RS
REPRPEEEB S ORE -

REVIEW OF YEAR 2016

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2016, it was a year full of challenges and opportunities for the PRC
steel industry. The industry has been gradually recovered from the
recession in 2015. Under the backdrop of Chinese government’s
“Supply-Side-Reform” Policy and reduction of overcapacity in the
steel industry, solid achievement was crystallised and the supply
and demand in the steel industry gradually improved. While the
stock level of steel industry remained low, the implementation of
the “Supply-Side-Reform” Policy and the positive sales in the real
estate section have resulted in substantial increase in the activation
of construction projects, resulting in structural reform in the steel
industry and continuous increase in steel prices.

With this background, the Group continued to strive for improvement
and optimisation in production cost, environment protection and
product mix, thereby enhancing the profit margin and sustainability
of the operation. In this regard, the Group achieved a very substantial
improvement of its results, with a revenue of approximately RMB
26.4 billion for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing
an increase of approximately 25.4% as compared with last
year. Comparing with last year, the average selling price of self-
manufactured steel products increased by approximately 7.2% to
RMB 2,057 per tonne, the gross profit increased by approximately
707.9% to RMB 2.65 billion. Although there was a provision
for impairment of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB 810 million primarily arising from shut-down
or future shut-down of certain production line under the policy of

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement = F#H &

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

resolving steel excess capacity of the Chinese government, profit of
the Group for the year 2016 still reached approximately RMB 531
million, representing an increase of approximately 156.7% over loss
for last year of RMB 936 million, which is the highest since 2011.
EBITDA of the Group, adjusted for non-recurring items, also further
improved from RMB 1.151 billion last year to RMB 3.022 billion.
EBITDA per share, adjusted for non-recurring items, increased to
RMB 1.03 per share (2015: RMB 0.39 per share). In addition, the
Group has been working to reduce debt and redeemed all of the
2017 Senior Notes in advance in year 2016. The debt-to-capital ratio
further improved from 45.4% last year to 25.8%.

RERIE )

ARESIETL REFARK36
BITHE B NL156.7% » T E —F
——FRUARES®F - NEEMHK
FTBF - BIRS/FACAN ~ T R 5 AR
FEABIELEMEER) R EFR
HMWARB 11 ETE—FTHREEAR
¥ 30.22 87T + BIRIOBRATISEE - BAESF
AR~ TE RS R (K ARIELEE
MIEER)EESRARE1.03T(=ZZF
—hE: BRARK0.397T) LI 1B
EREB-—ERNEREE  TERZ
T NEFRFELOEZFI T —LFEL
i EHEHEEANLRYEEFHA5.4%iE
—SWEE258% °
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Chairman’s Statement = E#H%

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the steel business, the Group continued to invest
substantially to and endeavored to enhance the competitiveness and
economic efficiency of its products. These efforts include improving
production facilities to enhance efficiency, expanding sales channels,
developing diverse and high-end products, increasing the share
of products with high additional value and reducing emission.
Apart from developing and optimising the new categories of the
existing products, such as strips and section steel, the Group has
also developed products to suit for other countries such as the
American standards, the British standards, the Korean standards the
Indonesian standards, etc., the coverage of the American standards
and the British standards have been above 85% or more, so as to
facilitate the penetration into international markets. During the year,
through leasing of a production line, the production capacity of
2016 increased by 1 million tonnes to 12 million tonnes. The Group
has also been investing in its production facilities in order to reduce
energy consumption in the steel production process and satisfy
emission requirements. The self-generated electricity ratio of the
Group increased to approximately 60% in 2016 from approximately
50% in 2015.

As at the end of October 2016, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group
Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda Iron and
Steel”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, completed
the shutdown of one 500 cubic meter blast furnace and one 60
tonnes converter furnace in accordance with an agreement with the
government of Tangshan City (the “Shutdown”) by the Group, which
reduced approximately 600,000 tonnes of steel production capacity.
It is expected that a further reduction of approximately 600,000
tonnes will be implemented in 2017 to satisfy assignment of capacity
reduction. Following the relevant reduction, the annual capacity
of the Group will become approximately 11 million tonnes. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group sold approximately
3.2 million tonnes of self-produced H-section steel products and
continued to secure its leading position in the H-section steel market
of Mainland China.

RERIT )

HMBEEBM S - AEEFERBAE
BRTBARBERNRE I REE
Mies  BLEBENREEERBUIESH
B MEHEEE  HEZTkem
Em - MM INEE R D% KR EEE
e BRAZERBICTHRBERNFEE
AN Bl an A S AN AL SN & - AR B IR R B
FELBESEMBERMER  WEEZ -
HiZ - BERHEESE  E12 - BmEE
HIREBEXRD BB AL B8
REBETS RERN - BRAE—KE
Ef —T—RFELEINI00EMES
1,200 BN - REBETTEIRMERERLE
e E o URIEEAEREBERN
BERHEREMFAREETE - AEENE
BEHHEH T —RHENHS0%EFH
EZT—RFERNHI60% °

RZZE-—ARETAR AEENIFZE
FX B AL R T S IEE S A IR
NE([EZEME S RAEBEEEF LT
T 8 15 7 45 2R - SERK A 12 — FE 50032
FAREIER —FEOMEEE([ZHE])
BHHeoBmEHAERE - Bt _F—t
F AR L8R T 840 60 8 WA 2 AL (F 2
SERERRERE TR - ERBERH®E - &
BHFERLR1,1008H - REE_Z
—ANETZA=+—HLEFER A&
BHHERTTEENHEMEML 3208
MR AEERIEPEHA M TSR REE
E o
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Chairman’s Statement = F#H &

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the real estate business, the Group was dedicated
in promoting green structural development construction besides
developing traditional real estate projects. The sales of the Donghu
Bay project in Tangshan City, residential and basement projects
and commercial and office projects of Xintiandi and the Meishu
Hall project in Suzhou continued in 2016, facilitated the stable
development of the real estate business of the Group and brought
sustainable income. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group recorded revenue and operating loss from real estate
business of approximately RMB 212 million and RMB 18 million
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue and gross
loss arising from trading of steel products and iron ore of the Group
were approximately RMB 2.21 billion (2015: approximately RMB
1.36 billion) and approximately RMB 20 million (2015: approximately
RMB 42 million) respectively.

The Group also engages in financing industry through its
subsidiaries, Oriental Fullhero Leasing Co. Ltd. (“Fullhero
Leasing”), Oriental Evertrust Finance Leasing Co. Ltd. (“Oriental
Evertrust”), Tianjin Oriental Huitong Microcredit Co. Ltd. (“Oriental
Huitong”) and Beijing Jinxi Investment Holding Co. Ltd. (“Beijing
Jinxi Investment”). The Group will conduct post-loan inspection
to each existing project in order to reduce risks. As at 31
December 2016, Fullhero Leasing, Oriental Evertrust, Oriental
Huitong and Beijing Jinxi Investment provided loans, net of
provision, amounting to RMB 401 million to independent
third parties at interest rates ranged from 12.0%
10 24.0% per annum.

RERIT )

MEWEERME  A5BERBEEESR
HEBBIN  NBAOEDFEREEER
BREREZ - VRABILTHERBEES -
BN A2 EERMTEER &
¥XMPAEBEAREEEEARE
—NFFERNEEHE  EASEREH
EEXEBHBTERLTEREFERA - &
E-ET-XNFt+-A=t+—BHILtFE"
REBHRESEMEEFRAREEEE
DRAIARE2 12EBITEARE1,8008
5 o

BHE-_ZT— X"+ -_A=+—HIt#F
E AEENNEERLEBROES T
REWAFIEED B A ARE221E
TT(ZZE—AF  HARE13.61BIT) KLY
AREE20008T(ZE—RF  HARE
420087T) °

AEENEBENBRAR  RAHKEMA
EERAR(HEHEE]) RAGER
BHERBRARRAFER] - KER
HEBNBEERERAA(TEGER])
FAE TR EERER AR ([ E
FARED2EBEXER  ~AEBEHE
EMERMEBEHETERBRETEN
BIERR - N—ZT—ARF+-_A=1+—
H REHE RAOEER RAEBR
EFRERERBYME=ZFREA L
AREAOIEBITHNER(IGREE)  F
FZENF12.0% Z 24.0% ©
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

In order to diversify its business, the Group has also set up
Oriental Jingyuan Science Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd. (“Oriental
Jingyuan”) and related subsidiaries to develop core technologies
for semiconductor chip design and manufacturing process
optimisation/equipment. The Group would continue to explore the
development potential of this project.

Trading in the shares of the Company (“Shares”) had been
suspended from 29 April 2014 due to insufficient public float. The
public float was restored on 27 January 2017 through placing of
new shares under general mandate by the Company and placing of
existing shares by the controlling shareholder of the Company and
trading was resumed on 1 February 2017.

Finally, under the excellent results of current year and thank you for
shareholders’ continuous support to the Group, the Board proposed
the distribution of a special dividends in addition to a final dividends.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products

Sales Volume

In 2016, the total sales volume was 11,357,000 tonnes (2015:
9,980,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately

14.4%.

The sales volume breakdown during the year was as follows:

H-section steel products

Strips and strip products

Billets

Cold rolled sheets and
galvanised sheets

Rebar

Sheet piling

Total

HELEIE T
N R E R
RERBEFR

R

At

EFE eI
HEBTEENNEER 2 HEDT
HES

—E - FHRIHES/11,357,00088(=

T —H4:9,930,0000F) - $EHNHI14.4% °

REBFEHEEHMAMMT ¢

2016 2015

ZE-RE “E-nF Changes in
Sales volume Sales volume Sales volume
HEE HEE HEEE(L
Increase/

('000 tonnes) (000 tonnes) (Decrease)
() (Fm8) /(i)
3,247 28.6% 3,278 33.0% (0.9%)
4,381 38.6% 3,952 39.8% 10.9%
1,526 13.4% 638 6.4% 139.2%
291 2.6% 398 4.0% (26.9%)
1,712 15.1% 1,545 15.6% 10.8%
200 1.7% 119 1.2% 68.1%
11,357 100% 9,930 100% 14.4%

RZZ—AFFEAN AEBNFER

During the year of 2016, the Group’s production capacity was
approximately 12 million tonnes per annum.

#71,200 & o
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E4 {16

HEBTAEENMBER ZHES @)

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products

(continued)

Revenue WA

Revenue in 2016 was RMB 23,367 million (2015: RMB 19,046 ZE—RFRABARK233.67EL(Z

million), representing an increase of approximately 22.7%. FE—RF : AR®EA190.461E7T) 104
22.7% °

FREMNFEEPA N FIHEEE(T

The sales breakdown and average selling price by product (excluding

value added tax) during the year were as follows: SIRER )T ¢
2016 2015 Changes
ZB-RF —E-hfF -4ld
Average Average Average
selling selling selling
Revenue price Revenue price Revenue price
KA HEEE WA HEEE WA HEEBE
(RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (RMB million) (RMB/tonne) Increase/(Decrease)
(\RBEER) (AR%T/H) (AREEER) (ARET/B) 2y VAV
H-section steel products HESHE M@ 7,121 2,193 6,534 1,094 9.0% 10.0%
Strips and strip products il R R E 8,735 1,994 6,896 1,745 26.7% 14.3%
Billets ST 2,785 1,826 1,121 1,757 148.4% 3.9%
Cold rolled sheets and RER R IE TR
galvanised shests 929 3,189 1,127 2,826 (17.6%) 12.8%
Rebar BAH 3,231 1,887 3,035 1,965 6.5% (4.0%)
Sheet piling R 566 2,834 333 2,794 70.0% 1.4%
Total/combined At/ fRa 23,367 2,057 19,046 1,918 22.7% 7.2%

BITAEMNHEERKRAENEEZESHR
AEEEMTHHEEEEHR_T—1F
THEARE1,918TTBMN7.2%E T —R
FEWARK 2,057 TRAKEERHE
the Group’s products by 14.4% to approximately 11.4 million tonnes BT —AFH00BMEEN14.4% E =
in 2016 from approximately 9.9 million tonnes in 2015. The increase T—RELH1,1408 0 - REBERTFY
HEBEEREEENEZRN T BIHE
TEAEZT-—REREEEAFNER
TR RS AT

The increase in revenue from self-manufactured steel products
was primarily due to the increase in the average selling price of the
Group’s products by 7.2% to RMB 2,057 per tonne in 2016 from
RMB 1,918 per tonne in 2015 and an increase in the sale volume of

in average selling price and sales volume of the Group’s products
were mainly due to the improved supply and demand in the PRC
steel industry under the reduction of overcapacity during 2016.

14 China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]



Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ES - (E))

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products HEATTAEENNBEBERZIEES T &)
(continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit HEKARETF]

The consolidated gross profit in 2016 was RMB 2,650 million ZE-RENEHENBARK 265018
(2015: RMB 328 million), representing an increase of approximately T(ZE—RFE: ARKEI28ET) » 1#240
707.9%. #41707.9% °

Average unit cost per tonne, gross profit per tonne and gross profit NEBEETMEHKANEE - GHEE

margin during the year were as follows: FEEMZRIDT
2016 2015
“E-RE “ZT-hF
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Average profit profit Average  profit/loss)  profit/(loss)
unitcost  per tonne margin unit cost per tonne margin
¥ 5 BHBEF/ 5/
HAEE  BWER ERE HAEE €23 (EB)%
(RMB/tonne) (RMB) (RMB/tonne) (RMB)
(A\R¥7/®) (AR%7®) (\R&7/®)  (ARET)
H-section steel products HA S m 1,935 258 11.8% 1,930 64 3.2%
Strips and strip products il LA ER 1,675 319 16.0% 1,695 50 2.9%
Billets b 1,777 49 2.7% 1,892 (135) (7.7%)
Cold rolled sheets and RER RIEFR
galvanised shests 2,984 205 6.4% 3,022 (196) (6.9%)
Rebar 240 1,760 127 6.7% 1,924 4 2.1%
Sheet piling HRE 2,513 321 11.3% 2,612 182 6.5%
Combined Ta 1,824 233 11.3% 1,885 33 1.7%

In 2016, gross profit per tonne of the Group’s products increased to RIE—RF AEEERNSHWEF

RMB 233 from RMB 33 in 2015, reflecting an increase of 606.1%. A-ZE—RAFHNAREITEMNEAR
In 2016, gross profit margin increased to 11.3% from 1.7% in 2015. o337 0 B AN606.1% o N —FE — /X
The increase in gross profit margin was primarily due to the increase FoEMERE T —RAFH1.7%E M
in the average selling price, decrease in the average unit cost of the 2113% EFXENETEEAA_Z
steel products and increase in sales volume of the Group in 2016. —RNFEAEEEEROFEYHEESE

Bt IR EE TR IA MIHEIE N
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development
In 2016, the Group had completed Gross Floor Area (“GFA”) of

148,125 m?. The status of the completed GFA by project is set out
as follow:

¥EOE®)
B E B
RIZT—RF AEEC R TEEME

([BEERE ) A148,125FF K « AT A
RIEEMDRITEEEBEEN

No. City Property project Phase of project Total GFA

FF W YI%1EE HEMER REEEE

(m?)

(FFFK)

1 Suzhou Xintiandi Commercial and office 65,670
BN R PEMHAE

2 Suzhou Meishu Hall Residential 82,455

BN EEH F=

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue from real estate
business of the Group amounted to approximately RMB 212 million.
The GFA of properties delivered was 27,852 m?. The average selling
price of properties delivered was approximately RMB 7,500 per m?.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had the following projects
under construction with a GFA of approximately 78,000 m?:

No. City Property project Phase of project
ik W 3R] HE MR
1 Tangshan Donghu Bay Phase 3

L R =5

The above projects are expected to be completed in 2017 and
will contribute stable revenue and profits to our Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In order to sustain a stable financial status, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity and financial resources.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of approximately RMB 1.0 billion (2015: RMB 7.4 billion).

As at 31 December 2016, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.1
(2015: 1.1) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 55.5% (2015: 60.1%).

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB 1,290 million (2015:
approximately RMB 2,338 million).

After considering its cash and cash equivalents as well as the
banking facilities currently available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group has sufficient capital to fund its future operations and for
general business expansion and development.

Bt %5 ol R
BeRn@ENTBER

AEETERESRIUELMBE
IR AREF R BB BRI ©

R-E-RE+-A=1+—8  ~&£E
A RIRTIREBEE AN AREI0ET
(ZZ—RF: ARE74ET) -

RZZE—ARF+_A=+—8 ~%£H
MRS E(RBEERURBDAR) A
1T CE—RF 11 REEERE
LR (BEERNBEE)ARS55%(ZF
—HF :60.1%) °

RZE—RNF+_A=+—0 &&£H
MNIRE MRS EEMANARE12.001E
T(ZE—RF  HARK23.381/E7T) °

ZREMAKEMFEZRERAERFE
By RIRE R HIRTTIRIERER - HE
AEERBERRNES RN AR ZES
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
repurchased a total of US$ 62,212,000 in principal amount of the
2017 Senior Notes. On 17 November 2016, the outstanding 2017
Senior Notes of US$ 49,156,000 in principal amount was early
redeemed in full. Upon the completion of the early redemption and as
at 31 December 2016, no 2017 Senior Notes remained outstanding.

As at 31 December 2016, borrowings of RMB 735 million of the
Group bore fixed interest rates ranged from 1.43% to 6.00% per
annum and borrowings of RMB 646 million of the Group bore
floating rates ranged from 4.75% 1o 4.79% per annum. The Group’s
exposure to changes in market interest rates was considered to be
limited. The Group did not use any derivatives to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes current and non-current borrowings, other long-
term payables and borrowings from related parties. The Group
regards its non-current borrowings, non-current portion of other
long-term payables, non-current portion of borrowings from related
parties and its equity attributable to owners of the Company as its
total capital. As at 31 December 2016, the debt-to-capital ratio of the
Group was 25.8% (2015: 45.4%).

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2016
amounted to RMB 180 million (2015: RMB 424 million). The interest
coverage (divide profit/(loss) for the year before finance costs — net
and income tax expense by total interest expenses) was positive 6.3
times (2015: negative 1.1 times).

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]

M)
BARGEE

HE-Z—"F+A=+—H1
HE ARAREBEARAESEE
62,212,000X T2 —_E—+FEXLE
BeRZZTE—R"F+—A++tH  KE
B A LR S 48 %649,156,000% 7T 2
Tt HEEAZERORERAED -
EEMRIRAIER AR T —F+=A
=t+—B #BE_Z-+EEBLXZEND
KRIEE o

RZE—RF+-_A=+—8 A&EH
WARBE7IBETHERBENENF
1.43% Z=6.00% K EFEFE - MAEH
MARKECAIETHERBFENENT
4.75% Z 4.79% H)F NI o REEE ™
BHEBICORBRERAEBER - A%
BEEE-_Z—R"FEZE—hF+=A
=+—BUEFEXNEFRITETAL S
HFI=E R

REERBEBHEE AR RERE KR
oo R EABEBEBRBERIABER - M
EEAEEERDRIERBER - B
REFEMBRR LB ER - NEEH
HIERBER HREABNERIER
BB - BAE 5 B FOER B K 5F B
RARREFEENERZGEALTEE
MBER RZTE—R"F+ZA=+—
H AEBEMEIEEEARNL R AF25.8%
(ZZ—FF  45.4%) °

ZE-RNFAHFELHERERLEFE
HARBAIBEL(ZE—RHF: AR
W 42418 7T) o B EFIZFE (0B S 75
SFRA MR HAI 2 FEaH, (&
BIBRUBANEX ) BIEIE(ZE—H
FA11E) -



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total commitments of
RMB 1,558 million (2015: RMB 863 miillion). It is estimated the
commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and
unutilised banking facilities.

Guarantee and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s contingent liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB 11 million (2015: RMB 11 million),
which was the provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favor of
a third party.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the net book value of the Group’s
leasehold land and land use rights amounting to approximately RMB
56 million (2015: nil), property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately RMB 975 million (2015: nil), inventories amounting to
approximately RMB 69 million (2015: approximately RMB 62 million),
notes receivable amounting to approximately RMB 358 million (2015:
approximately RMB 1,426 million) and restricted bank balances
amounting to approximately RMB 891 million (2015: approximately
RMB 1,774 million) had been pledged as security for the Group’s
notes payable issuing, banking borrowings and letter of credit
issuing.

EEENWR DT
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Exchange Risks

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers
and the Group’s senior notes, which is denominated and settled
in USD. Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-
economic performance of different countries and fund flows between
countries arising from trade or capital commitments. In view of the
continuous decrease of the RMB exchange rate against USD since
the reform in RMB exchange policy in 2015, during the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group has entered into certain foreign
currency forward contracts so as to reduce the impact of the volatility
of the RMB exchange rate against USD. The Group also reviewed
and rearranged its monetary assets to mitigate the impact from the
change of RMB to USD exchange rate.

I[ron Ore Swaps

In view of the significant fluctuation of iron ore price in 2016, the
Group has been cautious in entering into iron ore swap contracts so
as to reduce the risk of potential negative impact of the iron ore swap
contracts.

Dividend

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK$ 175.9 million
(approximately RMB 157.3 million), representing HK$ 0.05
per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK$ 351.8 million
(approximately RMB 314.7 million), representing HK$ 0.10 per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on Monday,
12 June 2017. The final dividend and special dividend, payable on
Tuesday, 27 June 2017 are subject to approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) to be held on Wednesday, 31 May 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Post Balance Sheet Events

Save as disclosed below, there are no events to cause material

impact on the Group from the balance sheet date to the date of this

report that should be disclosed.

@)

On 20 January 2017, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement 1”) with Shenwan
Hongyuan Securities (H.K.) Limited (“the Placing Agent”)
whereby the Company agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, a maximum of 586,285,000
shares (“Placing Shares 1”) to not less than six placees
(“Placees I") at a price of HK$1.30 per Placing Share |. (‘Placing

)

On 20 January 2017, Wellbeing Holdings Limited (“Vendor”),
the controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement II”) with the Placing
Agent in order to assist the Company to restore its public
float. Pursuant to the Placing Agreement II, the Placing Agent
agreed to place, on a best effort basis, 64,314,000 Shares
representing approximately 1.83% of the issued share capital
of the Company of 3,517,710,000 Shares as enlarged by the
issue of the 586,285,000 Placing Shares I. (“Placing II”)

On 27 January 2017, completion of the Placing | took place
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement |. An aggregate of 586,284,000 Placing Shares |,
representing approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital
of the Company immediately after completion of the Placing |,
have been successfully placed to not less than six Placees | at
the placing price of HK$1.30 per Placing Shares |.

On 27 January 2017, completion of the Placing Il took place
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement Il. An aggregate of 64,314,000 Placing Shares I,
representing approximately 1.83% of the issued share capital
of the Company immediately after completion of the Placing |,
have been successfully placed at the placing price of HK$1.30
per Placing Shares |I.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Post Balance Sheet Events (continued)

Immediately after the completion of the Placing | and Placing
II, the Vendor and parties acting in concert with it and
other connected persons of the Company are interested in
2,638,280,740 Shares (representing approximately 75.00% of
the total issued share capital of the Company) and the balance
of 879,428,260 Shares (representing approximately 25.00%
of the total issued share capital of the Company) will be held
in the hands of the public. Accordingly, the public float of
the Company has been restored and the Company has met
the minimum prescribed percentage of shares being held by
public shareholders in accordance with Rule 8.08 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

(c) On 1 February 2017, the trading in the shares of the Company
had been resumed.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), a subsidiary of the
Company is awarded the “Excellent Metallurgical Enterprise of the
Metallurgical Business Association Under the All-China Federation
of Industry and Commerce”, the “30 Best Enterprises in Cultural
Establishment of Chinese Private Enterprises” and so on, and was
awarded the “Hebei Province May 1%t Labour Award” by Hebei
General Labour Union. Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Dafang
Heavy Industry Science and Technology Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, was honoured with the “Quality Foundry
Gold Award” at the 14" China International Foundry Expo. Oriental
Green Energy-Saving Environmental Protection Engineering Co.
Ltd. was ranked No. 7 among the “Top 100 Energy Saving Service
Companies in China”.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, the distributable profit of the PRC respective subsidiaries of the
Company should not be higher than its net profit, after appropriation
to the statutory reserve as determined by the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintained close contact with its investors during
the year of 2016. The Company not only made timely disclosures
of the Company’s information through the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for increasing
the transparency of the Company, but also held meetings and
conferences with investors, updating them on the Group’s business
development and industrial trend.

This helped to promote investors’ understanding of the Group while
allowing us to understand more about the opinions and expectations
of investors. In future, the Group will further its effort to maintain close
contact and effective interactive communication with investors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 11,900 and temporary staff of approximately 1,200.
The staff cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension
scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan
and the fair value of the share options, etc.. Effective from July 2008,
the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed 1.5% of the workers’ wages to the Social Insurance
Bureau. According to the Group’s remuneration policy, employees’
package is based on productivity and/or sales performance, and is
consistent with the Group’s quality control and cost control targets.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

It is expected that in 2017, the prices of steel will continue to
fluctuate but overall, see an upturn. With the Chinese government’s
regulation policy of the steel industry, there will be continuous
structural improvement in the steel market and support to steel
prices, resulting in a more optimistic business environment and
continuous recovery in the steel industry. In addition, the improving
US economy and Chinese government’s active adjustment in
the economy will likely improve global business environment and
bring stable demand to the steel industry. The Group had made
impairment provision of approximately RMB 810 million in 2016
primarily for property, plant and equipment which had or were to
be shut down due to overcapacity policies and therefore does not
expect further material impact in 2017. Under such a backdrop,
the Group plans to maintain its competitiveness and gain a more
prominant position in the industry by continuous improvement in
production efficiency, developing and increasing the number of high
value-added products, reducing production cost, expanding market
share and optimising the utilisation of internal resources.

In 2017, the Group will continue to focus on the development of
certain high-end steel products including high-strength, high and
low temperature repercussive and high-weatherability H-section
steel products, as well as products which suit standards of other
countries including the American standards, the British standards
etc., to continuously improve the quality and passing rate of
established products, to increase the market share of high value-
added products and to further optimise production costs including
the proportion of self-generated electricity, in order to enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group.

The Group made its first investments in an upgrading project for
sheet piling and ultra-large H-section steel products in 2016. The
project is designed to have an annual capacity of approximately
1.0 million tonnes and is expected to require investments of
approximately RMB 1.0 billion to RMB 1.5 billion, which will further
optimise the product portfolio and reduce reliance of the Chinese
market on imported high-end section steel products. It is scheduled
to commence operation in the fourth quarter of 2017.

In addition, the Group will continue to keep an eye on state projects
which will consume large volume of steel, broaden the channels
to collect market shortages product information to guide its new
product development. Furthermore, it will strengthen the control
of risks management and production procedure to enhance the
function of the risk control department, to improve the risk resistance
capacity of the Group and to maintain its stable operation.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Since its listing in 2004, the Group has continued to expand
its business, diversify its steel product categories and business
portfolio. During the last 13 years (since being listed), the Group’s
overall crude steel production capacity has reached approximately
11.0 million tonnes per annum from approximately 3.1 million tonnes
per annum at the time of the listing. The steel products include
H-section steel products, sheet piling products, strips and strip
products, billets, cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets and rebar.
The Group is constantly developing products of different series and
specifications to meet market needs. Moreover, the H-section steel
products of the Group maintain its leading position in China. The
Group will continue to develop its business towards the direction of
largest section steel production base in the world, and to explore
expanding through upstream and downstream integration. The
Group will strive to take full advantage of the current solid financial
condition and efficient management to intensify the continuous
development of the Group and to maximise the Shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to extend its heartfelt gratitude to all of its
staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and to its
shareholders for their continuous support and trust in the Company.

By order of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jingyuan, aged 60, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (appointed on 13 November 2003), and also
serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Han
graduated from the People’s University in 1994 with a degree in
management. Mr. Han began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when
he was employed as a deputy mine manager and mine manager of
Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has in-depth industry knowledge
and 31 years of extensive operational and managerial experience
in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han was awarded the honorary
title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur
of Hebei Province”, “Excellent Privately-owned Enterprises
Entrepreneur in Hebei Province” and “Economic Top Ten Men of
Honesty and Credibility in China” etc.. Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman
of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Tong San
Chamber of Commerce and the Vice Chairman of Tangshan Charity
Federation. Mr. Han was also the 9" and 11" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC. Mr. Han is the director
and the controlling shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Han Jingyuan is the
father of Mr. Han Li, the Executive Director, Deputy General Manager
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 53, is an Executive Director (appointed on 23
December 2003), Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a
graduate programme of the Communist Party School in Hebei
Province with a diploma in management. Prior to working in the
steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked for 10 years as deputy director of
Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer Factory which was based in Qianxi
County, Hebei Province. Mr. Zhu joined Jinxi Iron Factory in 1992
and later served as deputy director. Mr. Zhu has had 23 years
of working experience in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Zhu is a
minority shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Xiaoling, aged 56, is an Executive Director (appointed
on 1 July 2005) of the Company and also serves as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a diploma in
management from the Hebei Province Communist Party School in
2001. Before joining the Group, Mr. Shen was the head of China
Construction Bank Luanxian Sub-branch. Mr. Shen also had 5 years
experience acting as the Head of China Construction Bank Qianxi
Sub-branch and more than 6 years of experience as the deputy head
of Bank of China Qianxi Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has been the deputy
general manager of Jinxi Limited during the period January 2002
to October 2015. Mr. Shen was redesignated as the Chairman of
Supervisory Board of Jinxi Limited since October 2015. Mr. Shen is
a minority shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Hao, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 21 November 2007). Mr. Zhu graduated at Tianjin
Nankai University and obtained his Master degree in accounting from
the University of New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior
economist in China.

Mr. Han Li, aged 29, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 7 February 2012). Mr. Han joined the Group in 2009
as the assistant to the Financial Controller of the Company. He was
the executive assistant to Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and also currently serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He also assists the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company managing the daily operations
of the Group. Currently, Mr. Han is the 12" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC and 17" representative
of People’s Congress of the Communist Youth League of Ching;
he was awarded 13 mEEFASHREBAY (Enterprise Brand
Special Contribution Character) and Fz&H EH 2012 FEFE N A
Y - P EIETREIR IR B T REIFTIE L (The Harmonious China 2012
Influential People’s Award in Energy Saving). Mr. Han is the son of
Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the Part XV of
the SFO) (holding approximately 35.70% of the issued shares of the
Company) of the Company.

Mr. Han Li was appointed as the Deputy General Manager and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 8 December 2016.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ondra Otradovec, aged 48, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company (re-appointed on 16 January 2015). Mr. Otradovec
graduated from State University of New York in Stony Brook with
a Bachelor degree in Finance. Mr. Otradovec is the Global Head of
Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal (a substantial shareholder
of the Company). Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec has been responsible
for Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal and has closely been
involved in a large number of acquisitions, mergers and divestments
undertaken by the company. Mr. Otradovec was also involved in
the acquisition of Hunan Valin Steel Tube & Wire Company and
served as a director of Hunan Valin Iron and Steel Company Limited
(a company listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Previously,
he worked at HSBC Investment Bank, and was responsible for
corporate finance work in emerging markets. During this period, he
worked with Mittal Steel on the acquisition of Nova Hut in Czech
Republic and other steel companies. Mr. Otradovec acted as a Non-
executive Director of the Company from 2 January 2009 to 15 July
2018.
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FRITES

Ondra Otradovec %% @ IO+ /\5% © A<
RAIMERTESF(R_T—HF—H
+XNBEBEZMT) - Otradovec LA
ERBHMNIFERMBEROALMIZA
BIESEmMETEA - Otradovec St
% ArcelorMittal (AR A RIA) E Z AR E ) FUK
BHEAEHTZRIKEE - BT =F
#2 » Otradovec 7t 4 B & & ArcelorMittal
WBIEREEHEBY —EFYL2HEZA
AR — L RAVEE - B RBE X
Otradovec L £ TN E 2 BN HEEZE
BEHEROAER AT - I EEZE
#BROBRRABR(FRINESFR 5 E
MZARMNES - BE - BEERE
BIRITWIRERT - WEBEHETISH
PERETIE - RULHEIRE - K S EMittal
Steel Bt = L ABE & Nova Hut (3§
FLMS ) A E s 88 N B T L& 1E -
Otradovec t ERN—ZETNF—HAZH=ZE
—E—=FtA+HBHAMEEHEAN
NAIMIFENITES ©



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis, aged 52, is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 28 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, corporate internal control and governance,
acquisition and financial advisory, corporate restructuring and
liquidation, family trust and wealth management. He is currently
an Independent Non-executive Director (“INED”) and chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee and member
of nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is also an
INED of Digital China Holdings Limited, Wai Kee Holdings Limited,
Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited, Greenheart
Group Limited, GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (appointed on 1
April 2016), Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd (appointed
on 23 June 2016), China New Higher Education Group Limited
(appointed on 20 March 2017), Hilong Holding Limited (appointed
on 24 March 2017), and the shares of these companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is the managing director of Union Alpha
C.P.A. Limited and a director of Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public
Accountants Limited, both are professional accounting firms, and a
Founding Director and member of Francis M. C. Wong Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable institution. Previously, Mr. Wong
worked for KPMG, an international accounting firm for 6 years and
the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2 years. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a certified tax adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and a
fellow member of the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors.
Mr. Wong holds a master degree in management (&2 &5 1)
conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University (B /1 25 A E2), the PRC.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tianyi, aged 70, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 7 February 2012). He is
currently the executive vice president of The Chinese Society For
Metals. Mr. Wang has over 43 years of extensive experience in
the steel industry. Mr. Wang studied metallurgical machinery in 1t
FIMEERT (Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering) (now
known as 3t R EHE AEZ: University of Science and Technology of
Beijing) from 1965 and graduated in 1970. He then worked at HB S
3l #5155 R & {T A 7] (Handan Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited) (“Handan IS Group”) from 1970 to 1995 and held various
management and professional positions, included the position of a
technician, deputy factory manager and executive deputy general
manager. From 1995 to 2008, Mr. Wang re-designated and worked
at EILMEEBE AR E (T2 5] (Tangshan Iron and Steel Group
Company Limited) (“Tangshan IS Group”) as the chairman and
managing director. From 2005 to 2011, he was also the deputy
chairman and managing director of & i R/E RSB A BRETA
7] (Shougang Jingtang Iron and Steel Company Limited). From July
2008 to August 2011, he acted as the vice chairman of JA 1t $
EBEERET AR (Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company Limited)
(“HBIS Group”). HBIS Group was established after the merger of
Tangshan IS Group and Handan IS Group on 30 June 2008.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Bing, aged 51, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company (appointed on 15 July 2016). Mr. Wang graduated
from Peking University with a Bachelor degree in Law in 1986 and
obtained a Doctor degree in International Law from the Research
Institute of Hiroshima University in 1995. Mr. Wang has over 21 years
of experience in practicing law. In 1986, Mr. Wang joined Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic
of China, then worked for the Policy Research Office. He worked at
Zhong Lun Law Firm from July 1995 to May 1998. Mr. Wang joined
Beijing W&H Law Firm since May 1998 and currently, he is the Senior
Partner of Beijing W&H Law Firm. Mr. Wang is qualified to practice
law in PRC. Mr. Wang was once the Independent Director of Shanxi
Lanhua Sci-tech Venture Company Limited from May 2003 to May
2009 and Fujian Guanhong Holding Company Limited from May
2009 to May 2011. He is currently an Independent Director of Shanxi
Tianji Coal Chemical Group Company Limited since May 2008 and
Shangdong SINO-AGRI United Biotechnology Company Limited
since January 2016. In addition, Mr. Wang acted an external Director
of Beijing Fashion Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as
“Beijing Textile Holding Company Limited”) which is a wholly-owned
company of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of People’s Government of Beijing Municipality since
February 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Lifeng, aged 40, is the deputy chairman, legal representative
and general manager of Jinxi Limited. Mr. Yu began his career
in 1995 when he was employed as the sales supervisor of Han’s
erzhuang Iron Mine, and joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Yu has been
awarded the honorary title of “Model Worker of the National Steel
Industry” [ % B T 3 2 Ei5%6 |, “Outstanding Secretary of
Party Committee of the National Enterprises” [ & B> ¥ EFE
ZZ£5 ] and “Artisan of Private Enterprise of China Chamber of
Commerce for Metallurgical Enterprises” [ 286 & i 4 80 i
TIF]in2016.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Yu Jianshui, aged 49, is the general manager of Hebei Jinxi
Iron and Steel Group Special Steel Company Limited and was the
general manager of Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Zhengda
Iron and Steel Company Limited. Mr. Yu was graduated at Hebei
Polytechnic University in steel metallurgy and obtained a MBA from
University of Northern Virginia in June 2009. He joined the Group
after graduation until May 2005 and was employed as the deputy
general executive manager of Shanxi Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai
Iron and Steel Company in May 2005. He then re-joined the Group
in April 2006. He has been awarded County Technological Selected
Talent (B2FHZIRE A ), Ten Outstanding Youths in the County
(BT R#EEH B F), Outstanding Youth in Post of Tangshan City (/&
I S FrAIAETF ), Workers’ Model in Hebei Province Gal 464 45
E)EE ), The First Class Honour of Technological Improvement in
Tangshan City (& LI T EHY#E 25— 48), The Third Class Honour
of Technological Improvement in Hebei Province (i 1b& B & 4
—E18),

Mr. Lam Pak Kan, aged 37, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s
degree of Business Administration in Accounting in 2001. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charterholder. Mr. Lam has
over 16 years of experience auditing and financial management in
accounting firm, asset management company and listed companies.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ &E88|E

The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the continued development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) with the best long term interest of the
Group and value enhancement for all shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) as our ultimate goal. The Company also believes
that sound corporate governance practices benefit the Group’s
employees and the community in which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied the
Principles and Code Provisions with the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2016, except for the deviation with explanation disclosed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

During the year under review, the Board comprised the following
Directors and the composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager
and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li
(appointed as the Deputy General Manager
and Chief Financial Officer on 8 December 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 20176)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and Shareholders as well as to provide a balanced composition
in the Board so that there is a strong independent element on the
Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 26 to 31.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

= Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

“  Approval of dividends;

= Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;

=  Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;

= Monitoring the performance of the management;

= Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Except for Mr. Han Li, who is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgments.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, eight
Board meetings were held and the principal business transacted
included approving interim and annual results and reports,
assessing business development and business performance and
implementation as well as proposals to restore public float. The
attendance record of each Director for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out as follows:

Board

BER

Mr. Han Jingyuan BHURSL A
Mr. Zhu Jun KERAE
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TLREEIS S A
Mr. Zhu Hao Vpirtas
Mr. Han Li BhRE
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 7t 4
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BMORESE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRERAE
Mr. Zhou Guoping B e

(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 20176)

FEokscaE

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Number of Board Meeting
Attended/Eligible Attended
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EEREeRLE
BEREERE
Regular i Ad hoc 45l
3/4 4/4
4/4 3/4
4/4 4/4
3/4 4/4
4/4 4/4
1/4 2/4
3/4 2/4
2/4 1/4
0/1 2/2
2/2 1/2
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes

of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director.

A.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions and
monitor the daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes
that there is no immediate need to separate the roles of
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
because the role of chief executive officer/general manager of
the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are performed by
other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
light of the future development of the operating activities or
businesses of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors of whom Mr. Wong Man
Chung, Francis has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

B.

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Following the resignation of Mr. Zhou Guoping (“Mr. Zhou”)
on 1 April 2016, the number of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company fell below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Company no longer fulfils the requirement on
the minimum number of independent non-executive directors
for the formation of audit committee stipulated under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

On 15 July 2016, the Company appointed Mr. Wang Bing
as Independent Non-executive Director, a member of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Following the appointment of
Mr. Wang Bing, the composition of the Board comprises five
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. As a result, the number
of independent non-executive directors and audit committee
members of the Company meet with the requirements under
Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to the retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of the Directors to retire in each
year and the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. The Company will
consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

All the Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan,
Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Han
Li being the Executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years. Mr. Ondra Otradovec being the Non-
executive Director is appointed for a fixed term of two years.
All Independent Non-executive Directors, including, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Zhou Gouping
(resigned on 1 April 2016) and Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on
15 July 2016) are appointed for a fixed term of one year. All
the Directors are still subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company and the
Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance to the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, Mr.
Wang Bing being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

As Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis has served the Company for
more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders.
By taking into account his independent status in the Board
in the past years, and that he is not involved in the day-to-
day management of the Company, the Board believes he is
still independent and should be re-elected as the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Director; Such reason shall be set
out in the circular of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company for Shareholders’ consideration.

Except for the change in the Board as mentioned above,
during the year under review, no other Director was appointed
to fill any causal vacancy or otherwise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

D.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover potential
legal actions against Directors and Officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Group conducts its business to the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary
(continued)

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant for the year ended
31 December 2016. The Company will arrange internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
provided reading materials on corporate governance matters
and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for their
reference and studying. Besides, Mr. Ondra Otradovec and
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis also attended other seminars
and training sessions arranged by other professional firms/
institutions. Record of training each Director has received
for the year ended 31 December 2016 were kept by the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

(continued)

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &E88|E

The individual training record of each Director received for the

year ended 31 December 2016 is summarised as below:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development

Programme in 2016

Directors

B

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping

(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing

(appointed on 15 July 2016)

Reading Regulatory
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During the year under review, Mr. Lam Pak Kan, the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, took more
than 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and

knowledge in compliance with

Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued) EER(EER] @
G. Directors’ Securities Transactions G EFIBAFERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
under review.

H. Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established since 2005 with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee (which were available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company) have included those specific duties as set
out in the Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. Pursuant to
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

(7)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 March
2016 and 15 July 2016 to 31 December 2016, namely
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee during the year under review and Mr.
Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April
2016) and Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on 15 July 2016)
as the members of the Audit Committee, in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, four meetings of
Audit Committee were held. The attendance record for
each member is set out as follows:
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Number of Audit
Committee Meeting
Audit Attended/
Committee members Eligible Attended
ERZEEERLE
EREEENE BEREERH
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BN RAE 4/4
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE 4/4
Mr. Zhou Guoping JAB & 1/2
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=ZF—NFMH—HEFFHF)

Mr. Wang Bing FREE 2/2

(appointed on 15 July 2016)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 and has also discussed the
internal control, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

@

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) has been established
since 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which were available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company) have included the duties
which are set out in the Code Provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were amended on 23 March 2012 in order to
comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the
Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors; (i) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.

Board Committees (continued)

)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Wong Man Chung,
Francis, as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan and the remaining
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
namely, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned
on 1 April 2016) and Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on
15 July 2016) as the members of the Remuneration
Committee in compliance with the Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, three meetings
of Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follow:
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Number of
Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Meeting Attended/
Committee members Eligilbe Attended
FMZEESERHE

FHEEERE BEREERH
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BYXCRAEA 3/3
Mr. Han Jingyuan BRUREA 2/2
Mr. Wang Tianyi TRERE 3/3
Mr. Zhou Guoping AL 1/1

(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=ZF—NFPH—HEFHE)
Mr. Wang Bing EkdgkHE

(appointed on 15 July 2016) (R=ZF—NF+LH+AHEZT) 1/1

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the Note 47
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.

Board Committees (continued)

@

)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The biographies of members of the senior management
team at the date of this annual report are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Information” in this annual report. Pursuant
to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
emoluments of the senior management (excluding
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
within the following bands:

RMB ¥1 - RMB ¥1,000,000
(approximately HKS 1 to HKS 1,154,541)

RMB ¥1,000,001 - RMB ¥2,000,000
(approximately HKS 1,154,542 to HK$ 2,309,082)

ARE1TTZE AR 1,000,007
(18751154 541%7)

(411,154,542 B L2 2,309,082/ 70)
Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee) has been established on 23 March 2012
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to
(i) review the Board composition, develop and formulate
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors; (i) make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of directors;
(iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and (iv) recommend the measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

©)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee will taking into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise and
knowledge, the requirements applicable to the Company
and the structure and composition of the Board,
identify, review and nominate with diligence and care
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before
making recommendations to the Board for their final
appointment.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan, as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr.
Wong Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Zhou
Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016) and Mr. Wang
Bing (appointed on 15 July 20716) as the members of
the Nomination Committee in compliance with Code
Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, three meetings
of Nomination Committee were held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follows:

Nomination
Committee members

REZEBHE

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRUR A
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BEXRAEAE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FREEE
Mr. Zhou Guoping BB S A

(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 20176)
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Number of
Nomination Committee
Meeting Attended/
Eligible Attended
REZEEERLE
BFERHERH

2/2
3/3
3/3
0/0
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013 with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Group. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) which has been disclosed on pages 26 to 31 in this
annual report and considered the current Board’s composition is
appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on the confirmation made by
the senior management and inputs from the Audit Committee. The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, are effective and adequate during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls (continued)

The Board has an overall and ongoing responsibility for the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewing their
effectiveness. It is acknowledged that risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material adverse
change or damage.

The Board, through its risk oversight role, ensures that the senior
management establishes an effective risk management, consistent
with the Group’s strategy and risk appetite. The senior management
establishes risk management policies and internal control processes
to identify, evaluate and manage risks. Each subsidiary implements
such policies and processes in the daily operations and reports
significant risks identified to the senior management regularly.
The senior management assesses and evaluates these significant
risks reported then allocates sufficient resources to address these
risks and monitors the risk management status reported from the
relevant subsidiary from time to time. The senior management will
communicate the risk management and internal control findings to
the Board for its assessment of the effectiveness of the relevant risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Finance and Internal Audit Department of the Company reviews
material internal control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management
function, duties which include (i) reviewing and reporting on internal
and operational controls; (i) following-up on the suggestions made
by external auditors; (jii) ongoing monitoring and reviews on different
operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern identified
by senior management. It reports to the Chief Operating Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer from time to time, and also reports the
findings to the Audit Committee at least twice a year and on ad-hoc
basis. The findings are communicated with the senior management
and actions are taken to resolve defects as and when identified. No
material internal control defects were identified during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (continued)

Under code provision C.2.5 and the related notes of the CG Code,
the Company should have an internal audit function which generally
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Company’s internal audit function is merged
with the finance function during the year ended 31 December 2016.
During the year, the Group conducted a review on the need for
setting up an independent internal audit department. Taking into
account the size and complexity of the operations of the Group, the
Company considers that the existing organisation structure and the
close supervision of the senior management could provide sufficient
internal control and risk management for the Group. The Audit
Committee and the Board regularly review the effectiveness of the
internal control systems and the risk management of the Group. The
Board will review the need to set up an independent internal audit
function on an annual basis.

When the Board and the Audit Committee express concerns over
the risk management and internal control matters of the Group,
the Finance and Internal Audit Department of the Company
will investigate and communicate the findings with and make
recommendations to the senior management. The Finance and
Internal Audit Department of the Company also maintains an
effective communication with the external auditor of the Company on
the Group’s internal control system during interim review and annual
audit.

The Group has a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information including relevant control processes and safeguards.
The processes and safeguards are implemented as needed by
the relevant department heads and management involved in the
handling and dissemination of inside information.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 to reflect a true and
fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position and
financial performance and cash flows for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016, the generally accepted accounting principles in
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent use of
appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim
review and taxation services) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms of the same international network for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were approximately RMB 4.05 million and
RMB 0.14 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, PricewaterhouseCoopers and its member firms of the same
international network provided non-audit services mainly on interim
review and taxation services. These non-audit services are engaged
only as they are more effective or economical than those available
from other service providers and will not constitute adverse impact
on the independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2016 have been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong (Suites 901-2 &
10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong) for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must
state the purposes of the SGM, signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of those Shareholders. If the requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested. Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal
office in Hong Kong (Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle
Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong) for the attention
of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before the
AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
and not less than one week before the general meeting in the
case of any other requisition. If the written request is in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to circulate the statement for
the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the
Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM
or the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post to the Hong Kong principal office at
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland China. Any change in the policy and
procedure in the Mainland China may have adverse effects on the
Group’s operation and results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted on 23 March 2012 to ensure that Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. The policy is
posed on the Company’s website. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the Shareholders of the Company and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), chairman or members of the committees
and senior management of the Group and where applicable
are available to answer questions at the general meeting of the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a
poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general
meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the

Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance record of the 2016 AGM held on 27 May 2016 for
each of the individual Director was as follows:
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ E88HE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued) BEAREZE®E»)

Board Attendance of

BER H B8
2016 AGM
S

REBFXE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Han Jingyuan BEURESE 11

Mr. Zhu Jun KERE 0/1

Mr. Shen Xiaoling 3=t 0/1

Mr. Zhu Hao apites 1/1

Mr. Han Li BNEE 0/1

Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %4 0/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIUFHTES

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXRESE 1/1

Mr. Wang Tianyi ITRERE 0/1

Mr. Zhou Guoping BB 0/0
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=F—NFP H—HEHT)

Mr. Wang Bing EkEE 0/0
(appointed on 15 July 2016) (R=F—NF+H+HHEZE)

The Company will continue to enhance communication and NAE B EILE RN R FRER R
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders of R RRRIRR 2 ERGSERIEF
the Company are dealt with in an informative and timely manner. EPRIE o

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 52 [H % B A FR 2 7]



Environmental, Social and Governance Report 8% « H &R ER®RE

OVERVIEW

The Group is always committed to performing its social responsibility
as an enterprise. Apart from strictly abiding by national laws and
regulations, the Group has reduced emissions from and energy
consumption in the steel production process by continuously
investing resources into production facilities, so as to minimise the
impact of the production process on the environment and strive
for being an environmentally friendly enterprise. For the sake of
informing the stakeholders of policies and measures of as well
as performance in environmental, social and governance (“‘ESG”)
aspects, the Group prepared the ESG report in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

This report covers the year ended 31 December 2016. Currently,
the Group’s revenue is mainly from the steel business which is
dominated by sales of self-manufactured steel products, accounting
for approximately 88% of gross sales of the Group for the year.
Production of such steel products is mainly conducted by its
subsidiaries such as Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Special
Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi Special Steel”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda
Iron and Steel”), Tianjin Oriental Jiangtian Section Steel Sales
Company Limited (“Oriental Jiangtian”) and Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan
Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”) and the content
below of this report is mainly related to Jinxi Limited and Jinxi Special
Steel.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group’s growth and flourish development rely on its operating
strategies, which gear towards environmental protection,
sustainability and are favorable to the Group’s stakeholders, and
on its ability to overcome complicated challenges. The Group pays
high attention to environmental protection, efficient use of resources
and enhancement of efficiency for minimising the impacts of the
production process to the environment. By continuously investing
resources into production facilities, the Group aims to reduce
emissions from and energy consumption of its manufacturing
process. The Group continues to operate its business in a moral
and responsible manner, so as to distinguish itself in various
assessments other than financial data.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # 8k EAHE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

The Group also strictly complies with relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations including the “Environment
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising
of Environment Impacts”, Hebei Industrial Furnace Air Pollutant
Emission Standards 2012, Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for
Iron Smelt Industry, Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Steel
Smelt Industry, Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Sintering
and Pelletizing from Iron and Steel Industry, Emission Standard
of Air Pollutants for Steel Rolling Industry, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
Discharge Standard of Water Pollutants for Iron and Steel Industry.
The Group also formulates certain policies such as Environmental
Protecting Measures, Administrations of Environmental Supervision
and Management Personnel and Administrations of Environmental
Protection Training, so as to ensure the compliance with relevant
laws and regulations.

A1. EMISSIONS

The exhaust emissions of the Group mainly comprise dust, nitrogen
oxides and sulphur oxides, etc, of which, dust is generated from
materials transportation, raw materials treatment for iron-smelting,
firing process in sintering, blast furnace plants and converters while
nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides are mainly generated from the
firing process in sintering.

Waste water produced from the manufacturing process consists of
various contaminants like SS, BODG6, petroleum and heavy metals.

The major solid wastes generated from the Group’s production

include dust, water slag, steel slag, de-sulphur gypsum, refractory
materials and oily contaminants, etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report 8% « H &R ER®RE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1. EMISSIONS (continued)

Exhaust emissions

The Group endeavors to allocate resources to improve its production
environment and facilities. Various production facilities put into
operation are equipped with environmental protection equipments
for reducing emission and meeting the relevant national standards.
The measures for dust include:

1/ To set up a fully closed stock ground to eliminate dust pollution
and disorganised discharge of pollutants from the stock
ground;

2/ To set up wind breaker and dust filter net in the stock ground
and clean the wind breaker and dust filter net with water
periodically;

3/ To place precipitator treatment equipments in the sources of
pollution, and qualified third party operators will carry out repair
and maintenance, to ensure efficient operation of all types
of precipitator treatment equipments through professional
maintenance;

4/ Vehicles equipped with special sweeping and precipitators
and sprinkling cars will sweep and clean continuously all sub-
zone passages of the stock ground and the main transport
roads. These effectively prevent dust pollution caused by the
rolling over of the delivery vehicles of the stock ground onto the
roads;

5/ To improve and optimize the production facilities to reach
the result of dust elimination, all types of production facilities
in operation are equipped with environmental protection and
treatment equipments in order to reach the national standard.
For instance, sintering machines and blast furnaces are
equipped with electrostatic precipitators, all feeder points are
equipped with bag precipitators, skills of gravity dust removal
plus bag precipitator with dry-dedusting technology are used
for the gas purification of blast furnaces, all steel refinery plants
are equipped with the triple dust elimination system etc.; and
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # 8k EAHE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1. EMISSIONS (continued)

Exhaust emissions (continued)

6/  The sintering machines and vertical furnaces are equipped with
desulfurization system and online inspection system.

The average discharge of dust after the transformation project of
electrostatic precipitators under the troughs of the blast furnaces
of Jinxi Limited in operation was approximately 7 mg/standard
cubic metre, which was lower than the national standard of 10 mg/
standard cubic metre. The smoke and dust collection rate at the dust
suction vent was raised to approximately 90%. The dust powder
and other exhaust emissions discharged during the production
processes reach the discharge standard.

Sewage discharge

In order to solve the problems of external discharge of production
water, pollution of the environment and wastage of resources
caused by the sewage generated by the production, the Group
invested and constructed two sewage treatment stations with
maximum daily treatment capacity of 50,000 tonne and one sewage
treatment station with maximum daily treatment capacity of 10,000
cubic metre in Jinxi Limited and Jinxi Special Steel respectively.
All the sewage is reused after centralised treatment in the sewage
treatment stations. All the post-treatment water which reaches the
standard is used in the production again, so that the daily volume of
new water consumed decreased substantially. The industrial sewage
achieved zero discharge.

Solid waste

The Group properly treats the wastes produced with the following
comprehensive treatment measures to reduce the effect on the
environment:

1/ Wastes containing iron are recycled for sintering comprehensive
utilisation, the steel slag after treatment is used in the
production in the converter furances;

2/ Refractory materials are collected and treated by recycling
companies, and the slag and solid wastes (water slag and
gypsum, etc.) are sold to the other cement plants or used as
other raw materials for production;
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report 8% « H &R ER®RE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1. EMISSIONS (continued)

Solid waste (continued)

3/

4/

The volume of waste mineral oils generated is reduced by
filtering and repeated use measures; and

In accordance with the national environmental protection
requirements, state professional factories with the relevant
qualifications and treatment capabilities are entrusted to carry
out detoxification treatment of waste mineral oils which cannot
be utilised so as to comply with the requirements of hazardous
waste disposal.

A2. RESOURCE UTILISATION

Energy saving

The Group included environmental protection management in the

scope of management appraisal, directly linking the performance

with the objectives. It monitored through the economic indicators,

consumption indicators, etc. to lift the production level as well as

reducing consumption.

The Group has always been dedicated to investing resources and

optimising all production facilities to reduce the consumption of

energy:

1/

2/

Upgrade and technique transformation project of blast
furnaces: the transformation of the steel rolling heating
furnaces with the smart burning technique in order to reduce
gas consumption, the investment in dynamic nitrogen
compression system to save the consumption of energy, the
main air exhaustion machine (/&) reduced electricity
consumption, the integrated transformation of the water
system of the oxygen production and electricity generation
module achieved direct integrated re-utilisation of circulating
discharged water to reduce the pressure of sewage treatment,
and lower the consumption of water;

The use and transformation into energy saving equipments
(such as electric machine, air exhaustion machine, water pump
station, etc.) effectively saved electricity; and
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # 8k EAHE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2. RESOURCE UTILISATION
Energy saving (continued)

3/ Billet heat transmission project: the Company realised the
heat transmission of the steel rolling production line, which
largely lowered the consumption of gas. It also restrained the
excessive consumption of energy medium of all units by setting
and allocating energy medium consumption indicators. With
the principle of reasonable allocation and reasonable use,
these lowered the overall energy consumption volume.

Jinxi Limited carried out the transformation of the back-up blower (&l
1#), the transformation into high-oxygen-content for the blast furnace
(S EH R E 42 ) saved over 10,000 units of electricity every day.

The Group was dedicated to recycling energy during the production
processes in order to reduce consumption and better use of energy.
These included the recovery of residual heat of the steam from
the converters in the refinery plants for use in each phase of the
production and the electric power generation workshop, the ratio
of electricity generated by the Group now reached approximately
60%; the water slag phase of the refinery plants made use of the
residue-cleaning water for heat exchange to provide sources of heat
for household use of the plant, achieved the maximum utilisation
of heat sources. Besides, the gas pipelines of hot air stoves were
transformed with the use of gas from blast furnace changing to the
use of mixed gas, increasing the gas recovery utilisation rate and
lowering the costs. Besides, the transformation of the gas pipe
network solved the problem of striking a balance of gas between the
new and old systems, which increased the gas utilisation rate.

A3. ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has been monitoring the potential impact brought to the
environment. In order to mitigate the impact of the environment and
natural resources upon our operation, the Group has been carrying
out research and development on our products, it continued to
accelerate the pace of product structure adjustment, optimise the
production phase so as to further raise the level of energy saving and
environmental protection.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report 8% « H &R ER®RE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A3. ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES (continued)

On top of the above generated discharge matters and resources
utilisation, the Group actively reduced other major impact on the
environment, including the noises during the production operation.
In order to strengthen the control and reduce the impact brought
by noises, the Group already met the state regulations regarding
noises such as the “Background Noise Release Standards” by
increasing ancillary production equipments and other measures.
They included the setting up of factories for all types of large
facilities and workshops, installing noise reduction facilities (such
as oxygen production module and electricity generation module
etc) for production facilities and devices with loud noises, installing
sound-proof doors etc. for all electricity generation module, hot air
stove blower, oxygen production workshop which generate louder
noises, installing shock reduction and shock insulation equipments
for blower and water pump, etc. which generate louder noises, using
closed settings for the transfer of raw materials using closed transfer
corridor and feeder and other phases, adding sound-proof housing
for the saw machine etc. It also hired professional environmental
inspection companies to carry out on-site inspect to meet the
“Sound Environment Quality Standards”.

During 2016 Jinxi Limited also planned to install sound-proof
housing for the saw machine so that the noise will be less than 90
decibel. It was expected that this would be completed in 2017.

Resolving overcapacity

In 2016, the Chinese government successively issued the “Opinion
of the State Council on solving the overcapacity and overcoming
difficulties and achieving development for the iron and steel industry”,
the “Adjustment and upgrade plan for the iron and steel industry
(2016-2020)”, the “Notice of the State Council on the publication of
the “Thirteen Five-year Plan” energy saving and emission reduction
integrated working proposal” and other documents. The Group
actively cooperated with the resolving of overcapacity. At the
end of October 2016, Zhengda Iron and Steel, an indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group already followed the result
of negotiation of the Group and Tangshan City government, and
completed the shut down of one 500 cubic metre blast furnace and
one 60 tonnes converter furnace, eliminating approximately 600,000
tonnes steel production capacity. It was expected that during 2017
the remaining approximately 600,000 tonnes steel production
capacity would be eliminated and thereby completed the mission of
resolving the capacity issue.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # 8k EAHE

B. SOCIAL

B1. EMPLOYEE

B1.1 Remuneration policy

The Group stressed the establishment of a remuneration system
which reflected the value and contribution of individuals, it
adequately mobilised the work initiative and creativity of the staff,
fostered the optimisation of staff structure and enhancement of the
level of skills and created an efficient team of staff. The principles for
the determination of remuneration are based on the enhancement
of efficiency (to closely link up the remuneration level and the overall
business results of the unit), fairess (criteria are based on the duties
of the positions, importance, degree of contribution, requirements
of the positions and the level of skills, work performance, number of
years of work in the present positions of the individual employees,
etc.) and motivation (to motivate the work initiative of the staff
by differentiation of promotion and salary grades). It also offered
appraisal for annual allowance, performance bonus, company prizes
etc. in order to enhance the initiative of employees.

B1.2 Staff contract

The Group strictly abided by the relevant labour laws and regulations
such as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Employment Contract of the People’s Republic of China” and
the “Work Injury Regulations”, etc. It entered into, updated and
terminated the labour contracts in accordance with laws and
regulations to protect the legal rights of the employees.

B1.3 Staff recruitment

The Group attracted talents under the principles of fairness and
objectiveness, it made public recruitment via publishing recruitment
advertisement, using internet recruitment, campus recruitment,
recruitment in the labour market offices and head hunters, etc, and
made comprehensive assessment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report 8% « H &R ER®RE

B. SOCIAL ()

B1. EMPLOYEE (continued)

B1.4 Staff promotion

The Group also emphasised the development of skills of the
employees and the effective allocation of human resources to
raise the efficiency level. It dedicated to provide a complete human
resources structure and a safe working environment for the
employees to make the best out of their strengths. The Group also
insisted on the incentive and assessment mechanism which linked
the performance of employees and their remuneration. It used the
performance assessment to optimise the human resources policy,
offered promotion opportunities to the employees, shared the
success of the companies with their employees.

B1.5 Working hours and holidays

The Group strictly controlled the working hours in accordance with
the legal requirements. It guaranteed that all over time work by the
employees were on a voluntary basis. The over time remuneration
was paid in full according to the local applicable labour laws.

The rest days of the employees of the Group are the public holidays
and the other holidays in accordance with the local laws and
regulations.

B1.6 Equal opportunities, diversification of employees and anti-
discrimination

The Group provided equal, fair and reasonable employment
opportunities for employees. The recruitment, wages, benefits
and promotion were all completely based on the work capabilities
of the employees concemned. It treated all the employees equally,
regardless their sexes, ages, races, bloodlines, colour of their skin,
nationalities, political preferences, religions, marital status, number of
children, being handicapped or not or any other factors not related
to the work. If a discriminatory behaviour was discovered, the Group
would examine according to the nature of the problem, and would
take disciplinary action to the person(s) making such discriminatory
behaviour.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # 8k EAHE

B. SOCIAL (%)

B1. EMPLOYEE (continued)

B1.7 Benefit policy

The staff benefits of the Group included all kinds of insurances
(including medical insurance scheme, pension scheme,
unemployment insurance scheme, childbearing insurance scheme
etc) were paid in full and on time in accordance with the requirements
of the state as well as bonus and the fair value of share option, etc.
Since July 2008, the Group introduced the work injury insurance and
has been paying 1.5% of the wages paid to the staff to the social
insurance department.

B1.8 Staff situation

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of approximately
11,900 full time employees and 1,200 temporary employees, which
was 3,000 persons less than 2015 in average, mainly due to the
shut down of some production lines and continuous optimisation of
production efficiency.

The ratios of employees in 2016 by contract type, sex and job nature
are as follows:

Contract type Sex
BRER 3zl
9%\ 8%

N

91%

M Full time M Male
a7 3
Temporary employee Female
FRlF T z
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B. SOCIAL ()

B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group strictly followed the “Occupation Disease Prevention
Law”, “Safety Production Law”, etc., to strengthen the hygiene
awareness of the employees and promotion of occupational health
and formulate measures for a safe working environment.

More resources were used for the sources of occupational diseases
to improve all types of production facilities and techniques, such
as dust prevention and noise reduction, etc. These met the
requirements of protecting the occupational health of the employees;
sound-proof ear plugs were provided in the production environment,
S0 as to reduce the harm of high degree of noises to the labourers,
to ensure that the contact level of noises was below the contact level
stated by the state.

The Group also determined the safety management responsibilities,
it made regular and ad hoc inspection of the safety measures of
products (such as the weight of products delivered and packaging,
the placing of the goods into the warehouse etc) and seriously
established the accountability of the staff concerned. It promoted
in full scale autonomous safety management work, set up the
safety patrol system, strictly executed the approval of dangerous
operation, organised all types of emergency drills, enhanced the
emergency rescue ability, continuously inspected and repaired and
safety management work of external parties in order to avoid the
occurrence of any safety incident.
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B. SOCIAL (%)

B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group extremely emphasised staff training and offered several
different training programmes for employees at all levels and from all
departments in order to enhance the professional and emergency
response abilities of the employees and enhance the education on
occupational safety. It arranged safety education for new employees
upon their commencement of work in the factories and only after
having passed the examinations, they would then work in their
positions under the guidance of coaches. The Group also conducted
safety education examination of all employees on a regular basis.
Following the development of business of the Group, the Group
actively provided focused training to the management and the
professional technical staff, including strengthening the training of
foremen, workshop officers to enhance the safety management
ability of group leads, workshop officers, strengthening the
theoretical and skill training of all job types (such as sintering, iron
refinery, steel refinery, steel rolling jobs etc.) and carrying out repair
and maintenance of the production facilities by the repair workers.
It also shared the training resources (such as the distribution of
staff manual) with the companies of the Group. In 2016, 100% of
the total staff of the production subsidiaries participated in safety
training, while approximately 75% of the total staff of the production
subsidiaries participated in technical training.

In order to continue strengthen the safety skill level and emergency
rescue ability of all members of the staff, through its active
arrangement of safety skill activities for them to participate, it laid
a solid foundation for the effective promotion of the emergency
rescue level of the Company. This effectively enhanced the overall
emergency rescue ability of the Company, which in tumn effectively
promoted the enhancement of the emergency rescue ability of the
employees at the lower level.

The training provided in 2016 included:

Jinxi Limited

1/ Workshop officer examination was held with an attendance of
711; foremen examination was arranged with an attendance of
866;

2/ A total of 279 persons in 11 sessions of re-assessment and
training of the special operational staff in electric work, electric

welding;
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B. SOCIAL ()
B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (continued)

3/ The collection of certificates of having passed the examination
on safety management, certificate renewal, re-assessment
work of 408 safety management employees and foremen; and

4/ 2,715 employees from 9 job types such as sindering, iron
refinery, steel refinery, steel rolling jobs, etc. joined the training.
The training rate was 99.70%.

Jinxi Special Steel

1/ The training and certificate handling were made in respect
of special facilities. During the year, 12 person-times of
certificates were handled for the overhead travelling crane
workers, 8 person-times of certificates were handled for the
drivers of overhead travelling crane and command cranes; and

2/ Beijing Jin Zi Tian Zheng Model Engineering was invited to
conduct training on high pressure capacitor nil power unit
compensation (£ IH IR iFH(E).

B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly abided by the requirements of the “Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, “the Employment Contract of
the People’s Republic of China”, which prohibited the recruitment of
minors below 18 years old and forced labour.

B5. SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT

The Group actively strengthened the cooperation with the suppliers
to stabilize the supply and prices of raw materials. It only selected
suppliers which strived for higher and higher quality, respected
environmental protection and with business ethics to be its
cooperation partners. At the same time it also expected its suppliers
to pay attention to the environment and social responsibilities, and it
also took the following measures:

1/ It set up the systems of “Supplier management system”,
“Online invitation of tenders procurement management
methods”, etc. according to the “Law on Invitation of tender”
and the “Regulations of the implementation of the Law on
Invitation of tender” of the state to continue to strengthen the
supplier management and quality monitoring;
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B5. SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT (continued)

2/ It set up electronic files of suppliers, carried out regular
assessment of the supply quantity and quality of the suppliers,
implemented the supplier blacklist system, eliminated and
adjusted suppliers not meeting the requirements, and it also
insisted on strictly prohibiting all bribery and corruption acts,
and abided by ethical practice of companies;

3/ It actively developed and optimised supplier resources. It
cancelled supply via intermediary, the supply companies were
determined according to the tender procedures; and

4/ It set up an online platform to carry out public tender
procurement. It guided procurement on a price-quality
comparison basis by tender, price control, price reduction etc.,
and the public tender rate was over 90%.

B6. PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Group extremely emphasised the quality of its products, all
production companies formulated strict quality inspection systems
to ensure that their products complied with the relevant state
standards. The Group prepared “Quality Handbook” in accordance
with 1ISO9001 quality management system requirements. It is the
framework document for the quality management of the Group.

The Group strengthened the quality monitoring of the production
processes and the strength of random inspection of finished
goods and comprehensively enhanced the quality of products. It
also paid attention to the movement of goods. It learnt about and
mastered the conditions of quality of use by customers, made
continuous improvement, established the goals of client satisfaction
and adaptation to market needs, created brand awareness of the
company and enhanced its market position.
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B. SOCIAL ()
B7. ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group set up an organization and a channel for creating a honest
environment to carry out anti-corruption work, convened meetings
regularly, promoted and provided reporting methods, etc. The
Group also required all subsidiaries to strengthen their internal anti-
corruption and self-discipline education and training continuously.
These included setting up of a report telephone number, electronic
email address, fixed mail box etc for reporting corruption cases;
setting up of special supervisory room, which would make regular
and ad hoc inspection on the carrying out of businesses, prevent
the occurrence of bribery; and the implementation of approval by
different layers of authority to prevent corruption acts during the
course of business.

In 2016, the Group did not have any corruption or bribery case.

B8. INVESTMENT IN THE COMMUNITY
Cultural promotion

The Group set up a subsidiary which is called Beijing Jinxi LongXiang
Culture Development Co. Ltd. (“Longxiang Culture”) to develop
the publishing business and promote culture. In 2016, Longxiang
Culture jointly organized the 2016 First Session of Hebei, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan Youth for Tourism, Literature, Creation
and Design Competition with the provincial tourism development
committee, the provincial cultural bureau, the provincial government
Hong Kong and Macau Affairs Office and other companies and
organizations. Longxiang Culture created an event called “Mengxue
Theme Travel” under the theme of Mengxue using travelling as the
medium. “Mengxue Thirteen Book” that it published was also sold in
other places.

Social charity

Jinxi Limited made donation of RMB 277,000 from its special
difficult, special disease and serious disease foundation, visited
over 400 person-times of its employees. Jinxi Special Steel had 17
person-times of voluntary blood donation, donated RMB 12,000 to
Bo Ai One Day (T8 —H).
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Directors’ Report EE£ 54

The Board presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company’s principal
activities are investment holding and trading of steel products and
iron ore. The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
sales of iron and steel products, trading of steel products and iron
ore and real estate business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Approximately 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and
contribution to results are derived from the PRC and mainly from
the production and sales of iron and steel products and real estate
business for the year ended 31 December 2016 and are set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and its consolidated balance sheet as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on page 114 to 117.
The balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2016 is set
out in Note 46 to the consolidated the financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

At a Board meeting held on 31 March 2017, the Board proposed
a final dividend of HK$ 175.9 million (approximately RMB 157.3
million), representing HK$ 0.05 per ordinary share and a special
dividend of HK$ 351.8 million (approximately RMB 314.7 million),
representing HK$ 0.10 per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016 to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on Monday, 12 June 2017. The final dividend
and special dividend, payable on Tuesday, 27 June 2017 are subject
to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on
Wednesday, 31 May 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, an analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 8
to 12 and pages 13 to 25 of this annual report respectively. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
can be found in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s environment, society and
governance, relationship with employees, customers and suppliers
and compliance with laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained on pages 99 to 101 of the
Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 25 May 2017 to Wednesday, 31 May 2017 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company may be registered, for the purposes of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the forthcoming AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May 2017.

(b)  For determining the entitlement to the final dividend and special
dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 8 June 2017 to Monday, 12 June 2017 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement for the proposed final dividend
and special dividend. The record date for the proposed final
dividend and special dividend shall be Monday, 12 June 2017.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend and special
dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 7 June 2017.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities

and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, is set out on page 284.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s accumulated losses
amounted to RMB 604 million (2015: RMB 812 million) and the
Company did not have distributable reserves. The Company will
utilise the subsidiaries’ retained earnings to set off the Company’s
accumulated losses and distribute the proposed final dividend and
special dividend (subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM).

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 5,049 million (2015: RMB 4,340 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 2016)

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company and the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance to the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, Mr. Wang Bing

being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors’ fee specified in each of the existing service contracts
of Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis, and Mr. Wang
Bing is HK$400,000, HK$400,000 and HK$400,000 respectively.
The basis of determining the Directors’ fee was based on the mutual
negotiation between level of the Directors with reference to the
range of prevailing directors’ fee for directors of listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis,
and Mr. Wang Bing do not have any relationships with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company, except Mr. Shen Xiaoling is a minority shareholder
of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 26 to 32 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years. The Non-executive Director has
service contract with the Company for a fixed term of two years. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company for a fixed term of one year. All the service contracts
with the Executive Directors and the Non-executive Director may be
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the Director service contracts, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and Mr. Han Li also have other service
contracts with the Company and its subsidiaries. The emoluments
specified in other service contracts with them are determined by
the remuneration committee of the Company with reference to
their respective qualification and experience, responsibilities to be
undertaken, and the prevailing market level of remuneration of similar
position.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, subject to the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, every Director shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses
and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors
of the Group.

BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the covenant of the 2017 Senior Notes of the Company,
there are specific performance obligations imposed on the
Company’s controlling shareholders which require that each of Mr.
Han Jingyuan and ArcelorMittal should directly or indirectly retain
at least 20% of the total voting power of the voting stock of the
Company. As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding aggregate
principal of the 2017 Senior Notes amounted to nil. 2017 Senior
Notes was fully redeemed on 17 November 2016.
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BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (continued)

On 25 January 2016, the Company commenced the offer to
repurchase for cash and consent solicitation relating to any and all of
its outstanding 2017 Senior Notes.

The offer expired on 22 February 2016. A principal amount of US$
32,212,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had been repurchased and
cancelled by the Company. Consents from holders with respect to
principal amount of US$ 68,107,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had
been obtained. As such, the Company entered into a supplemental
indenture embodying the proposed amendments (“Supplemental
Indenture”) on 24 February 2016 and the Supplemental Indenture
becomes effective on 26 February 2016.

Following the completion of the repurchase, the outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is US$
79,156,000 and the related specific performance obligations were
removed.

On 15 April 2016, the Company further repurchased a total of
US$ 30,000,000 in principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes
and delivered for cancellation. The outstanding aggregate principal
amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is further reduced to US$
49,156,000.

On 17 November 2016, the Company redeemed in full an aggregate
principal amount of US$ 49,156,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes (“Early
Redemption”). Upon the completion of the Early Redemption, no
2017 Senior Notes remained outstanding.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interest and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENBENESEARE®)
SECURITIES (continued)
Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company: AR B M AR A RERS ¢
Interests in
underlying Percentage
shares of the

pursuant to Company’s

Interests in Shares share  issued share
R ER options capital
Corporate Personal RIBH A E {5AR27  Long/Short
Interest Interest EHRERS BRITRAE position
ARER AR HRER MBS /%R
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 1)
BHUR LA (1) 1,317,502,849 - - 44.94% Long (4F)
- 2,800,000 22,500,000 0.86% Long (4F)
Mr. Zhu Jun
KERE - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long ()
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
LER T E - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long ()
Mr. Zhu Hao
ERE - - 7,800,000 0.27% Long (4F)
Mr. Han Li
BHEE - - 5,400,000 0.18% Long ()
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Ondra Otradovec L4 - - - - -
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
G - - 6,600,000 0.23% Long ()
Mr. Wang Tianyi
TRERE - - 2,000,000 0.07% Long ()

Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
BET & (R =FE—NFAH—HEHE) - - - - -

Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on 15 July 2016)
FREERZE—F+ AT HHEZHE) - - - - -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

EENIBENESZRAE @

Y

RARBRMAERER B4 @)

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:
(continued)

Note: B

At 31 December 2016, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned
63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings Limited
(“Wellbeing Holdings”) and held 16.09% of the issued share capital
of Wellbeing Holdings on trust for the benefit of certain employees
of the subsidiary of the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially
owned 1,255,849,124 Shares, representing approximately
42.84% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Han also
beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of Chingford
Holdings Limited (“Chingford Holdings”) which beneficially owned
61,653,725 Shares, representing approximately 2.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

At 31 December 2016, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owns
2,800,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled
Share Option Scheme” below, at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors, chief executives and their associates of the
Company had any interest and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and Senior Notes of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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BEAN63.15% ) #Ex » WLAE 55 A5t
ARAMBARETRERENFZESE
Wellbeing Holdings® % 17 A% &
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted three share option schemes approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 17 May
2006 (“2006 Share Option Scheme”), approved by the Shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 20 December 2010 (“2010
Share Option Scheme”) and approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 15 May 2013 (2013 Share Option
Scheme”) respectively (collectively referred to as “Share Option
Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who are regarded as valuable human resources
of the Group or who have contributed to the growth and success
of the Group with their performance and other factors (e.g. their
years of service with the Company and/or work experience and/or
knowledge in the industry etc.) to contribute further to the Company.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise
of an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Schemes.
The Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting of
an option on a case by case basis taking into account of the relevant
factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers appropriate.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the Share Option
Schemes to each eligible participant within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders
approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years from their respective dates of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.

The consideration payable on acceptance of the options granted to
an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is HK$ 1.00.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes upon exercising of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised is 234,670,000 Shares, representing
approximately 8.01% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2006
Share Option Scheme are 290,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.91% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2016. Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option
Scheme includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive
and whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-
time or part-time) of any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether
on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid). Details of the share options outstanding
under 2006 Share Option Scheme were as follows:
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options during the lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise hefore the at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2016 2016 2016 2016 the Company
REZ
S E R R

R ZE-RE T2 ZE-5%

ZE-RE 1B =t-BL t2F EREEE

24 -A-B  Zt-BLt EBREFE/ =t-8  RBEALAF

RYBAMH ATEH  EERET HE/&NH AfER RAWBRE

RFR  OEHE TEE SRUWE ERERE NBEREZE  EREZR  BEREHE  S4EMM
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT

Mr. Han Jingyuan 20092024 2008/2/24 13 124 2900000 - - 2800000 0.10%
BHALE o

~
T

2019/2/23

20101126 201012/20 300 3.00 6,000,000 (6,000,000) - -
to (Note 1)
S (1)
2016/5/16

Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

ey
==t

2019/2/23

Mr. Shen Xieoling 20002124 2009/2/24 139 124 2600000 - - 2600000 0.09%
MEREE o

oy
*

2019/2/23

Mr. Zhu Hao 2009/2/24 2000/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

S

2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENERERSE 2
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of *the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise before the at 31 December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2016 2016 2016 2016 the Company
REZ
MEE  ZEF-RF i

B ZE-RE T2ZF  Z5-5%
ZE-XE t=F  =t-Bt tZF  ERERE
2 -A-B  Zt-BL EEREFE/ Zt-8  RBEAAF
RFEAH ATEH  EERET HE/%N0 AEN REHBE
R¥E  WEHE TFE SRATE BRERE NEREBE  BREXE  BREZE  HNESM

HK$ HK$
A7 A7
Mr. Han Li 200912/29 2010/3/29 284 2.1 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 0.05%
Bhtk fo
Y
2019/12/28
Mr. Wong Man 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.9 1.24 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
Chung, Francis to
ENRRE )
2019/2/23
Employees 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.04%
EE to
Y
2019/2/23
Employees 200912129 2010329 284 277 115,050,000 - - 115,050,000 3.92%
[E8 fo
S
2019/12/28
Total
A3t 136,550,000 - (6,000,000 130,550,000 4.45%
Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2016, 6,000,000 options Hit1: REBEZZT /\¢+ A=+—8H
were lapsed. ¢f£ ,000,000 17 B J 4 2 2K

Q
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the Company can issue
options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme are 146,486,250 Shares, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016.
Eligible participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme includes
all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of any company in the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an employment
or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid
or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors to have
contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest. Details of the share
options outstanding under 2010 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

DR R B IRER &)

BBE-_T—ZTFEREE - ARFA]
BTERE UEREBE-_Z-—ZTFE
RIEAE S TREMNEBREEITSE
e AT 25 1T 89 IR 17 48 20 = 146,486,250 AR
BH EEARRAR=ZZTE—XRF+_A
=+ —HHBEBITRENS% - —F—F
FHERESINAERZAERELRR
ARRES(ERIITESIIFNTES
RERESEL) AEBAEMKE AT
FAEBEMAKE RRIFERAERD
ERAEENEES(ERI2BIFRE)
(T EEREAN A AR BN
ERREXFH)INESRAHUAEET
AIKE ARSI ANEBERKERRFEA
BRAEZN W ERELEBOERA
T ZE-TFHEREFTE THRITE
HIBARIERT BT ¢

Closing
price No. of
per Share options
immediately  outstanding
Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at 1 January
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016
RZB-XE
R -A-A
RTAAN RATEN
R¥R  WARHEE i%E  shymE  BRENE
HK$ HKS
BT BN
Mr. Han Jingyuan 20110328 2011/04/27 3.08 3.08 9,800,000
BHERE fo
S
2021/03/27
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No.of exercised/ percentage of
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granted lapsed during options  Shares for
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31 December 31 December 31 December capital of
2016 2016 2016 the Company
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016 the Company
REZE
ZE-RE
i3 E =

ZE-RE Zt-AE RIE-AE
RZB-RE t2f EERM T2 BRERE
2 -f-B  Zt-AL BT/ ZT-B  REALTF
RFAAH RGN FERRT  HE/KHN ATEN  RANRE

BB OEHE TEE SRUFE EREHE NBRERE BEREZE  BREHE  BYEM
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT

Mr. Han Jingyuan 201200330 2012/06/30 203 201 9800000 - - 9800000 0.33%
ByARE o

ey
==t

20201219

Mr. Zhu Jun 2010/12/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE fo

S

202012119

20120330 2012/03/30 208 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

E2

202012119

Mr. Shen Xaoing 201012024 2010/12/24 3182 317 2600000 - - 2600000 0.09%
Ry o

oy
==

20201219

2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

ES

202012119
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016  the Company
REE
ZB-5iF
ez t=A

ZE-RXE Zt-HE RoE-RE
RZE-RE +=R EER 1= BRERE
25 -f-B  Zt-At B/ =t-8  RBEALE
R¥BaH ATEN  EEAET  HE/&HN ATEN  RAKRE
R¥E  ATEHE FE SHRAWE BREHE NEREZE  BREXE  RREEE  HAESM
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Mr. Zhu Hao 2010/112/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

ES

20201219

20120330 2012/03/30 203 201 2,600,000 -

to

ES

2020112119

2,600,000 0.09%

Mr. HanLi 20101224 2010/12/24 3182 817 1200000 -
Bhik 0

~
T

2020112119

1,200,000 0.04%

201200330 2012/03/30 208 201 2,600,000 -

to

ES

20201219

2,600,000 0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
BXREL

Mr. Wang Tianyi
IRERL

Employees

8

Date of grant

RFH

201012/24

2012/03/30

2012/03/30

201012724

Exercisable

period

TR

201012124

to

ey
==t

20201219

2012/03/30

to

S

202012119

2012/03/30

to

E2

20201219

201012124

to

ay
==

20201219

Closing

price

per Share

immediately

Exercise  before the
price  date of grant
b3

RTHAM

ik SRYHE
HKS HKS$
AR AR
3182 317
208 201
208 201
3182 317

No. of
options
outstanding
at 1 January
2016

RZ8-RE
-B-H
RATEN

BREHE

2,300,000

2,300,000

2,000,000

17,400,000

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2016

REz
ZE-XE
=R
=t+-AL
FEART
MEREHR

No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2016

REZE
ZB-5iE
=
=t-Ai
FER
BT/
i/ KM
FlEHE

LRGSR BRER &)

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2016

RZE-5E
=8
=t+-8
RTEH
BREHR

2,300,000

2,300,000

2,000,000

17,400,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for

the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERE
RtERLE
RAfRE
fnEat

0.08%

0.08%

0.07%

0.59%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016  the Company
REE
ZB-5iF
ez t=A

ZE-RE Zt-BLE RZE-AE
RZE-RE t=f EER t-f ERERE
2 -A-B  =t-At =51 %4 Zt-B  RERLTF
BT A RGN EEART  HEE/KHN RATEH  RAKRE
RFR  AHEDE e SRETE  BREHE NBREZR  BREZE  BREHE  SAESM

HK$ HKS
B B
Employees 2012/03/30  2012/03/30 2.03 201 41,120,000 - - 41,120,000 1.40%
E& to
3
202011219
Other Participants 2012/03/30  2012/03/30 2.03 201 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - -
EfhpaE to (Note 2)
E (fit2)
202011219
Total
At 106,120,000 - (20000000 104,120,000 355%
Note 2: 2,000,000 options were lapsed during the year ended 31 #Hit2: REBZEZE-_ZT— X "F+-A=+—H

December 2016. IEFEA 2,000,000 (7 ERED %k
B o
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme are 146,571,250 Shares, representing 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2016. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option Scheme
includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and
whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time
or parttime) of any company in the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors
to have contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest. As at 31
December 2016, no options were granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme.

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

LRGSR BRER &)

BIBE-_T—=FBREE - ARF]A]
BITHRE  UWERBE_Z—=FERK
RIS TR EHOM B BRERITHER
Al T EITHAR (D B85 146,571,250 %
Bm - HERARGTRZE—ARF+=
A=1+—HBE#ETRANE% - —FT—=
FHERESINAGERZHAERIERR
AERES(ERIITIENITRERE
BB~ AEEEMAKE QAR HAEE
FAKEARHEERA RN EMNELE
WEIE B (Bm i ecR) (TmikiE
A AR EESIUNE M ARRE SR
FINREERREAEEERKE AT
K AEBERKE R RIIFERA BT
FREBELEMOERAL - RZF
—ANF+ZA=+—08 BMERE_-F
— =R B L IR -

AR E B S AT BRI A #
IEHRERM T2 25

ESRBRODESFHNER

Bk L XS - RF REMERE - 5%
BEENESARFSENERBIRD
TNAEN FREREBBEARRFR
EEMEA BB REFMERE
A RITEEARFERN  MARRK
HAEER AR - [/ XK B AR MM B
NEBER AR R BUEARRRIE
= RESENRBIRHTN\ERNT
LR BEATEMEAB B AZSER -

EXEH
B £ SCPR I ER S Ko & OF B 755 ¥R R Bl 7E 44
PR BRI R S5 45 B B SR S EL AL AAT Y

BARNREALERRRASENBER
BRI EREREL

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

91



92

Directors’ Report EE£ 54

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
are as follows:

Number of

Name shares held
£ FrERAEA
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG 1,377,491,891

(“AM Holdings AG”) (Note 1)

(T AM Holdings AG J) (f&3£ 1)
Wellbeing Holdings 1,255,849,124
Note:

(1) At 31 December 2016, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs. Usha
Mittal beneficially own 37.38% of the issued share capital of
ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds the entire equity interest in
AM Holdings AG, which beneficially owns 1,377,491,891 Shares,
representing approximately 46.99% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Saved as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities sections, at 31 December 2016, no person,
other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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of the Company’s
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had conducted a review of the related
party transactions of the Group and is satisfied that all connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have been
properly reported and complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or
are ongoing for which relevant announcements and independent
shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been made and obtained
by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and disclosed in the Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company where applicable.

Connected transactions

On 1 April 2016, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Special Steel
Company Limited (“Jinxi Special Steel”) entered into the Share
Transfer Agreement with Qianxi Xin Ding Da Trading Company
Limited (“Xin Ding Da”) relating to an acquisition pursuant to which
Jinxi Special Steel has agreed to acquire from Xin Ding Da and Xin
Ding Da has agreed to sell to Jinxi Special Steel the entire equity
interest in Qianxi County Jinxi Wantong Ductile Iron Pipe Limited
(“dinxi Wantong”) for the Consideration of approximately RMB
262,843,700 in accordance with the terms therein contained. Jinxi
Wantong was a wholly owned subsidiary of Xin Ding Da which
is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Xin. Mr. Zhang Xin is a deemed
connected person of the Company as he is the nephew of Mr.
Zhang Yuhai who is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of being a director of Tianjin Juli Trade Company Limited (“Juli
Trade”), Jinxi Special Steel and Qianxi Xinhaiyuan Trade Company
Limited (“Xinhaiyuan”). Therefore, Mr. Zhang Xin and Xin Ding Da are
connected persons of the Company.

Continuing connected transactions

On 27 December 2012, Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited (“Jinxi Limited”) entered into a framework agreement
with Qianxi County Longba Charging Company Limited (“Longba
Charging”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, for the purchase of lime products and related
products from Longba Charging by Jinxi Limited and/or its
subsidiaries for the three years ending 31 December 2015.

REXZRGEBERS

RER > KRR BEITRTAE®EZHE
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HERSHBEZAE2HRKLET ETHRE
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A REFSBILREIE(NFEE) KR
RNARE I BHREM T 44 R EHFE (A0
) °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 29 January 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Longba Charging for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31 December
2018. The annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewal framework agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 will not
exceed RMB 130 million, RMB 130 million and RMB 130 million
respectively. The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended
31 December 2016 was RMB 130 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB 27.8 million (excluding VAT).

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Pingguan County Jinyin Charging Company Limited
(“Pingguan County Jinyin”), a company established in the PRC
and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, for the purchase of lime products and related products
from Pingguan County Jinyin by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries
for the three years ending 31 December 2015.

On 29 January 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Pingquan County Jinyin for a further term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31
December 2018. The annual cap for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the renewal framework agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 will not exceed RMB 7.5 million, RMB 7.5 million and RMB 7.5
million respectively. The annual cap for this transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 7.5 million. The total amount of
the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
nil.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 2 January 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Tangshan Jinxin Enterprise Group Limited (formerly
known as Qianxi County Jinxin Mining Company Limited) (“Jinxin
Mining”), a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
for the purchase of iron powder and related products from Jinxin
Mining and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries
for the three years ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for
this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB
140 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred
by Jinxi Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2016 was nil. Following the expiry of the framework agreement
on 31 December 2016, Jinxi Limited did not renew the framework
agreeement with Jinxin Mining.

On 4 June 2014, the Company entered into the iron and steel
framework agreement with Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. (“Oriental
Sheet Piling”), a subsidiary of ArcelorMittal, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, in which the Company and/or its subsidiaries would
sell steel products to Oriental Sheet Piling and/or its subsidiaries at
prevailing market prices for the three years ending 31 December
2016. The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB 139 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB 72.4 million (excluding VAT) (Note 44(b)).

On 6 January 2017, the Company entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Oriental Sheet Piling for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. The annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewal framework agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 will not
exceed RMB 150 million, RMB 150 million and RMB 150 million
respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 31 October 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Dong Fang Shen Huo Environmental
Protection Technology Product Company Limited (“Dong Fang Shen
Huo”), a company established in the PRC and currently owned as
to 81% by Mr. Wang Qinghong who is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Yu Lifeng, the general manager and director of Jinxi Limited, and
is a deemed connected person of the Company, for the purchase
of energy-saving products from Dong Fang Shen Huo and/or its
subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for the three years
ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 100 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB 7.7 million (excluding VAT). Following the expiry of
the framework agreement on 31 December 2016, Jinxi Limited did
not renew the framework agreement with Dong Fang Shen Huo.

On 2 December 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Xin Ding Da, a company established in the PRC and
wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Xin who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang
Yuhai, a director of Juli Trade, Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and
is a deemed connected person of the Company, for the purchase of
iron powder and coke and related products from Xin Ding Da and/
or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for the three
years ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 70 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB 16.0 million (excluding VAT). Following the expiry of
the framework agreement on 31 December 2016, Jinxi Limited did
not renew the framework agreement with Xin Ding Da.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 2 December 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Jin Zhao Lai Iron Ore Mine (“Jin Zhao Lai”),
a company established in the PRC and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yugui who is the brother of Mr. Zhang Yuhai, a director of Juli Trade,
Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and is a deemed connected
person of the Company, for the purchase of iron powder and related
products from Jin Zhao Lai and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited
and/or its subsidiaries for the three years ending 31 December 2016.
The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB 60 million. The total amount of the aforesaid
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was nil (excluding
VAT).

On 6 January 2017, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Jin Zhao Lai for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. The annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewal framework agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 wiill
not exceed RMB 30 million, RMB 30 million and RMB 30 million
respectively. Jin Zhao Lai is currently wholly owned by Ms. Liu
Cuihong. Ms. Liu Cuihong is the wife of Mr. Zhang Yugui and Mr.
Zhang Yugui is a deemed connected person of the Company as
he is the brother of Mr. Zhang Yuhai who is connected person of
the Company by virtue of being a director of Jinxi Special Steel,
Juli Trade and Xinhaiyuan, all being indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 5 January 2015, Jinxi Special Steel entered into a tenancy
agreement with Jinxi Wantong, a company established in the PRC
and wholly owned by Xin Ding Da which is wholly owned by Mr.
Zhang Xin, who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang Yuhai, a director of
Juli Trade, Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and is a deemed
connected person of the Company, for leasing of the production
facilities of Jinxi Wantong for the three years commencing on 26
November 2014 and expiring on 25 November 2017 by Jinxi Special
Steel. The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB 204 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB 44.5 million (excluding VAT). Following the acquisition of Jinxi
Wantong on 1 April 2016, Jinxi Wantong becomes an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and ceased to be a
connected person of the Company.

On 30 Spetember 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Xinxuan Coal Company Limited
(“Xinxuan Coal”), a company established in PRC with limited liability
and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Xin who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang
Yuhai who is a connected person of the Company by virtue of being
a director of Juli Trade, Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, for the
purchase of iron powder and related products from Xinxuan Coal
and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for
the three years commencing on 30 September 2016 and expiring
on 31 December 2018. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 54 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred by Jinxi Limited and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 19.1
million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (c) according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter confirming nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages
93 to 99 of this annual report were not in compliance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE

The Group has committed to perform its corporate responsibility
for environmental protection and strictly comply with the national
regulations by continue investment in its production facilities
to reduce emissions and energy consumption during the steel
production process so as to minimise the impact of the production
process on the environment. The Group has also recognised the
local laws and regulations which are applicable to the Group’s
business to ensure the operation of the Group complies with all the
relevant local laws, regulations and standards.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Except for the installation of electrostatic precipitators and bag
precipitators at the production facilities, all the operating production
facilities are equipped with environmental control facilities in
order to reduce exhaust emission and meet the relevant national
standard. Production and domestic wastewater of the Company
will be recycled and subsequently used in the closed water loop. In
addition, measures for filtration and reuse are adopted to reduce
the production of waste mineral oil. For the waste mineral oil which
cannot be reused, we engage the experts with relevant qualification
and processing capacity to carry out the harmless treatment of
waste mineral oil for us as required by the state environmental
regulations. Smelting slag and solid waste produced during other
smelting process of iron making will be sold to other cement factories
or used as raw material in other production process. After the above
comprehensive treatment measures, the impact on the environment
shall be reduced.

The Environmental, Social and Governance report are set out on
pages 57 to 71 in this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the employees of the Group are valuable
assets. The Group offered competitive remuneration to attract and
retain the talented employees. Regular review on remuneration of
employees is made in order to retain outstanding employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Our relationships with major customers are contract-based. The
Group cherished the mutually beneficial relationships with our
customers. We will provide the best value to our clients to establish
and consolidate the Group’s reputation in the industry. Also, we
believe that maintaining long term relationship with the suppliers is
essential to the Group’s success. The Group will keep strengthening
the partnership with clients and suppliers, aiming to realise a triple-
win result.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has implemented policies
and procedures which related to our industry designed to ensure
compliance with the most relevant laws and regulations, but there
can be no assurance that the Group’s employees or agents will
not violate such laws and regulations or the Group’s policies and
procedures.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Trading in the shares of the Company had been suspended from
29 April 2014 when the public float of the Company fell below 25%.
The Stock Exchange indicated that the Company is required to
suspend trading in the shares of the Company until the minimum
public float is restored. Public float of the Company was restored on
27 January 2017 and trading in the shares of the Company had been
resumed on 1 February 2017. Details of public float status of the
Company have been disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 30 December 2013, 11 April 2014, 5 May 2014, 30 May
2014, 6 July 2014, 20 August 2014, 26 August 2014, 5 September
2014, 16 October 2014, 21 November 2014, 16 December 2014,
13 February 2015, 18 March 2015, 16 April 2015, 15 May 2015,
29 May 2015, 15 June 2015, 17 July 2015, 14 August 2015, 14
September 2015, 6 October 2015, 6 November 2015, 7 December
2015, 7 January 2016, 5 February 2016, 4 March 2016, 7 April 2016,
9 May 2016, 10 May 2016, 10 June 2016, 8 July 2016, 10 August
2016, 12 September 2016, 12 October 2016, 15 November 2016,
15 December 2016, 16 January 2017, 22 January 2017, 27 January
2017 and the announcement of the Stock Exchange dated 27 July
2016.
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PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED BE - HEREEAAT LTSS
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Apart from the repurchase and early redemption of a total of principal BroRlEBERIERIELRAG XA R

amount of US$ 62,212,000 and US$ 49,156,000 respectively of the 62,212,000 3 7T % 49,156,000 7T 2 —

2017 Senior Notes, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries E—+FEBEZEIN BEZZT—RF

has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed +TZA=+—HIEFE  ARAFRIHEME

securities for the year ended 31 December 2016. B ARMEREE HEXELRAR
AR ET#ES o

AUDITOR = EEm

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their FELOROKEBESETMERATRE - MEE

reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the RAFRE FBIEERAEER BER
forthcoming annual general meeting. L RIARIRIZERD

On behalf of the Board ERREFH

China Oriental Group Company Limited hERAEEEKRERAT*

HAN Jingyuan BHE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer BEETEFEEEHNTE

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017 8 —ZE—+E=A=+—8H

* For identification purposes only (B R
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_
pwc B RE

To the shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited FHBERAFEEERERATRE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RERZFMA A ERAF])
OPINION =R
What we have audited BHMEEAHAR

The consolidated financial statements of China Oriental Group HEEFEEEKRBRE AR TEETRE

Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) [ERA ) REMBARIATSGE &5
set out on pages 114 to 283, which comprise: B )5 ENRE 114 2 283 B Hy& FH 75
=~ BE:
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016; e RIZE—XRFF+ZA=+—HHMAE
HEEAGER
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then o HEZA IFEERNE MBS
ended;
° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the ° HEZA IFEERNASMHGEElEE

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year o HEZBIIEERNSHEREERK:
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ° HEZBIFEERNAHESRESR
ended; and N

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which o EHFBHmERNE  BEETES;
include a summary of significant accounting policies. BURBLE o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

FRLT R A Bt T o » R BOK K
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Hat# : +852 2289 8888 ¢ K : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment of property, plant and equipment

o Recoverability of loans and other receivables

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BREETTEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(“PP&E”)

WE -~ BB RE G REE

Refer to Note 2.10 “Accounting policy — Impairment of
non-financial assets”, Note 4 (a) “Critical accounting
estimates and judgements — Impairment of PP&E” and
Note 7 “PP&E” to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2016, certain PP&E of the Group had
impairment indicators, either because certain production
lines of the Group were shut down during the year, or
the Group has plans to shut down other production lines
in the coming year in response to regulations issued by
local governments to reduce excessive steel production
capacity. In addition, the economic performance of a
subsidiary engaging in the manufacturing of certain steel
products had been continuously below expectation. As a
result, the Group set aside a total impairment provision of
RMB 1,573 million against these PP&E at 31 December
2016, and recorded a corresponding charge of RMB 810
million to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year then ended.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
KN ETTNAEERRENEE

Our audit procedures on the PP&E impairment included:

We examined local government’s documents
and performed search on internet to corroborate
management’s assessment of the impact of local
government’s policies on the Group’s PP&E, together
with the appropriateness of management’s grouping of
these PP&E with the relevant CGUs.

With regard to the PP&E where the recoverable amount
was determined using FVLCOD, we checked, on a
sample basis, the estimated disposal considerations of
the PP&E by comparing the estimations with currently
available market price quotations or recent similar
transactions.
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Key Audit Matter
BRESE

In assessing the recoverability of the PP&E that had
impairment indicators, management identified the
relevant cash generating units (“CGUSs”) to which these
PP&E belong, and estimated the recoverable amounts of
these CGUs based on the higher of their fair value less
costs of disposal (“FVLCOD”) and value in use (“VIU”)
calculation. Management applied significant judgements
in determining the FVLCOD and VIU. The key assumption
adopted in the calculations of FVLCOD was the estimated
disposal considerations. The key judgements adopted in
the VIU calculation included:

e growth rates to extrapolate revenue and cash flows
within and beyond the budget period;

e gross margin; and
e discount rate.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
impairment provision and the significance of management
judgements adopted in assessing the recoverable
amount.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

B ET R E AR ETER

With regard to the PP&E where the recoverable amounts
were determined based on VIU calculations:

e We assessed the discounted cash flow method used
by management to determine the VIU by reference
to industry practices, and tested the mathematical
accuracy of the VIU calculations.

e We compared the input data used in the cash
flow forecasts against the historical figures and the
Group’s approved budget and its business plans.

e We challenged management’s key assumptions by:

e Comparing the revenue growth rates within the
budget period with the relevant CGU’s historical
growth rates and industry historical data; and
those beyond the budget period with our
independent expectation based on economic
data;
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
RPN ETT AR EERETSE

Comparing the gross margin with the
relevant CGU’s past performance, taking into
consideration of market trends; and

Assessing the discount rate by considering and
recalculating the weighted average cost of capital
for the individual CGU and comparable companies
in the steel industry, as well as considering territory
specific factors, such as risk free interest rate and
debt ratio prevailing in China market as at base
date.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
management’s key judgements applied in the impairment
assessment of PP&E were supportable by the evidence
we gathered.
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Key Audit Matter
BRESE

Recoverability of loans and other receivables

B R E A W SR 89 A B 1

Refer to Note 2.12 “Accounting policy — Impairment
of financial assets carried at amortised cost”, Note 4
(c) “Critical accounting estimates and judgements —
Impairment of loans and other receivables”, Note 18
“Prepayments, deposits and other receivables” and Note
19 “Loans receivables” to the consolidated financial
Statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had loans and other
receivables of RMB 448 million and RMB 563 million,
respectively. The borrowers or debtors of certain loans
and other receivables were in financial difficulties or have
commenced bankruptcy proceedings. A provision of
RMB 47 milion and RMB 316 million was set aside by
management against these loans and other receivables,
respectively.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
BN ETT AR ERERETEE

Our audit procedures on the recoverability of loan and
other receivables included:

e We assessed, on a sample basis, significant loans
and other receivables for indicators of impairment,
including reading the relevant contracts and
checking against the contractual repayment terms,
to independently identify loans and other receivables
which had objective evidence of impairment,
and compared such with management’s own
assessment.

e For significant loans and other receivables with
objective evidence of impairment:

e checked settlements of these receivables after the
reporting date;

e conducted background search to evaluate the
financial position of the borrowers or debtors;
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Key Audit Matter
BEETTEE

Impairments are recognised whenever there is objective
evidence that the present value of estimated future
cash flows measurable decreases and is lower than
the carrying amount of the loans and other receivables.
The recoverability of individually significant loans and
other receivables were assessed on an individual basis
based on management’s estimates of discounted
future cash flows. Loans and other receivable balances
without objective evidence of impairment were grouped
based on their credit risk characteristics for evaluation.
The collective impairment provision was determined by
management based on historical loss experience and
aging analysis, taking into considerations of industry and
other circumstances.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
loans and other receivables and the significance of
management’s judgements applied in assessing the
recoverability of such balances.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

EMWETTNAEERRETSE

e gathered information on collaterals, if any, and
assessed their values by comparing with the
available evidences, including valuation reports;
and

e discussed with external legal counsels and
obtained legal letters to understand and evaluate
the impact of the outstanding legal proceedings
with the borrowers or debtors on recoverability of
the balances.

e We assessed the appropriateness of management’s
grouping of balances based on risk characteristics,
and tested the collective provision estimation by
considering the historical bad debts amounts and
pattern, taking into consideration of factors such as
borrowers or debtors’ credit and market conditions.

Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s assessment and judgments of the
recoverability of loans and other receivables to be
supported by the evidence we gathered.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 &% B Eh ik &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 &% B Eh ik &

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang Kwong Fung, Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet §3t&E& &%

As at 31 December 2016
RZE-—RF+ZA=+—8°

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREEAMN  FESEANARE ([ARE])) FrhEl)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Investment in associates

Available-for-sale financial assets

Loan receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Properties under development
and held for sale
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Prepaid current income tax
Loan receivables
Notes receivable —
bank acceptance notes
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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Note
F=E

14
16
17

18
44(c)

19

17

22
22
23

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AF
193,123 140,422
8,038,406 8,260,356
6,549 6,990
94,370 79,464
55,632 8,836
489,555 109,605
= 400,000
13,000 23,000
155,880 377,949
9,046,515 9,406,622
1,419,113 1,313,712
3,334,350 2,494,024
482,813 1,004,526
1,405,123 1,395,156
16,671 5,828
28,814 38,128
401,000 =
2,339,669 2,452,299
6,220 10,233
387,458 131,951
890,617 1,773,697
1,290,199 2,337,547
12,002,047 12,957,101
21,048,562 22,363,723
311,853 311,853
2,192,131 2,192,131
1,703,308 1,670,302
5,048,806 4,340,142
9,256,098 8,514,428
108,443 397,734
9,364,541 8,912,162




Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued) HEEEER &)

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2016

(BRBEAN MESEINARE [ARE ) TLRAENL) R -_T—X"F+-A=t—H

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
Note 2016 2015
I —E-RE —T—AF
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings fE; 26 246,500 743,891
Other long-term payables H b= BAE T BR X 27 615,194 1,181,343
Deferred revenue IRIEYTA 28 78,107 86,317
Amounts due to related parties FE (< R8s 75 5k IE 44(c) 51,859 51,859
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFSHAR 29 42,204 -
1,033,864 2,063,410
Current liabilities i p=Ki
Trade payables FENE ZEEI 24 5,425,323 5,641,030
Accruals, advances and JEIRER - FEWEIE
other current liabilities EkEMTREHERE 25 3,368,510 2,846,169
Amounts due to related parties FE S A E 5 2B 44(c) 27,266 83,044
Current income tax liabilities EHSHAaE 122,918 102,795
Derivative financial instruments AT A 15,669 3,616
Other long-term payables — H i R EAFE(TBRRR
current portion — mENENMD 27 551,392 48,441
Borrowings & 26 1,134,507 2,658,484
Dividends payable FERTRZ B 4,572 4,572
10,650,157 11,388,151
Total liabilities FN=Ri 11,684,021 13,451,561
Total equity and liabilities EzRkBESE 21,048,562 22,363,723

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial el
statements. BB o

The financial statements on pages 114 to 283 were approved by the FU4E23EMAHTBREERE

Board of Directors on 31 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf. —tF=—HA=1+—HKEEZRHAELHMN
TEERREE -
Han Jingyuan Han Li
BRE Bh
Chairman Director
£ £
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss & #4fig#*&

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

Note 2016 2015
MosE —E-RE —T—AF
Revenue PN 5 26,427,443 21,071,538
Cost of sales SHERA 32 (23,753,492) (20,714,679)
Gross profit EF 2,673,951 356,859
Other income H AUz A 31 6,129 22,555
Distribution costs D EERAR 32 (118,571) (100,767)
Administrative expenses 1T E A 32 (782,289) (421,648)
Other expenses HithE R 32 (29,854) (20,000)
Gains/(Losses) from derivative TESMTI A ZWE
financial instruments (&18) 37 35,832 (5,040)
Other losses — net Hib e —F58 30 (656,959) (299,046)
Operating profit/(loss) SRR (B5E) 1,128,239 (467,087)
Finance income U AN 34 109,893 122,129
Finance costs BTSN 34 (182,162) (543,965)
Finance costs — net BTSN — FHER (72,269)  (421,836)
Share of results of associates il NI (1,022) (749)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax METEBIANER (&E) 1,054,948 (889,668)
Income tax expense et ER 35 (523,936) (46,349)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERF(BR) 531,012 (936,017)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: AL (B BB -
Owners of the Company PIN/NEI - S s ) 722,127 (766,503)
Non-controlling interests FEFER I MR S (191,115) (169,514)

531,012  (936,017)

Earnings/(Losses) per share for profit/ FRAQATERZEEE
(loss) attributable to owners of the BEAEER,(B58) WER

Company during the year Wi (ER)

(expressed in RMB per share) (Bl ARETT)

— Basic earnings/(losses) per share — ERREARWES S (EE) 38 RMB 0.25 RMB (0.26)
— Diluted earnings/(losses) per share — iRk (E8) 38 RMB 0.25 RMB (0.26)

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial %121 £ 283 BRI AR EM B MERNE
statements. PO TN
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income & #t4r & W= &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-BHLEE

Note 2016 2015
MI5E —EB-—XFE —Z—hfF
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEBRRN,(HE) 531,012 (936,017)
Other comprehensive income: HitiRE W ¢
Item that may be reclassified HgeE SR Em
subsequently to profit or loss mIE g
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AT ESREE
financial assets MR R EERE 15 1,521 3,979
Transfer of fair value losses previously NHEEHEESH
credited to reserve to statement BERSERETA
of profit or loss upon disposal of HENAREBESE
available-for-sale financial assets HEBRR 15 - (8,754)
1,521 (4,775)
Total comprehensive income for FEEHRAWRFEST
the year 532,533 (940,792)
Attributable to: BER :
Owners of the Company VNS T s sy ) 723,648 (771,278)
Non-controlling interests FEFR IR (191,115) (169,514)

532,533  (940,792)

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial F121 £ 283 BRI AZEMIEMEMNE
statements. BB o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &6tz 2 8%

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

118

(BRREEAN FESEIUARETLASN) H#E-T—AF+-_A=T-HLEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARTERFEARE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controling Total
Note captal  premium  reserves  eamings Total  interests equity
S
iz hx RbEE  AtEE  Brke @ Bn  ERA
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E-RE-A-BHER 311,803 2,192,131 1,630,006 5123067 9,267,067 514,789 9,771,846
Comprehensive income Gels
Proft orloss for the year EEaTEE - - - (766503 (766503 (169,514  (936,017)
Other comprehensive income AhahE
Fair value gains on avalleble-lor-sale W HEAREE
financial assets ML EERE 15 - - 3979 - 3979 - 3979
Transfer of fair value losses previously WA ESRIBE L ER
credited to reserve to statement BEMARBRAR
of proft or loss upon disposal of [BEFEEZERR
avallable-for-sale financial assets - - (8,754) - (8,754) - (8,754)
Total comprehensive income GAlEAT - - (4775 (166,508  (771,278)  (169,514)  (940,792)
Transactions with owners HERREENRS
Proft appropriation to WiETE (e
statutory reserves il 23 - - 1642 (1642 - - -
Establishment of a subsiolary FU-HHEARA - - - - - 500 500
Changes in ownership inferests B EHIERERT
in a subsidiary without change EERHBARMN
of contral FEiEER - - 28649 - 28649 51959 80608
Total transactions with owners ~ REREAHENR A - - 45011 (16422) 28649 52450 81,108
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-Z-RE+-fA=1-R
ke 311,803 2,192,131 1,670,802 4,340,142 8514428 397,734 8912162
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) & #f#Em# )% @)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BREEEAIN EBANARBTTAEN) BE-T— X F+A=+—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARRRERAEREL
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
3
hit ke RBEE EtRE ER4E a5t B8 ERA
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-B-BHEE 311,853 2,192,131 1,670,302 4,340,142 8514428 397,734 8,912,162
Comprehensive income GabE
Profit orloss for the year EERFINER - - - 12121 7122427 (191,115 531,012
Other comprehensive income e lE
Fair value gains on avalable-for-sale  FJtHEARARNAL
financial assets ks 15 - - 1,521 - 1,521 - 1,521
Total comprehensive income GelEaT - - 151 722127 723648 (191,115 532533
Transactions with owners HEGRRENRS
Proft appropriation to AT R fEDH
statutory reserves Ak 23 - - 13463 (13,463) - - -
Capital reduction of a subsiclary HO-HNBARER - - - - - (20,0000  (20,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries with HEMBARELE
loss of control g - - - - - 4,111 4,114
Changes in ownership interests R UEEHIENERT
ina subsidiary without change EERHBAR
of control fikER 100)) - - 18022 - 18022  (82,287)  (64,265)
Total transactions with owners ~ EERBEENRAAH - - 31485 (13463 18022  (08,176)  (80,154)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=B-xE+=A=t1-A
fites 311,853 2,192,131 1,703,308 5048806 9,256,098 108443 9,364,541

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial %121 = 283 E MM = AZEI I wT A
statements. B
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow §#R&RER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

Note 2016 2015
izt “E-NE —Z2-1f
Cash flows from operating activities RELETHNELSRE
Cash generated from operations EERRENRE 40 1,959,458 5,438,287
Interest received BIKFIE 44,047 75,622
Interest paid 27H 2 (226,316) (491,187
Income tax paid ERFEH (279,713) (183,437)
Net cash generated from operating activities ELBREEDNELFE 1,497,476 4,839,285
Cash flows from investing activities REREZDNEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEREE (210,283) (120,269)
Investment in an associate RE—RHBEAF (20,000) (9,581)
(Payments)/Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BE RSEN
plant and equipment (Fri30R)/FissE 40 (57) 181
Interest income from financial investments SRRARTAZFISMA
and instruments 54,119 (1,628)
Interest income from loan receivables REEREZHNEWA 48,924 20,006
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEMHNECRHERE
financial assets LS E = 15,617
Purchases of avallable-for-sale financial assets BEUHHMESREE (378,429) -
Proceeds from disposal of mining rights R 2 S50 = 180
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits of procurement of ESTEeRTARS
derivative financial instruments (), md (100,171) 32,356
Net outflows of financial assets at fair value through EAREEEAEZETA
profit or loss Bak/eREERNFE (245,616) (130,756)
Loan receivables granted to a third party M—BFE= HiERERER (1,000) (400,000)
Loan receivables repayment received from a third paty  —& &= FEBHEKER 10,000 290,000
Decrease in long-term bank deposits RERTETRD = 52,000
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR (7,209) =
Acquisition a subsidiary, net of cash acquired Wi —fMB AR GnkFER £ 58) (203,089) s
Net cash used in investing activities ARRBEBRR S8 (1,052,811) (251,924)
Cash flows from financing activities REBEZHNESRE
Proceeds from borrowings ERFETIR 3,754,331 8,701,231
Repayment of borrowings BEER (5,804,362) (13,505,816)
Capital injection by non-controling interests R T E - 500
Proceeds from sales and leaseback transaction ERREMR ZAEHE - 1,200,000
Cash paid for sale and leaseback transaction ERFEATZENEE (126,990) =
Decrease in amounts due to related parties e BB 2R R = (49,100)
Decrease in restricted bank balances pledged as {EARERITIEZ MR
security for current bank borrowings XBHBTERRD 649,864 524,091
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEEBRRSFE (1,527,157) (3,129,094)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ RERREZEBM (R )/ LINFE (1,082,492) 1,458,267
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ONETE R EER R 2 35,144 30,217
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year FURERALEEY 21 2,337,547 849,063
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year EXRBERBLEEY 21 1,290,199 2,337,547

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial £ 121 2 283 BRI 3E A2 E M iR KB
fri:::|
(=2

statements. — 55 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation
(“Reorganisation”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 2 March 2004.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of iron and steel
products, trading of steel products and iron ore and real
estate business. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC. The Group engages in real estate business in the PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 31 March
2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

122

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(‘HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordiance Cap 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of certain available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The following new and amended standards
are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2016:

HKAS 1 (Amendments) “Disclosure initiative”
is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. This amendment
clarifies guidance in HKAS 1 on materiality
and aggregation, the presentation of
subtotals, the structure of financial
statements and the disclosure of accounting
policies.

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) “Financial
instruments”: Disclosures condensed
interim financial statements” is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. This amendment clarifies
that the additional disclosure required by
the amendments to HKFRS 7 ‘Disclosure
— Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities” is not specifically required for all
interim periods, unless required by HKAS
34.

2. ERENBEBEE)

21 REEEE)

211 S BERBENEL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

HKAS 34 (Amendments) “Interim financial
reporting” is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. This
amendment clarifies what is meant by the
reference in the standard to ‘information
disclosed elsewhere in the interim
financial report’. It also amends HKAS
34 to require a cross-reference from the
interim financial statements to the location
of that information. The amendment is
retrospective.

Amendments and interpretations as
mentioned above are not expected to have
a material effect on the Group’s operating
results, financial position or comprehensive
income.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—AF+-A=ZT—HLLEFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

21 mEEEE)

QA1 BHERBENE

(%&)

(@)

STREBITER(E)

BAGTEAIE34
5 (12R]) [ EI 75
wE RZF—R
F-A—H=&ZZK
FAta A F R I 4
Mo WERIEEZ
Z [P By BHRE
BENEMES] &
ERWER - HR
CHES =R
5 34 5% B R P
B mERNE B
EMRXX3IA - %
ERTRBIIER] -

B EAERT k2
BrefAfEw
REEE - BB
MR E WS EE
BEAYE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEE(E)

AN BRI BERRKRENE

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued) (#&)

(b) Standards, amendments and b) R=FB—REEN
interpretations to existing standards BHEASEEBRN
effective in 2016 but not relevant to the A BEEAK
Group: BT R :

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on or after

RT3 E Rz %

BN EEREN

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016

BAMBRERAE 145
HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

BB BIEER 115 (1B3T)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendment)

BRGHERFE 16K RERGS
AR5 38 5% (1£3])

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendment)

BRGHERFE 16K REBGS
RIS 41 5% (183])

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

BAGETERIE 27 5% (1B3T)
KFRS 5 (Amendment)

BRMBHRELEF 55 (EFT)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BRMBHRELEF T (EFT)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BB ERIFE 195 (1B3T)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BERIBHRELNE 105 - BB
I REERIFE 1258 REBH
BREAERIZE 2855 (183T)

EERTERP
Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

WERE R FES 85t

Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation

WERBHENARXTEZER
Agriculture: bearer plants
B¥  £EMEY

Equity method in separate financial
statements

B M HRR T R E

Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations

FIELENFERDEERBKILE
REET

Financial instruments: Disclosure —
Application of the disclosure
requirements to serving
contracts

THIA : BE-HRESLER
BEME

Employee benefits

EEBA

Investment entities: applying the
consolidation exception

REER : BRAAH2ZBIIMER

-F

—=

-F

—=

-F

—=

-F

—=

-F

—=

-F

—=

- =

=

- =

=

- =

=

—RNF—-HA—H
1 January 2016

—RNF—HA—H
1 January 2016

—NF—-HA—H
1 January 2016
—NF—HA—H
1 January 2016

—RNF—HA—H
1 January 2016

—~"F—H—H

1 January 2016

—RNF—-A—H
1 January 2016
—RNF—HA—H
1 January 2016

—~"F—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BRBEERIN  FESEAUARETLAEN) BE_ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHEXRBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(E)

QA1 BHERBENE

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and () TIHEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E—-XE—-—HF—H
issued but are not yet effective for the BEBNTREE
financial year beginning 1 January 2016 MARER BRE
and have not been early adopted: 12 A BR 40 19 5 22 Al

RERIMEET

Effective for annual

periods beginning on

or after

RT3 RfRR 2%

B EERENR

Statement of cash flows

HKAS 7 (Amendment) 1 January 2017

BBGHERIE 7 (BFT) Rengx —T—+HF—-HA—H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income taxes 1 January 2017
BB G ERIFE 125 (1B7T) P35t “Z—+t%—H—H
HKFRS 9 (i) Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BB BIwEERE 5K () TEIA —F-N\F-A—H
HKFRS 15 {ii) Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BRIEHRELERE 165 (i) BES 7 HNEHEENBA —T-\§—A—H
HKFRS 16 (i) Leases 1 January 2019
BB B 4R 58 16 5% (i) nE “Z-NHF—A—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

BRMBRELNF 10K REE
SETERIE 285% (1£7])

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

REEEABERSERE M
HESFTAEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except the
following set out below:

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

While the Group has yet to undertake
a detailed assessment of the
classification and measurement of
financial assets, debt instruments
currently classified as available-for-
sale (“AFS”) financial assets would
appear to satisfy the conditions for
classification as at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) and hence there will be no
change to the accounting for these
assets.

EESHEERE(HE)

21 REEEE)

QA1 B BERBENEt
(%)

(© THEEMER
E-R"E-A—H
2 50 28 10 B B 4 B
MR BRI
2 51 5% & 10 3 %
ABER O

W 2 357 % B T 2% )
BB TR & Y
=B A R
BREKEAY
£ U THIRE
B -

() BEUERS
HERFE R[4
FT A ]

IR FT#E R £
He@EEM
TRABEND
B/AEMR
IEFERR - T
AREREETHY
AR E M & Bl
B ERFRE
HE -

B IR AN 55 (8] 1
AHERMEE
B BB E
#E 17 & 4 Y
f& - {8 B AT
DR A
S A #
ENEREE
B ERSRIREL
FRFA R
AN BERRA
REEFER
HEBH AKX
o 45 A i 28
(MEnnfEE
AFEAHE @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)

128

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(c) The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

21 mEEEE)

QA1 BHERBENE
(%)

(c) THEEMER=
T-XE—A—H
ERBRNTREE
MAREM BRE
1’ AT AN E
Bl REAWIEE:
(%)

0 BEMBHRS

(continued) ERIE IS &
BT E (&)
For the other financial assets held by HNA KB
the Group, the Group does not expect AR E A #h
the new guidance to have a significant BE AKEN
impact on the classification and TEEAFT RSl &
measurement of its financial assets. HEGREE
B D EFETE

BEAFE -

There will be no impact on the Group’s AR TR EE
accounting for financial liabilities, as HEWETER
the new requirements only affect the BAREER
accounting for financial liabilities that A HEZHE
are designated at fair value through AEREXHNE

profit or loss which are not relevant
to the Group. The derecognition rules
have been transferred from HKAS 39

BAEENEE
K HAKE
I AR E

“Financial Instruments: Recognition BT EEH AR
and Measurement” and have not been EE® 2/
changed. BEAEMAY
2o RIFTHER
HRASI BBB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

21 REEEE)

QA1 B BERBENEt

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and () TIEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E—XE—HF—H
issued but are not yet effective for RN REE
the financial year beginning 1 January MARENR BHARE
2016 and have not been early adopted: =2 A RN H HE
(continued) Al & %2 Bl BT :

(#&)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

) BEHBHRS
ARE OB &

BT HE (%)
The new hedge accounting rules ¥ e s R
will align the accounting for hedging Bl 7% 5 2 9 )
instruments more closely with the TEMEETE
Group’s risk management practices. I DA BB 2 A
As a general rule, more hedge BAEENR

relationships might be eligible for
hedge accounting, as the standard

RERER -

ER—RIER

introduces a more principles-based Al B =R
approach. While the Group is yet to SIAE ZRA
undertake a detailed assessment, it y=¥N= o
would appear that the Group’s current T LA B 2 )
hedge relationships would qualify as 78 1% A BE 75F
continuing hedges upon the adoption & ¥R EHE
of HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the Group o BEARE
does not expect a significant impact 5 A 1B H 5
on the accounting for its hedging MR BE
relationships. BB IEHRE

Z4E BI| 25 95k A&
KB AEE
& AT H) P
BRI HEE K
HIERIFER
Hi o Eitt -
NEBEHF
SHHEY T
BRI R
BEAFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)

130

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(c) The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

21 mEEEE)

QA1 BHERBENE
(%)

() THEEMER=
E—XE—H—H
EHRNTBREE
MAREN BRE
12 Al B A B FT &
Bl % % Bl f9 45 T :
(#&)

0 BEEMBRE

(continued) AERIZFE Q[ &
BMIAI(E)
The new impairment model requires REREE
the recognition of impairment KIZEHEE
provisions based on expected BR(TEHE
credit losses (“ECL”) rather than BB ] #ER
only incurred credit losses as is the WA -
case under HKAS 39. It applies to EEBENE
financial assets classified at amortised E#EK(RIE
cost, debt instruments measured at BB G 2R
FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS E395% ) o H
15 “Revenue from Contracts with AR IR
Customers”, lease receivables, loan A DR &
commitments and certain financial BMEE EARQ
guarantee contracts. While the Group nEBEFER
has not yet undertaken a detailed HEHTAH
assessment of how its impairment 47 & U 2 BY
provisions would be affected by the EBEHIA &
new model, it may result in an earlier v B T
recognition of credit losses. Bl ZE 1555 [ &2
EEZEHNE
HEEHIK
Al THER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements
and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature
and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for
financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. Based on the
transitional provisions in the completed
HKFRS 9, early adoption in phases
was only permitted for annual reporting
periods beginning before 1 February
2015. After that date, the new rules
must be adopted in their entirety.
The Group does not intend to adopt
HKFRS 9 before its mandatory date.

EESHEERE(HE)

21 REEEE)

QA1 B BERBENEt
(%)

(c) THERMBER=
ZE-X¥—-A—H
FEBR 18 B9 Bt IR
B ARER BRE
1R ATBR A B T
Bl R 2R :
(%)

0 BEMBHRS
R 9 &
BIEIE)

2RI IR N
T EREM
25| HE g o
T8 HA 1 el

SEEHEES
R T AR E
MEEFEE
THEEFE
BB Y & [E
ﬁq °

BB RE
AE BI| 28 9 5% 44
BE_ZT—N
F—HA—H
2 1& B A Y B
BEERE
B REESD
B 75 2R 5 ZE B
FEO5E A B IE
MIER - AR
FH_E—H
F— A —HFAl
F 16 HY & E )
EH D B ER IR
B - fERZ
B - #HRA
B B BER
4 o AREEE T
FT & fEsa w1k
B HRT R AR F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIREN) HE-Z-— ST _A=1t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures QA1 B BERBENE L

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and (¢ TIEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E—-—XE—HF—H
issued but are not yet effective for EHRNEREE
the financial year beginning 1 January HMAREN BARE
2016 and have not been early adopted: 12 57 IR AR 3T E
(continued) Al & % Bl W & 5T :

(&)
(i) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts iy BAFBHRE
with customers” £ A 155
[EEP 2 H
K& I EE R
WA
HKFRS 15 establishes a BB RS
comprehensive framework for 7% Bl 155
determining when to recognise ML T —fEl4R
revenue and how much revenue to SHEZR - AR
recognise through a 5-step approach. T 7E {n] BF T 28
HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance WA A &@i@
on capitalisation of contract cost F BRI IR
and licence arrangements. It also REZ DN o
includes a cohesive set of disclosure BBV B EmE
requirements about the nature, % B E155%
amount, timing and uncertainty of HELKAE
revenue and cash flows arising from b R R %
the entity’s contracts with customers. PRiR M B aE4E
The core principle is that a company 5l HEBE
should recognise revenue to depict HERERP
En)=2e: 00PN
ﬂliﬁiuwm |$
-8
sl A E’I@L
B — B R R
TR o DR
AR —RA
A e R U
A LA Tt 827
1P AGER
Bk R
EomERBT
AGIEGESCE:
Y BN A2 455 L
B ) sk iR %
mHKE &
s B ®RS
£ A 2155
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

F %A S W o
;)ﬂﬂn;}
ST
S
S| BRI

A X

o S R
Ly I
B
B

N
V1

st
Nl

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEGZE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures A1 B BRERBENE L

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and (c) THEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E-—XFE—-—H—H
issued but are not yet effective for BN REE
the financial year beginning 1 January MARER BARE
2016 and have not been early adopted: 12 A0 B 4 M9 FT %
(continued) Al & % B & 7T :

(#&)

(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts iy BEHBHRE
with customers” (continued) £ A E£155%
[EEE P 2 [H
K& A EER

WA (&)
the transfer of promised goods or B DA BT A U2
Services to the customer in an amount ANER| : BB
that reflects the consideration to SR 18
which the company expects to be SRTWA | &
entitled in exchange for those goods BB EA
or services. HKFRS 15 replaces F115 [ T8
the previous revenue standards: B KB
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 W A T 58 B fiR
“Construction Contracts” and the = BH A
related Interpretations on revenue BB T
recognition: HK (IFRIC) 13 “Customer BZEE)E
Loyalty Programmes”, HK (IFRIC) 15 135 [ B &
“Agreements for the Construction HatEl - &
of Real Estate”, HK (IFRIC) 18 75 (B B Bt 7%
“Transfers of Assets from Customers” EREZE
and HK (SIC) 31 “Revenue—Barter g)E155% =
Transactions Involving Advertising E 2R
Services”. HKFRS 15 is effective for &= BB(H
annual reporting periods beginning on BB T
or after 1 January 2018. BZXE8)%
18R [ FEFEE
EBE|ILE
) e
31
w
#J
H
M

P2l
oy

51555 5
—E-N\F—
A—Bs 2z’
F 16 M & E 1)
EHAAE Y o

Annual Report 2016 —F—/N4E4EHR 133

.

]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)

134

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(c) The following new standards and

21 mEEEE)

QA1 BHERBENE
(%)

() THEEMER=

amendments to standards have been E—XE—HF—H

issued but are not yet effective for EREBRNMBREE

the financial year beginning 1 January MAREM BHERE

2016 and have not been early adopted: R ATRAH HE

(continued) Al & 2 B W& T :
(#&)

(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” (continued)

iy BBEHBHRE
4 Bl 1557

[EEP ZH
B & 40 EE A B
WA (&)
Management is currently assessing the E1EEIR A
effects of applying the new standard JFE FH 3 ZE Bl
on the Group’s financial statements SE B HRE
and has identified the revenue from W E I
sales of services, revenue from sales B E AR 75 U
of properties and revenue from A HERFH
construction contracts that are likely to EWRAKRIRR
be affected. The Group will make more BHUAZ R
detailed assessments of the impact IR AT R X B
over the next twelve months. T8 K&
HERKE =
(EPEEp-Z- 2=
B S AR FT
filg o
HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial BB IEHRE
years commencing on or after 1 7 Bl 51558
January 2018. At this stage, the group BHMENR =T
does not intend to adopt the standard —N\EFE—H—
before its effective date. Hokz & FMe
H B B B R
e BAE A
=SEEER =
£ 4 38 B B Al
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEGZE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures A1 B BRERBENE L

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and () TIEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E-—XFE—-—H—H
issued but are not yet effective for EHRNTREE
the financial year beginning 1 January MARER BARE
2016 and have not been early adopted: 2B B AR BT E
(continued) Al & % B & 7T :

(&)
(i) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (iy BEHBHRE
7 Bl 1655
Eizk=g!
HKFRS 16 will result in almost all ERMBERE
leases being recognised on the 4 Bl 1657
balance sheet, as the distinction HEHETES
between operating and finance leases FrEMHERE
is removed. Under the new standard, EBERNE
an asset (the right to use the leased 7R A E
item) and a financial liability to pay EHmEMEE
rentals are recognised. The only B &l 5 2 4% i
exceptions are short-term and low- Bro 1R IE %
value leases. MR BE
(ZMEBEH
B {55 FA A ) B2
XNEeNE
L=
R o ME— RIS
& A E AR
EEHE -
The accounting for lessors will not HEHEANS
significantly change. TERESTE
BEERKE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)

136

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(c) The following new standards and

21 mEEEE)

QA1 BHERBENE
(%)

(c) THEEMER=

amendments to standards have been E—XE—HF—H

issued but are not yet effective for EREBRNMBREE

the financial year beginning 1 January MAREM BHERE

2016 and have not been early adopted: R ATRAH HE

(continued) Al & 2 B W& T :
(#&)

(i)  HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The standard will affect primarily the

(iy BEMBHRE
4 Bl 1657
[HHE (&)

BEZERIH £ B

accounting for Group’s operating FEAREEK
leases. As at the reporting date, the 2HRENEE
Group has non-cancellable operating B RIE
lease commitments of RMB 147.5 H  A&EBEH
million, see note 42(c). However, the A BB /Y
Group has not yet determined to what BT SR IE
extent these commitments will result A R #1.475
in the recognition of an asset and a B o B K
liability for future payments and how £ 42(c)) ° A
this will affect the Group’s profit and m - NEBD
classification of cash flows. IR TE 7% K
EREWEE
ME BRI
R IER ) IE
B A m
AR EAREE

BRI E AR &

J2x B2 /K
MEDE o

Some of the commitments may be T AESE
covered by the exception for short- A BRI (B
term and low-value leases and BEHEMER
some commitments may relate to T R
arrangements that will not qualify as BIFEB BT 5

leases under HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after
1 January 2019. At this stage, the
Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK (IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

2. ERENBEBEE)

21 REEEE)

QA1 B BERBENEt

(%&)

()

THEEMBERZ
Z2-X¥—-A—H
R I8 B9 B B E
BARER BRE
RATER A B
IR 2RI NIEET -
(&)

(i) BEHBRE
% Bl F165%
(A& (&)

1 37 2 ) o )
HER=_ZT—A
F—-—H—H3k
ekt 3h =0k
BF E BN o
BAT A%H
TR = E A
% B HAATER 4%
SR o

BB E A R AE R
B BB B TS %
Q&S (BRI
WERERE®)—
BEBRMEHAS
BEEAYE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 KBAFR
2.2.1 Consolidation 2.21 &6t8RE
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured B AR EAEEFZS
entity) over which the Group has control. The ENER(RELABTEE
Group controls an entity when the Group is ) EAEBRREZRHES
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from A BE T 3 A] 2 o] SRR e
its involvement with the entity and has the ability [E sk = B RER - WaEE
to affect those returns through its power over the BEAEZEENENIZE
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date ZE B - AREB RN Z
on which control is transferred to the Group. They ERAEREGIE - WBEA
are deconsolidated from the date that control AR EEE E RS E
ceases. Z BREHFARR Wi
HiliELR IF 2 B IEA O
AR ©

(a) Business combinations (@) EBEH
The Group applies the acquisition method AEBREABEZE
to account for business combinations. The BEKEFAR-
consideration transferred for the acquisition BE—XMBRA
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the FrEznRE: A
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to FREREE - i
the former owners of the acquiree and the W HRIFTE A
equity interests issued by the Group. The EEMNAEE EAX
consideration transferred includes the fair SEBETHRARE
value of any asset or liability resulting from E=HWAREBE T
a contingent consideration arrangement. EENONRESRFEL
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and BREZHMESE
contingent liabilities assumed in a business NEMEBEEMEE
combination are measured initially at their fair MARBE £F
values at the acquisition date. HBEMRMEED
Al 3R & E DA R P
EENBERSKE

B BEUKRSE
REBEEBODA
EBEE -

138 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—AFt-A=T—BLLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

EESHEERE(E)

22 MEBRE (&)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling

interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-

by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling

interests in the acquiree that are present

ownership interests and entitle their holders

to a proportionate share of the entity’s

net assets in the event of liquidation are

measured at either fair value or the present

ownership interests’ proportionate share in

the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s

identifiable net assets. All other components

of non-controlling interests are measured

at their acquisition date fair value, unless

another measurement basis is required by

HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest

in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are

recognised in profit or loss.

2.21 §6t8RE (&)

(a)

EBAs(E)

7 5% B 12 M8 5 Y
HE BERERK
877 e E I JEsE I
MRS - WURE TS
B SEFE IS R
RE®OHEAERE
@ Y TFHEA
— BB BRI
EHEEBNFE
EARAAEE
BREE AT ¥ g
AR EES
ORIl D= =)
HE R & B L Pl A
o JRIEH R
B P B EL i 4E B AP
REERHNA
REEFTE  KF
BB HmE £
HRE WA AR A
BEEHE -

WRE R ARB R A TS
B R 8Y

4 3= %5 & 0F 7 B& B
T W T
R A BB U EE T B
RHWEE BER®E
BEREEEBEN
AERRAEE:
F Ut 2 A B AE fa]
A 3 B R 0 18 6

=7
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of profit or loss
(Note 2.9).

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2.

EESHEERE(E)

2.2

BT (E)

2.21 §6t8RE (&)

(a)

ERast(#)

AEEMBEMNE
[EE TR SR
BEBRAAREER
R AR R
BEXBBEHRIR
REQAEEER
HE - BRREE
& 5t % R 395
TRTARNEBRE
R DBR/EZN
SARREBAREN
APE - MEBRE
BRERT AR

PrEgas 8 - Ik
f8 77 B0 A fo] FE 42 I
MG BREM
55 B # U BB 0T Y
P A #E 25 70 W B
B AR EEELY
P U B B AT 38 Bl &
EFENAAER
By &R 10 A & B 5
R MEZEBA
MIERT » FreEE
RE-  ERERBIFE
i) 14 7 25 B2 5% Bl P
RSt EMNAM
SR AT B I B
REEFENAAR
BB EERAUE
BEEBRmRTER
(BfzE2.9) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

2. ERENBEBEE)

22 MERAE(E)

2.21 §4t8RE (&)

(a)

(b)

RBAs(E)

SEANRS - &
BHREERRRER
7R RTER W e T
CASH 3K o K FE 78 6
BT IAHHE - IR
EXZRERUFME R
BERENEZE-
MEBARNE®RE
HERTERE
PAE £R B2 7K 52 8 &Y
SRR B

TEHREZHE
ZHEBLR AR
R E

TERREEGE
2 FEYR M R A R
P ABRFIERE S R
5 — BAR & R kg
aREEZFNE
REFAELETR
Ze EREMRE
AR EEEREE
E R FE A5 Y B X F)
BEFEREEZ
ERYIEEDS [
FEHIERRHE
Z BB TSR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MEBRR(E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 2.2.1 &6t8RE (&)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (c) HEHEAR
When the Group ceases to have control, PN S S
any retained interest in the entity is re- W+ R E RS 2 EA]
measured to its fair value at the date when {REB M E IR IR A bl
control is lost, with the change in carrying BEHZARBEE
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair tE 0 BREREE
value is the initial carrying amount for the FE)EIBEER o
purposes of subsequently accounting for PLEZ ARSI {ER =
the retained interest as an associate, joint ANEl - BBELES D
venture or financial asset. In addition, any REEZRBER
amounts previously recognised in other ERAEEAVRE
comprehensive income in respect of that ME1E ° Eoh - AT
entity are accounted for as if the Group had E AR & W iR e
directly disposed of the related assets or ZERBEE EE
liabilities. It means that amounts previously BRI EEE '
recognised in other comprehensive income BEHEEREENS
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred EZHAAER - ILE
to another category of equity as specified/ BRICRIE B AbAR S UK
permitted by applicable HKFRSs. wER L BN D

BERSIREER
RV BHHELELZ
HE/ R ERES
—JAfEa
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEENBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MIBRAR (&)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 B B W|EK

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends

R B AR 2 B LKA
HIBRREAR - NATRE
REREERBERAE - &
RARR B UK I B
EREE  GtEWEBRR

AR B A R IR & FT 1S AX
ERRHAME AR &R

from these investments if the dividend exceeds the GWERTE - EEEL
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in B RERP R EREE

the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial

=R A P R T A
RENFEE (BRERE)

statements exceeds the carrying amount in the ZEEEER - B|ZESHE
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s N AR E 1T R E DR
net assets including goodwill. = o

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill,
if any, identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2.3

]

e RNREASEHEREX
TENEBEZHENER B
BHHEH 20% E50% REER
Pt - REEHE R A REA
BEGTAAR - REZER
G5 - ARARERVIRKA
FERR - W SRR AR E B LA TE R
BERARKREENRKRETH
Ba R - NAEBEREZ QT
ZEREBERBEREAINE
2(mA) -

i P B 2 1% B) P B M AR R
BNREEATE  RARE
{178 2 BT B b 7 & W g8 o
RNSREH O BRERR (WNE

) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

144

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of results of associates’ in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Associates (continued) 2.3 HERTE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEREUARE T LREN)

(B =B -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the management committee (Note
5(b)) that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—AFt-A=T—BLLFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

N
~

2.5

7 B
BENRcRETANALEER
BERRABRENABERS
ZHA—B - EHARRNE R
ZBg (MEsb) EEFEEER
BRAHAESRERY B
ZEEDRRR -

SNEIRE

(a) ZhRERZIIEHR

REE S BB ANBR
KMIER A ER S
FIEMEZLBERENE
B(heeE® D E -
AT BERERNAARE
(TARE ] (RARHI
EEERASENZESE
BIET -
b) RER#ER
HNER G 1R 5 A RER
REHMERFHARZ
BERERNEEE - &
BWER S MmEENURE
LASNE BEM R EBEE
B FE R KA E Rin
H M A B INE W S K S
BEREHERRPER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIREN) HE-Z-—A"FT_A=1t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)

146

POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

25 HNEBRE(E)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued) b) RERE&RE)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate BELE FRAR R 2 1B 5 U e

to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within ‘finance cost’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within ‘Other losses — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities

BiERAHRER FEM‘%
PR ] R BIER - P E A
P 5 ek K B HRIG A B
Bk [ EAEE — 3]
M8k -

LAGNEE S B AL R 4R \*EZ%

denominated in foreign currency classified as Al E B S 2 EEE
available-for-sale are analysed between translation ZARBEEEEEHRE
differences resulting from changes in the FEE SR A BT 2 I

amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation

AEBEREMESFREE
BRZETUADN - B

differences related to changes in amortised cost BIH AR B 2 [E K ERR
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes SEBRERAER - ME
in carrying amount are recognised in other o BR T {E 2 85 4 I 72 B A,
comprehensive income. RE WP IER o

Translation differences on non-monetary financial FEBLMEENRBE

assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(i)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement

2. ERENBEBEE)

25 HNEBRE(E)

()

KB AT

SEETHERR(ES
RESBREERREZE
%) ZEE B’ A IR
2NEH - HXE R
RRBERIAT T ARG
28 :

) SHIH/MEER
EEAFIAERR
RS R
TERAE

i) BHEZRMAIIWK

of profit or loss are translated at average ARRAZIEFHE
exchange rates (unless this average is RipE . BE KT
not a reasonable approximation of the HER RS IEH

cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences

RBERXSHHZE
P RE RIE R
2 ARRRHH
ZERFTE I FUW
AR &

iy FIBEAIMEEZ

are recognised in other comprehensive EHERZEARN
income. H b 4R & W o 1
7
0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIREN) HE-Z-—A"FT_A=1t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 M - WEKZE

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, BIEET  HESRE AR

148

machinery, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, leasehold B HEYEEE LR
improvements and finance leased machinery are stated EHERSREEYE  BE
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. SR TR R L AR AT E K

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

B SRR o BE LA BRI E
ZIA B EREHNAEX -

HEgEMAERE /\EZ EERH#
IARREBENRRA IR IR

AREH Ffﬁlﬁﬁ B X 7N BE 5
AR E T EEEEEE
B AR B Sk iR R B S B 2 (A0
) o KR IEERBE R EME
BREE - I EMEERRE
BRAREENIMEEFEE &6
BRI -

Y BB REREOITE THE
FBBA TN {5 &1 AT {65 AR 4F HA #8 EL B
REERED BEZ R EBR
EmT

Estimated useful life {5 AT 55 FA EE 5
Buildings 10-20 years B3 10-20 4F
Machinery 5-10 years e 5-10F
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years BN 3-104F
Vehicles 4-10 years =] 4-104F
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years HEYERE 2-54F

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEFN - MESREINARETTREM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘Other losses — net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes the costs of construction, acquisition and
borrowing. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
available for intended use. When the assets concerned
are ready for their intended use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned.
There is no individual land ownership right. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums
paid for such right and the improvements related to the
land are treated as prepayment for operating lease and
recorded as leasehold land and land use rights, which
are amortised over the lease periods using the straight-
line method. The leasehold land and land use rights are
stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

HE-T—R"E+A=1T—HLEFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.6

2.7

ME -~ BB KRR E (&)

HEENKREESNEMA
Wl £ 7R - R E AR B R B A
WERIWE & E (5 2.10) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIREN) HE-Z-—A"FT_A=1t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)

150

POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Investment property

The property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the entities in the Group, is classified as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that
property for measurement or disclosure purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software costs recognised as assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of 3 years.

2. ERENBEBEE)

29 EREE

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

2.

P ERIAUARE T ITRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Unpatented technology

Acquired unpatented technology costs recognised
as assets are amortised using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful life of 8 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life-for example,
goodwill-are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading because
the financial assets do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months, otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘loan receivables’, ‘trade receivables’, ‘notes
receivable — bank acceptance notes’, ‘other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
in the balance sheet (Notes 2.17 and 2.18
respectively).

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 &MEE (&)
2.11.1 Classification (continued) 21141 2 (&)

154

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

() AHHEENERE
E

Available-for-sale financial assets are non- AIEEENSRmE
derivatives that are either designated in this ERETETLE:
category or not classified in any of the other 5 7€ A Itk 38 Bl 2k I
categories. They are included in non-current moEBE AEME
assets unless the investment matures or o EE R o 1% & B
management intends to dispose of it within RIERHEENA
12 months of the end of the reporting period. T BIEREEKRE
KEEERENW
HEHIARE 1218 A

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Available-
for-sale assets of the Group include investments
in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, which are
measured at cost less provision for impairment, if
any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 ©REE (&)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 2112 RARTE (&)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the derivative financial instruments are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as a separate item in the period in which
they arise. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of other financial instruments in
financial assets or liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss category are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘Other losses — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
‘Other losses — net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as part of other income. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

TESRIARAEESE
BELNRSENEERE
PHEERANZIRELH
FHEIIRE - RARE
EFfE A EE e AR
reeMEENBEER
MEMERTIARREE
HPELN R EAERE
JIRNGHHRmRE [ Eit
BR-FE P

AHHERERIFEEE
SRR EEES  HH
flfr & Y e FERR o

fied T 4 6 R85 4 SOR
B - AR RER R Rat
RABEARBRT ARG
Ba R [HMER—F
&l

RIS Sci:)
HHEEFHF BN A B
BaR TR SEMUEA
B —&RfD o AT E RS
TRAEAMRBKAEAR
£% [ W B A 3R ) R N i S
B {E R E MU A R — &R 1D
REHHBRmR PR

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

155



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)

156

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRBEAN MESEINARETIREN) BE-T—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIREN) HE-Z-—A"FT_A=1t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 212 SRMEERME (&)
(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale (b) SERAHHESE
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting NE B 1E AR S AR ET
period whether there is objective evidence that HREESARBBEBRFZRAE
a financial asset or a group of financial assets BemEENIXECRE
is impaired. In the case of equity investments ERLERE - WEAEE
classified as available for sale, a significant or WoEARHEE  FE
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security AR EEEREENSRS
below its cost is also evidence that the assets BHE R E KA TN 3 — 18
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for RAHZELERBENFE -
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative BT ESRmEETE
loss — measured as the difference between the HEEE - 2t EERK
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any B AEER AR BED
impairment loss on that financial asset previously EE O RZERMEE A
recognised in profit or loss — is reclassified from R R RN EE
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment BEtE  BREEHRERS
losses recognised in the consolidated statement HWEBETER 8
of profit or loss on equity instruments are not FERREZNERTA
reversed through the consolidated statement of BEBEITZEBREE
profit or loss. IR o
2.13 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 213 TSI AR HEE

7

W m

LRI MITETAED
R EEVRER - I
ARBEENGE -
BERFZE  BURRLT
% Y ARERSEHMIA -

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are

D» D) ‘Iﬂﬂ

subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The

U W B
H R
M?ﬁ)&ﬁ?l—l

method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designed as a hedging E
an

instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged. =+ BIBUAA M hIE B
M o

For derivative financial instruments do not qualify for BT EBERETEH SR

hedge accounting, changes in fair value are recognised ERTESBRTAEmMS AR

immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or EBENZHEERS HIERSE

loss as a separate item. NERBEBIEE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEREUARE T LREN)

(B =B -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and the net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Properties under development and held for sale

Properties under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of
land use rights, construction costs and borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

Properties under development and held for sale
(continued)

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.16

BERTRSFELEYE(F)

ERTPEFFELENERBEN
MBEE  HEHEBMEERR
BREETHRABHERK
BREHERRID -

2.17 Trade, notes and other receivables 217 BWEZREF  RIEREME
B R

2.18

Trade and notes receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, notes and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade, notes and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. See Note 2.11.2 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for
trade receivables and Note 2.12 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

2.21

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit
or loss as other income or finance costs.
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162

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.21 Borrowings (continued) 2.21 B3 (&)
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the BrIEAN R B A IR R R T AE
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of BEEEBEEEMEHRER
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the D12ME R - BAIBRDBAER
reporting period. FEE -

2.22 Borrowing costs 2.22 fBEFRAA

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of finance lease and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
1o the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that
are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest
rate differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred
on foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are
estimated based on interest rates on similar borrowings
in the entity’s functional currency/forward currency rates
at the inception of the borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEREUARE T LREN)

(BRAAEH -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Borrowing costs (continued)

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the reporting
period.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.23 EHINELEFTSH (&)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEFEBH

Inside basis differences AITEE N EE
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the BELEFSHIRA B EEE
liability method, on temporary differences arising EEMBENFEREEE
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and & PR Tk B AR T (B
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial FELANEREZ5ER -
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities AT MBS A
are not recognised if they arise from the initial PEIRERREE LRI
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is BRER - BLEAMEERE
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition ERXS (T eEESEH)
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than R EES 8 BN HGRE
a business combination that at the time of the R MERSETTES
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable STEk R A S - BIRME
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined LA o IRIEFTSTERAE
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted HERAAMERKED &
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet W W BRELESH
date and are expected to apply when the related BESENIELEMSEHE
deferred income tax asset is realised or the BEEREREEEAN
deferred income tax liability is settled. T (AR MEE °
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only BEFSHEETISE A
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable BEAE AR 2K B =R Bt A i Bt
profit will be available against which the temporary bt B B PR = RE T AR
differences can be utilised. R o
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2.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liabilities where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits 2.24 EERA

166

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
Hong Kong employees make monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary (if any).

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group has arranged for its PRC employees
to join the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees payable
under the plan as set out in Note 33. The assets of this
plan are held separately from those of the Group in an
independent fund managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plan are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The
fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (hominal value).

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEREUARE T LREN)

(BRAAEH -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.28 Revenue recognition

(@) Sales of goods

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRRBEEBRN ESEINARETIREN) HE_T—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

()

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when the risks and rewards of the properties
are transferred to the purchasers, which is when
the construction of relevant properties has been
completed and the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers pursuant to the sales agreement
and collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated balance
sheet under current liabilities.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is
probable that the contract will be profitable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period.
When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included
in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable
of being reliably measured. The Group uses the
percentage-of-completion method to determine
the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the
end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred
in the year in connection with future activity on
a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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(RBEERN  FBESEIUARBTLAEN) BEZZ—"F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHBEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.28 WAWER (&)

2.29

(d) Sales of services

The Group sells logistics transportation and
customs declaration services. For sales of
services, revenue is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to stage of completion of the specific
transaction and assessed on the basis of actual

(d) HER®

AEBHE R E S MR
FABRTS - B B R 15 /O 35
& WARTIZERER
52 T B (IR BRI
2 R B AS 1R (A0 AR AR
B2 L PIETTRIE) - R

services provided as a proportion of the total 12 AR 7% 2 & 51T HA
service to be provided. R o
(€) Leaseincome (e) MHEWA

Lease income from operating leases is recognised
in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

2.29
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2.30 Dividend income 2.30 AR BEMA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive AR B A FE U R AR B B 4 A
payment is established. SRR ©
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.31 Leases 231 #HE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess or deficit of sales proceeds over the
carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the lease
term.

BAEREXE D R KB R
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.32

2.33

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.34 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
by weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been
issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.35 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require

the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees

are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of third parties to secure loans.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.35 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the
future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required
1o settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss within other operating expenses.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UBEKRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEABEZRE)
(a) Market risk (@) THEEE
()  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk ) ReERERAAE

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant floating interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s interest rate
risk mainly arises from Senior Notes and
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Senior Notes and loan
receivables issued at fixed rates exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Notes 19 and 26
respectively.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The major foreign exchange risk exposure
arises from the Group’s importing and
exporting activities and the Group’s
borrowings, which are mostly denominated
in United States Dollars (the “US$”). The
Group also has certain bank deposits,
financial assets and financial liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies,
mainly US$ and HKS$, which are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. The
foreign exchange risk is reduced where
the Group is in a position of receiving and
paying the same currency. The Group also
used foreign currency forward contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign exchange
risk for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The maximum exposures to the foreign
exchange risks are disclosed in Notes 17,
21, 24 and 26 respectively.

Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following table summarised the impact
of increases/decreases of cash flow interest
rate and foreign exchange rate on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 5 [ 42 B A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BAEEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEBEBRRZEGE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TEHEERERE)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) BUREIWRHE(E)
The sensitivity analysis for the cash flow IR & & T X @ b
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk is Kz HINBEE R B A i =%
based on the assumption that: Eom_ERNAT
& :

(@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/ @ F E&F R
higher from the year end rates with T/ A
all other variables held constant (for 15% ' 1 FT
example, 11.5% or 8.5% instead of EHEME S
10.0%); HRFDE
(40 :11.5%38k
85% - im 3k

10.0%)
(b) RMB had weakened/strengthened by b)) ARMHZE
10% against US$ and HK$ (pegged 7T & A T (B
with US$) with all other variables held X gC B 8 )
constant. RE/FAE
10% * mMET A
H b2 H(R

BETE o

Annual Report 2016 —F—/NE4EH 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—AF+-A=+—HLEFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBEBRERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEBEBRRZEE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TWHEERE)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) BRREIITHE(E)
Cash flow interest rate risk
BERERIEER
-15% +15%
Carrying
Amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
REE Al B Bevil B
31 December 2016 “B-xE+-A=1-H
Financial assets at floating REBTRTEN
interest rates SREE
Cash and cash equivalents BERRLEEY 1,200,199  (3,236) (3,236) 3,236 3,236
Restricted bank balances FRBIRTEH 890,617  (2,234) (2,234 2,234 2,234
Financial liabilities at floating &S EIFI=R:T 24
interest rates SREE
Bank and other borrowings FATREMAEH (646,500) 4,859 4859  (4,859) (4,859
Total (decrease)/increase AR (ED)/Bm (611) (611) 611 611
Foreign exchange risk
SME LB
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
RREE i B A B
31 December 2016 “E2-~Et-A=1-H
Monetary assets EREE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEREN 1,200,199 47,708 47,708  (47,708)  (47,708)
Restricted bank balances XBIRTEA 800,617 1,156 1,156  (1,156) (1,156
Trade receivables JEUNE ZEE T 482,813 6,201 6,201 (6,201)  (6,201)
Deposits and other receivables ®e REMEIGES 938,440 172 172 (172) (172
Monetary liabilities EaR
Trade payables ERTE S (5425323)  (5627) (5627) 56271 5627
Other payables Hiv R (479,273) (776) (776) 716 776
Borrowings &% (1,381,007)  (36,951) (36,951)) 36951 36,951
Total increase/(decrease) AN/ (BD) 11,883 11,883  (11,883) (11,889)
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. M¥EMEE(E)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEBERE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TWEHEERRE)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) SEELTHE(E)

Cash flow interest rate risk
BenE=mk
-15% +15%
Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE et 1 il 1

31 December 2015 ZZ-A%+-A=1-H

Financial assets at floating BEERNRTEN

interest rates SREE
Cash and cash equivalents BERESZEN 2337547 (BI77)  (BATT) 5977 5977
Restricted bank balances SRR 1773697 (4497)  (4497) 4497 4497

Financial liabilities at floating &S EIFI=:TEH

interest rates SREE
Bank and other borrowings BITREMAET (1206,280) 17,608 17,608  (17,608) (17,608)
Amounts due to related parties JERRR 2R (134,903) 401 401 (401) (401)
Total increase/(decrease) AREN/(BD) 7585 7535 (71535  (7,53H)
Foreign exchange risk
SNERR
-10% +10%
Carrying

amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

REE el 1 el 1
31 December 2015 ZE2-AF+ZA=1-8
Monetary assets EMEE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESZEY 2,337,547 66246 066,246  (66,246)  (66,246)
Restricted bank balances X IR T 1,773,697 4,769 4,769 (4,769 (4,769
Trade receivables EWE 585 1,004,526 28818 28,818  (28,818) (2881
Deposits and other receivables 7 REMRERR 715,667 175 175 (175) (175)
Monetary liabilities EBER
Trade payables EREZERR (5,641,080  (5280)  (5280) 5280 5280
Other payables EC NS (644,466) (662) (662) 662 662
Borrowings EES (3,402,375) (179,836) (179,836) 179,836 179,836
Total (decrease)/increase B4 (HY) /& (85,770) (85,770) 85,770 85,770
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Summarized sensitivity analysis (continued)

Profit represents consolidated profit after
tax; equity represents total equity, including
non-controlling interests.

Other payables include payables for
purchase of property, plant and equipment,
customer deposits and employee deposits
as stated in Note 25.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments, available-for-
sale financial assets, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from related parties represent
the Group’s maximum exposure credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The Group does not
have significant credit risks arising from off-balance
sheet items. The Group’s credit policy for the
sales of products is mainly delivery either on cash
or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with
maturity dates within six months. For bank and
financial institutions, the Group has policies that
deposits are placed with reputable banks. Credit
quality of financial assets is further disclosed in
Notes 13, 19 and 44(c) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BAEEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
together with adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BHERREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEBHEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FBELRA(E)

Between  Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1year 2years 5Syears  5years Total
168 122§ 2355 SENUL At

At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
+ZA=1+-H

Borrowings EE N 1,134,507 - 246,500 - 1,381,007
Interests payable on borrowings () ERERFIS () 43,687 11,709 11,548 - 66944
Trade payables ENE SRR 5,425,323 - - - 5425323
Other payables H RS 479,273 - - - 479273
Amounts due to related parties e TR 27,266 - - 51,859 79,125
Finance lease liabilties HANEAR 551,392 603,761 - - 1,155,153
Interest payments on finance REHERR

lease liabilties (i) 8 (i) 40563 34,301 - - 74864
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 15,669 - - - 15669
Guarantee for bank borrowings BEZHNRER

of a third party hEER 10,960 - - - 10960

7,728,640 649,771 258,048 51,859 8,688,318

184 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXERRERE(Z)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 FBERAEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FBELRAR(E)

Between  Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

1ER  1Z2F  2R5F  5ELLE =

At 31 December 2015 R-B-1F
+ZR=t+-H
Borrowings & 2,658,484 743,891 - - 3402375
Interests payable on borrowings () EZERFS () 80,933 45,837 - - 126,770
Trade payables EREZER 5,641,030 - = - 5,641,030
Other payables HinERERR 644,466 - - - 644,466
Amounts due to related parties e B A F0R 83,044 - - 51859 134903
Interests payable on amounts due TE(S R 7R
to related parties (j HIERFIE () 2,672 - - = 2,672
Finance lease liabilties BANERR 48441 49800 1105414 - 1,203,655
Interest payments on finance BEREAER
lease liabilties (i) R 75,549 74,653 62,555 - 212757
Derivative financial instruments fiE4mIA 3,616 - - - 3,616
Guarantee for bank borrowings BE=FNRTER
of a third party HAER 10,960 - = - 10960
924919 914,181 1,167,969 51,859 11,383,204
()  The interest on borrowings is calculated () EBFANEER-_Z—FNEER_ZT
based on borrowings held as at 31 —£¢+_ﬂ:+—5?%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ
December 2016 and 2015 without taking BRETE & EARKIEH
into account extension or refinancing of the EFEEER - ZBHFES 5
borrowings in future. Floating-rate interest is B-_E—RNER-_FT—HHF
estimated using current interest rate as at 31 +ZA=+—HME R =G
December 2016 and 2015 respectively. =
(i) The interest on finance lease is calculated i) RZE-—RE+_A=+—
based on remaining balance of finance lease B BEHEFNBIEBTHE
liability and the interest rate implicit in the HEaBEEAARRHEERSHF
lease as at 31 December 2016. EEtE o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided
by the total capital. Total debt includes current and
non-current borrowings, other long-term payables and
borrowings from related parties. Total capital includes
non-current borrowings, non-current portion of other
long-term payables, non-current portion of borrowings
from related parties and equity attributable to owners of

3. HBEBRERE)

3.2

AEENESEREAR =R
BAKERSEREEERE
BEZREN  UAKRRERE
W FESREEMCESSEE
A WERRENELRE
BAREE S

REFSIHAEELRER  AK
EAIEEERHEBEN TRRAK
B MBRRBEEES %
TR BB E RIRET ©

AEEEREBEREEALL X
EREARNRN - ZLLERRER
RERABER - BRERE
ERBEERBER - Hitk
HREMNERR BB ER - &
BABREIERBER  Hitk
HIFE N BR FOE R BN &R 10 - BRI
T ERRIERE RR 1D K 7 B I A

the Company. NAETIFEERER ©
2016 2015
—E-REF —EF—RF
Total debt BIR4RRE 2,623,383 4,761,290
Total capital FEE= N 10,169,651 10,491,521
Debt-to-capital ratio BEIEA AR 25.80% 45.38%

As at 31 December 2016, the ratio declined due to
repayment of current bank borrowings and repurchase
of certain senior notes.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 5 [ 42 B A FR 2 7]

L RREERDIRITER LB
ETEEREM N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BAEEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HXRERERE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 An{EEMET
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at TRBBHEEESTIZALE
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have BifE=EE2 T A - T~NRERR
been defined as follows: REMT :

HREEXAEHEET

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BHME(KREHAE) (F—
&) e
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within e RBRBENRE-—RHRE
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, G - BESKBE/R A ER
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that s, B (BB ) sk (B
derived from prices) (level 2). REERE)BAER(F
) e
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o  WIHREBAIBEMISER
on observable market data (that is, unobservable MmMEENEENXBBNER
inputs) (level 3). AE R (B A] B 2= A9 &
ABRD(E=8) -
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREINAEER-_Z—RF
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December +-—A=+—HBKk=_ZE—HF
2016 and 31 December 2015. +ZA=t—H®RAAEER
ENEERARE -
Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

B FZH  E=R Mst

At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—X
+=-A=
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BAREETEEHES
through profit or loss FABRRZEREE
— Money market funds (Note 20) —BEmisES
(P 20) 214,658 - - 214,658
— Financial investment —SRIREER
products (Note 20) (Ff=E20) = - 172,800 172,800
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE
- Debt securities (Note 15) —&E%E 5 (M5 15) 149,950 - - 149,950
Derivative financial instruments TSI A
— Trading derivatives —BEMETA - 6220 - 6220
364,608 6,220 172,800 543,628
Liabilities i=F
Derivative financial instruments TSI A
— Trading derivatives —BEMTETA 12,095 2,674 - 15,669
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HKRKREE(E)
3.3  Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 RAREEMHTE)
Level 1 Level2  Level 3 Total
F—H EZH E=R 4Bt
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-I1%
+=A=+—H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value AR EETEEHES
through profit or loss SIABREZEHEE
— Money market funds (Note 20) —EEmisEe (ffzE20) 38,392 = - 38,392
— Financial investment products — e R EEm (f3E20)
(Note 20) - - 93559 93,559
— Trading derivatives —-BEfETA 6,914 3,319 - 10,233

45,306 3,319 93,659 142,184

Liabilities &
Derivative financial instruments THEERIA

- Trading derivatives -BEMETE 3,616 - - 3,616
For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there HE_Z—"ER-Z—1F
are no transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy -1—: A=+—HIEE  &@/
used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, BERArhEBEFEMERAR
and also no changes in the classification of financial {Eﬁlﬁ_ﬁ' REARGIELER B
assets as a result of a change in the purpose or use of MERSEEZEEERNNE
those assets. A # emEEN D
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXERRERE(Z)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 QRAREEMHE)

ST KAREFBAAEME

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices

(Level 1) (B—4)

The Group’s trading fund investments, classified AEENESKRE (DS
as level 1 financial assets, are the money market BE—REMEE) IR
funds acquired from certain financial institution ETeREERBENE

whereby the Group is expecting to earn short-term
gain from the funds. The fair values of the trading
funds are determined based on the quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date (Note 20).

The Group’s debt securities investments, classified
as level 1 financial assets, are investments in
debentures with fixed interest ranging from
3.250% to 8.125% and maturity date between
May 2018 and June 2021. The fair values are
determined based on the quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date (Note 15).

The Group’s derivative financial instruments,
classified as level 1 financial liabilities, are the iron
ore swap contracts and coke and rebar future
contracts entered into by the Group and certain
financial institutions. The fair values are determined
based on the prices on the Singapore Futures
Exchange and the Shanghai Futures Exchange at
the balance sheet date.

mEES Bt AEE
TERT B 2 FE € HREUE B
W o HREWAREETD
LREEAMBMEESTE
(M$3E20) °

AEEBNEBKESFRE
(PERE—HemE
E ) Ty iR N F3.250% =
8.125% HJ [& 7E 7| & 5+ &
REBBN T2 —N\F
FAE-ZE-_—FXAH
EREBFZRE - AAEE
RS B EEE
(Mf7E15) o

AEETESRIA(D
BRE-BEREE)R
AEEEE TS REER
V2 EREAEEE AR
FREBINHES L
NABETIZEE BN
BRHEX Mk LBHE
RZNBREE -
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXRRERE(E)
3.3  Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 RAREEMRHEE)

332 ARGEAABEZMAE

3.3.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair

190

values (Level 2)

The Group’s derivative financial instruments,
classified as level 2 financial assets, are the foreign
currency swap contracts entered into by the
Group and certain financial institutions. The fair
values are determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting
value discounted back to present value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments,
classified as level 2 financial liabilities, are the
foreign currency forward contracts entered into
by the Group and certain financial institutions. The
fair values are determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting
value discounted back to present value.

The foreign currency swap contracts as at 31
December 2016 comprised contracts with
notional principal amounts totalling US$ 18 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB 120 million).

The foreign currency forward contracts as at
31 December 2016 comprised contracts with

BI5 (=)

AEBUTEEMIA(D
BRE_DNEREE)R
AEEEE TS REER
M ZINEIE A K - INKE
BRZEMERANER
SMNEEHIEH 2 ARE
B EEXZEEMRER
& -

AEETESRTA(D
BRE_DEREE)R
AEEEE T S BEIER
VZHNERBEHK o &
BRZEHMEZANER
SNERBMADZRAE
B EEZEEMERRLRR
{8 -

RoZ—~E+=A=T
B - SN A N BIES
HASRA1800 BET
(9BRARME 1 2{ET)
zam .

RZE—XRF+=A
=t+—B NERIAY

notional principal amounts totalling US$ 96 million BIEZEAR S B5H9,600
(equivalent to approximately RMB 667 million). EEXT(HEROARK
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HXERERE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 RAREEMHTE)
3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant 333 FHEARTAHERAE

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group’s financial investment products,
classified as level 3 financial assets are issued
by banks and bond companies. Buyers of these
products entrust the bank and bond companies to
make investment mainly in money market or bond
market. Principals and returns of such products
are not guaranteed. These products cannot be
traded but can only be redeemed from the issuing
bank and bond companies. The fair values are
determined using discounted cash flow model, the
main inputs are the expected yield rates which are

ZAREETE(B=R)

AEBERBREER (D
BRE=ZNEWEE)A
RITREFARET - &%
FEMZIBENRERITR
BEHFAREERER ™S
HEFTHETRE © %
FEMNAE RERTZ
FER - ZFEMTAXR
% BEARBETRITR
BHFARER - 2AEE
DERMBERESREER

an unobservable data.

Quantitative information about fair
value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

BE T2EBABER
B HE (A BEH
&) e

NABEFERANEE
TABERBGABE(E=
R zEBEHR

Fair value
at 31 December Valuation Range (weighted
2016 Technique Unobservable input average)
RB-AF
+=A=+-AH
ZAREE  EERD TURZHARE E1E (E¥2)
Financial investment products 172,800 Discounted Expected yield rate 0%-4.8% (2.4%)
invested both in money market cash flow
and bond market
RENEETERESTRZSRREER 172800 MREESE  FAHksx 0%-4.8% (2.4%)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at 3.4 HREHEKAFEZLEMEER

amortised cost

The fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities
of the Group are disclosed in the relevant notes of these

financial statements.

BEZAREE
AEENEMEREENRERE

NRRBERERZFMBE®R
RAARAMEE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting judgements
and estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@  Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amount of a CGU
has been determined based on higher of value-in-use
and fair value less costs to sell.

As at 31 December 2016, certain property, plant and
equipment of the Group had impairment indicators,
either because certain production lines of the Group
were shut down during the year, or the Group has plans
to shut down other production lines in the coming year
in response to regulations issued by local governments
to reduce excess steel production capacity. In addition,
the economic performance of a subsidiary engaging in
the manufacturing of certain steel products had been
continuously below expectation (Note 7).
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(BAEEPN - MESBEIRARBETTREN)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

In assessing the recoverability of the property, plant and
equipment that had impairment indicators, management
identified the relevant cash generating units (“CGUs”)
to which these property, plant and equipment belong,
and estimated the recoverable amounts of these CGUs
based on the higher of their fair value less costs of
disposal (“FVLCOD”) and value in use (“VIU”) calculation.
Management applied significant judgements in
determining the FVLCOD and VIU. The key assumption
adopted in the calculations of FVLCOD was the
estimated disposal considerations. The key judgements
adopted in the VIU calculation included:

o growth rates to extrapolate revenue and cash
flows within and beyond the budget period;

° gross margin; and
° discount rate.

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

BE_Z—RET-A=T—BILFE

4. BREHEERARE)

(@)

M - BB RREREE)

RFEEBRETRNYE
B R s R M B B - B
BE®RRBZENE  BENMER
tFEERER e EE B0 (3]
SELEM]) hMfAEtZERE
ELXBUMNAKRESHE 2R
BEAABERBEXAT A
RABER L ERA ) S{E BB
BE(EREER)D ZESHA
B REEAAEERBLENX
AREREER ERERA
BERAE - FERAABERD
EXRAIRANBEZBRRBE
FAHERE - A EEREER
PR E 2 Al B 1%

s REEHARBHEEH
HOHE BT A IR & B 4

. =R
R
o R A S B

AEEEGNRZ R AR
P - REEMSRERR
FIFLHEZHE - BFFZR S
Kt B2 A RERIER
EE - ARBEAMGBFARES
BMERSMEIE - T iER YA
W BEESRETENRE - WX
EEENRRRBERERTY
THENEETE FHEZES
FEINEHETHENE R R
EEFREHREERAR -

2B EER AR A ER
Mt A A AN E B 1 ZER e A
ERABEERN EEETE
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©)

Impairment of loans and other receivables

As at 31 December 2016, the borrowers or debtors
of certain loans and other receivables were in financial
difficulties or have commenced bankruptcy proceedings.
Impairments are recognised whenever there is objective
evidence that the present value of estimated future
cash flows measurable decreases and is lower than
the carrying amount of the loans and other receivables.
The recoverability of individually significant loans and
other receivables were assessed on an individual basis
based on management’s estimates of discounted
future cash flows. Loans and other receivable balances
without objective evidence of impairment were grouped
based on their credit risk characteristics for evaluation.
The collective impairment provision was determined by
management based on historical loss experience and
aging analysis, taking into considerations of industry and
other circumstances.
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. HEERDHER
(@ Sales @ SHERE
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and REBFENERE R IHEH
sale of iron and steel products, trading of steel products Em MEERNMEREALE
and iron ore and real estate business. Sales recognised SUNEHEEE HE_Z
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were —NER-_ZFE—FHF+=A
as follows: =T —HIERFEEERAE
EEEAT
2016 2015

—E—RE =

Gross sales less discounts, SHEBRRITH -

returns and sales taxes RERHEER
— Strips and strip products — 75 8l % 7 o) 2 2 8,734,682 6,896,144
— H-section steel products — H AV ZE S 7,300,486 6,651,590
— Rebar — 124y i 3,265,882 3,279,491
— Iron ore —EEA 1,931,434 893,138
— Cold rolled sheets and — R ELIR R S R

galvanised sheets 929,314 1,126,699
— Billets — iR 2,852,695 1,224,383
— Sheet piling — RIS 565,734 333,246
— Real estate —EhE 211,830 460,672
— Others —Hfb 635,386 206,175

26,427,443 21,071,538

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

196

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment information

The chief decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee, which comprises all executive
directors and top management. The chief decision-
maker reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources.

Based on these reports, the chief decision-maker
considers the business from a business perspective.
From a business perspective, the chief decision-maker
assesses the performance of the iron and steel and the
real estate segments.

(i) Iron and steel - Manufacture and sale of iron and
steel products and trading of steel products and
iron ore; and

(i) Real estate - Development and sale of properties.

The chief decision-maker assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and operating profit. This measurement is consistent
with that in the annual financial statements.
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5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. HEERIBER(£)

(o)  Segment information (continued) (b) DEBEE(E)

RERBSDEBRETERR
RANDRERZSIIT

The segment information provided to the chief decision-
maker for the reportable segments for the year was as

follows:
Year ended 31 December 2016
BZ-Z-A"E+-A=t-HLEFE
Iron and steel Real estate Total
e EHE ast

Revenue A 26,215,613 211,830 26,427,443
Segment results: PBEE
Operating profit/(loss) TERF/ (F8) 1,146,253 (18,014) 1,128,239
Finance (costs)/income - net B (K)o A\ — 48 (73,529) 1,260 (72,269)
Share of results of associates NG (1,022) - (1,022)
Profit before income tax BRETIEBEAT R A 1,054,948
Income tax expense FIiEHER (523,936)
Profit for the year FERF 531,012
Other profit or loss items HiiB%1EH
Depreciation and amortisation IE Ry 1,082,917 1,750 1,084,667
Impairment of property, plant % - BELREERE

and equipment 809,790 - 809,790
Capital expenditure EXEY 810,850 21 810,871

Year ended 31 December 2015
B2 Z-—RFt+-A=1—BItFE
Iron and steel Real estate Total
e FEiE a&t

Revenue A 20,610,866 460,672 21,071,538
Segment results: PBEE
Operating (loss)/profit g (BE)/BR (485,915) 18,828 (467,087)
Finance (costs)/income - net B (BR) /N — 588 (422,206) 370 (421,836)
Share of result of an associate il UNGIE (745) - (745)
Loss before income tax BRETS R AR (889,668)
Income tax expense FiEHER (46,349)
Loss for the year EEEE (936,017)
Other profit or loss items HiiiB%1EH
Depreciation and amortisation & R 1,095,965 2,092 1,098,057
Impairment of property, plant mE - BELREERE

and equipment 521,019 - 521,019
Capital expenditure BREX 980,688 133 980,821
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRARAN  MASRENAREBTIREN) HE-Z—

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

Segment assets are those operating assets that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities.
Segment assets are determined after deducting related
allowance that is reported as direct offsets in the balance
sheet. Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold
land and land use rights, property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, inventories, trade
receivables, amounts due from related parties, notes
receivable, restricted bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents.

Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that
result from the operating activities of a segment.
Segment liabilities consist primarily of other long-term
payables, deferred revenue, amounts due to related
parties, trade payables and accruals, advances and
other current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—RET-A=T—BILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. HEERITER(E)

(b)  Segment information (continued)

RZE—R"F+-_A=+—H
Mo HEEMBELT ¢

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2016 were as follows:

Iron and steel Real estate  Elimination Total
ikl EiE ik &t
Segment assets PEEE 17,941,495 1,811,238 (173,098) 19,579,635
Segment assets for reportable SN D HEE
segments 19,579,635
Unallocated: AP
Deferred income tax assets BEEHERE 155,880
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE 489,555
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA 6,220
Financial assets at fair value through ~ #RA 7 [EfEs2 B HEE
profit or loss STAERERCCREE 387,458
Loan receivables ElEZ 401,000
Prepaid current income tax BT EHAEH 28,814
Total assets per balance sheet LEBBRNNEEE 21,048,562
Iron and steel Real estate  Elimination Total
e EiE it a3t
Segment liabilities PBERE 8,974,275 1,316,474 (173,098) 10,117,651
Segment liabiliies for reportable £ D2
segments afE 10,117,651
Unallocated: AP
Current income tax liabilities SHFEHAE 122,918
Current borrowings mENfE 1,134,507
Non-current borrowings FEREER 246,500
Derivative financial instruments fTESMTAE 15,669
Dividends payable e 4,572
Deferred income tax liabilities EREHARE 42,204
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEABRANBEE 11,684,021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—AF+-A=+—HLEFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueqd) 5. HEERIBER(£)

(b)  Segment information (continued)

RZE—RF+-_A=+—8H
MoBEEREBENT :

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2015 were as follows:

Ironand steel ~ Real estate  Elimination Total
B FEiE i A&t
Segment assets PEUEE 20,137,987 1,596,049 (438,179) 21,295,857
Segment assets for reportable ENHMHBEE
segments 21,295,857
Unallocated: KoE:
Deferred income tax assets EEEHERE 377,949
Available-for-sale financial assets AELESRERE 109,605
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 10,233
Financial assets at fair value through 227 [BE: 2 HEEH
profit or loss HABRRZSREE 131,951
Loan receivables EWED 400,000
Prepaid current income tax B E SR 38,128
Total assets per balance sheet BEBBRANEEE 22,363,723
lronand steel  Real estate Elimination Total
ik FEitE il A&t
Segment liabilities PBER’ 9,017,013 1,359,369 (438,179) 9,938,203
Segment liabilities for reportable EAE A
segments afE 9,938,203
Unallocated: RAHE
Current income tax liabilities SHREHaE 102,795
Current borrowings MENER 2,658,484
Non-current borrowings FREER 743,891
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 3,616
Dividends payable FERAR & 4572
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEABRANLEE 13,451,561
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6. MHELHRLFERARE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights RE B E T 4 f + i s R
represent the prepayment for the operating lease, the net book mIEREHERNFIE - REREF
value of which is analysed as follows: BEOHTIATR:
2016 2015
—E—XKEF —E—RF
At 1 January m—HA—H 140,422 136,386
Additions from acquiring W B — PRI BT /28 2 B4
a subsidiary (Note 43) (PMt5E43) 58,091 -
Transfer from property plant W - BB MRE
and equipment (Note 7) A (ET7) - 7,614
Amortisation of leasehold land and HET &t
land use rights (Note 32) {5 R 8 (PI5E32) (5,390) (3,578)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF+-_A=1+—H 193,123 140,422
As at 31 December 2016, the net book value of leasehold RZZBE—RE+-_A=+—H8" AKX
land and land use rights pledged as security for the Group’s SE 2 EFRERRNEE 1 R T
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB 56 million (2015: i A < BRTE SHE A A A R ¥ 5,600
Nil) (Note 26). Br(ZZ2—h1%F : &)(fizE28)
The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are all located ANEBMAE L K+ 0 fE AR
in the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 27 years KRB - SR THEEIN F27F £ 50 ©
to 50 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. ¥ BERSRE

Furniture Leasehold
and improve-
Buildings Machinery  fixtures  Vehicles ~ ments CIP Total

LIS
BY MBRE BORE RE %8 HRIR A

Year ended 31 December 2015  EZ-ZF-1E+-R

St-BLEE

Opening net book amount EEATE 2688060 5374266 32058 48,265 97 678075 8,820,830
Adoftions AE 6,313 69,689 8114 11,857 - 88442 980,398
Transfer from CIP EETREA 110,796 837,266 2,083 - - (90,145) -
Transfer from inventory FEEA - 758% = = = - 758%
Transfer toland use right (Note 6)  EZ + Pt (izto) - - - - N AL A
Disposals (Note 40) =GR (2,624) (51) (324 (1,33 - -3
Depreciation (Note 32) I (M) (176,116) (883230)  (7.950)  (16,447) (55) - (1,083,799
Impairment (Note 30) AE (W) (85680 (433013  @121)  (19) - - (B21019)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 2540,749 5040823 31,860 42,141 42 604,741 8,260,356
At 31 December 2015 R-E-R%E+-A=1-R

Cost A 3,867,524 11,532,866 126645 166,707 1,387 604,741 16,299,820
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (1192,399) (5866815  (91231) (124287) (1,299 - (7.276027)
Impairment e (134376) (625,208 (3,554) (279 - - (7163437)
Net book amount BHFE 2540749 5040823 31,860 42,141 42 604,741 8,260,356
Year ended 31 December 2016  HZ2-F-x%E+=F

St-RLEE

Opening net book amount EMEREFE 2,540,749 5040828 31,860 42,141 42 604,741 8,260,356
Addtions AE 1,602 51,057 4,286 9,893 - 744033 810,871
Addtions from acquiring WE—RIRB AN

a subsidiary 233810 615,174 2,007 1,394 - - 852,385
Transfer from CIP ERTREA 473,156 305,021 993 - - (179,170) -
Disposals (Note 40) it (E40) - (12 (853)  (4,246) - - (6,82)
Depreciation (Note 32) FE (fE32) (183,302) (864,227)  (5,116)  (15,903) (42 - (1,068,590)
Impairment (Note 30) i (3£ 30) (257,005) (535549) (1,890  (3,187) - (12,159) (809,790)
Closing net book amount ERRARE 2,809,010 4610572 31,287 30,092 - 557,445 8,038,406
At 31 December 2016 WZE-XE+-B=1-H

Cost KA 4,576,899 12,477,821 132,856 144,995 1,337 569,604 17,903,512
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (1,376,508) (6,706,472)  (96,125) (111,437)  (1,337) - (8,291,879)
Impairment AE (391,381) (1,160,777)  (5,444)  (3,466) - (12,159) (1,573,227)
Net book amount BHFE 2,809,010 4610572 31,287 30,092 - 557,445 8,038,406
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YE BERREGE)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

Cost of sales SHERCA
Administrative expenses 1T E R

As at 31 December 2016, the net book value of property, plant
and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB 975 million (2015: Nil) (Note
26).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 11 million (2015: RMB 35
million) were capitalised in the cost of property, plant and
equipment at an annual average capitalisation rate of 6.35%
(2015: 7.60%).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, provision for
impairment of approximately RMB 810 million was made for
certain property, plant and equipment of the Group (Note 30).
The impairment amount was determined using the higher of
FVLCOD and VIU of the relevant CGUs. The key assumptions
used for the VIU calculations of CGUs as at 31 December 2016
were as follows:

Gross margin EF
Growth rate £ K
Discount rate PR =

EREHBERRPHBRAOTER
T

2016 2015
—E-XF —F-EF

1,031,271 1,057,578
37,319 26,220

1,068,590 1,083,798

N-ZE—RE+=-A=+—10 " AKX
SEEREERZYE  BEKHK
HEZEABENARKITSEL(ZE
— R : ) (FiEE26) °

HE_ZT—RE+_A=+—HLHF
B BEERAHARE1008T (=
T—RF: AR¥E3500&87T)BREF
EFHEREEE635%(=ZF—H
F:760%) ERERYME  BER
BB o

BE_Z-—RE+_A=1+—HI*F
B ERAKREZETYE  BER
REELAARKE 810 BITHRME R
8 (FHEE30) - BETREAHERRE
ELABEN 2 AR EBEBHERAEE
REEZESEEE -R_F—1~F
T A=T-HARSHEELEN
EREEFEZEERRLT

CGUs
HWEELEEN

(2.0%)~3.4%

0%~3.0%
12.4%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YE- BERREGE)

BFRERRERERATIE K&
BRELEROEZBEREHER

Buildings and machinery includes the following amounts
where the Group is a lessee under several finance lease

arrangements arising from a sale and leaseback: BER9AFE A ¢
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
Cost — capitalised finance leases AR —ENLRIERE 1,200,000 1,200,000
Accumulated depreciation RETHEEGH (172,730) (13,995)
Net book amount R FRE 1,027,270 1,186,005

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8. REWZF

REMELNTE - REKREFED

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2015

Mo

BE-_Z-AF+-A=t—-HLEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 7,431

Depreciation (Note 32) & (fisE32) (440)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 6,990
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HRF+=-A=+—8H

Cost AN 12,042
Accumulated depreciation 2xtif e (5,052)
Net book amount BRE A 6,990
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE—E-—AFt+=-A=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount FHREFAE 6,990
Depreciation (Note 32) & (£ 32) (441)
Closing net book amount FRAREFE 6,549
At 31 December 2016 R-EB—XRE+=-A=+—H

Cost [B%N 12,042
Accumulated depreciation e (5,493)
Net book amount BREHE 6,549
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8.

Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
for investment properties included:

Rental income (Note 31) THSUWA (FzE31)
Direct operating expenses from properties  E&= 44 A K24
that generated rental income HELERY

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no
significant contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance of the investment properties.

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors estimated that the fair
value of the investment properties was approximately RMB
55.4 million (2015: RMB 49.9 million) based on the prices in the
active market.

REME (&)

RAEFESRARRENEERNE
mEE:

2016 2015

2,574 2,616
(441) (441)
2,133 2,175

RZE—RFEFRZZE—AF+=A
=+—H AEEWERZEDED
BREBIERIREELEERE KIRIE o

R=ZZT—X "F+=-—A=+—H8 &=
BEEIKEZEMSNERETIRE
MENNRBEHARBES5408 T
(ZE—F1F : AR4,990ETT) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—AF+-A=ZT—HLLEFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. HEFEE
Unpatented
technology Software Goodwill Total
FEFIH M a4 e &t
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-—ZE—1&
TZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYERMEFE - 175 8,498 8,673
Additions NE 80,608 423 - 81,031
Amortisation (Note 32) B (fEE32) (10,076) (164) - (10,240
Closing net book amount FRERMEFE 70,632 434 8,498 79,464
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—8%F
+=—A=+—H
Cost DN 80,608 840 16,165 97,613
Accumulated amortisation BT RRE

and impairment (10,076) (406) (7,667) (18,149
Net book amount AREHE 70,532 434 8,498 79,464
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-—ZE—AKE

TZA=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYREEFE 70,532 434 8,498 79,464
Ad(ditions from acquiring 15 B — [T B A =)

a subsidiary (Note 43) (M97E43) - - 25152  25/152
Amortisation (Note 32) #5H (P 32) (10,076) (170) - (10,246)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 60,456 264 33,650 94,370
At 31 December 2016 R-ZEB—RE

+=A=+—H
Cost 7N 80,608 840 41,317 122,765
Accumulated amortisation RFHE S RORE

and impairment (20,152) (576) (7,667) (28,395)

Net book amount IREFE 60,456 264 33,650 94,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
MESEANARBTIREN) BE_Z—REFT_A=+—-BILFE

10.

SUBSIDIARIES

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(B

BRI

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had direct and indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries:

Name

tH

Gold Genesis Development
Limited (“Gold Genesis”)

Gold Genesis Development
Limited (] Gold Genesis )

Good Lucky Enterprises Limited
(Good Lucky’)

Good Lucky Enterprises Limited
(TGood Lucky )

First Glory Services Limited
(‘First Glory’)

First Glory Services Limited
([First Glory])

Accordpower Investments
Limited (*Accordpower’)

HERERRAT
(%))

Fullhero Investments Limited
(‘Fullnera”)

RERERRAT
([£8])

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Stegl
Group Company Limited
(‘Jinxi Limitec’)

MR SRR ERAA
(2msHE])

Place and date
of incorporation

EUEAREVEE

British Virgin Islands (“BVI")

21 February 2003
([ZB#ARES])

“ER-F2ACT-A

BVI

21 February 2003
AEGARES
k- ey

BVI

16 October 2003
£E4RRES
“ER-ETATR

BVI

30 November 2004
EBRARES
2R

BVI
3 May 2005
REGAREE
“RTRERA=H

PRC
24 December 1999

HE
-NE
TZAZfmA

Percentage of

equity interest

atributable

Legal status to the Group
ARERES

EEIEER BAt
Limited liabilty 100%
company (Directly held)
BREMAR 100%
(B##A)

Limited liabilty 100%
company (Directly held)
BREMAR 100%
(B##A)

Limited fiabifty 100%
company (Directly held)
BREFAR 100%
(BE%HE)

Limited liabilty 100%
company (Directly held)
BREFAR 100%
(BRRR)

Limited fiabifty 100%
company (Directly held)
BREFAR 100%
(BRFR)

Joint stock company 97.6%

with imited liabifty ~ (Indirectly held)

BhEREEATF 97.6%

(R&#A)

10.

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—8 &RQ
AR T OB A R B kR

Ny
A
T -

Issued

and fully

paid capital
BEARERRA

Us§ 1

1%7

Us§2

eI

Us$2

eI

Us§2

eI

R\B
228,640,000

ARE
20864000070

MEQRE

Authorised
capital

EERK

US$ 50,000

500007

US$ 50,000

500007

US$50,000

50,000%7C

US$ 50,000

50,0007

US$50,000

50,000%7C

R\VB
228,640,000

ARE
208,640,000
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Principal activities

IERH

Investment holding

RAZR

Investment holding

RAZR

Investment holding

RESR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RESR

Manufacture and sales of
steel products

EEREEREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)

208

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES
£ ARRLLERAH EEERER Bt BREORERRE EERE  TEEH
Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold PRC Limited liability 80.28% US$ 55,150,000 US§55,150,000  Manufacture and sales
Rolled Sheet Company 26 December 2003 company (Indirectly held) of steel products
Limited (*Jinxi Jinlan’)
BlzReRLAR hE BREMAA 8028%  55150000%7 55150000%% 4EREEMEER
BRAR i (REHE)
(TEEeRl) +ZA=t/R
Origntal Fullhero Leasing PRC Limited fiabilty 100% US§ 65,000,000  US$ 65,000,000  Leasing and financial leasing
Co. Lid. (‘Fullhero Leasing’) 23 September 2005 company (Indlrectly held)
RAAERERRAA hE EREMAA 100%  65000000%% 6500000057 MERRARE
([ZERE]) “ETREAACT=R (FERE)
Hebei Jinxi Section Steel PRC Limited liabilfty 97.6% RMB RMB Manufacture and sales of
Company Limited 30 May 2008 company (Indirectly held) 350,000,000 350,000,000 steel products
(*Jinxi Section Stee!’)
MLEEREERA hE EREFAT 97.6% AEE ARE  EERBEREER
(i 1) “ETN\FRA=TA (REHA) 3500000007 350,000,007
Jinxi Hong Kong Trading Hong Kong Limited fiabity 97.6% HK$ 38,750,001 HK$ 80,000,000  Import and export of goods
Company Limited 27 October 2008 company (Indlrectly held)
(*HK Tracling)
ERARELOARAA B EREMERA 97.6% 387500017 80,000000%T EEOEH
(TREEAl) “ER\ETACTHA (FiEHE)
Suifenhe City Jinyin Trading PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB10,000,000 RMB 10,000,000 Importand export of
Co. Ltd. (*Jinyin Trading’) 24 September 2008 company (Indirectly held) goods and technology
ERmEREHERAR EREfFAT 97.6% ARHE ARE  EHREMREE
(N2585)) “ER\EAACTEA (BEHA) 10,000,000 100000007
Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel PRC Limited liability 69.3%  RVMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000  Manufacture and sales
Group Zhengda Iron and 19 December 2008 company (Indlrectly held) of steel products
Steel Co. Ltd. (‘Zhengda
Iron and Steel’)
MEEEHESETERE  hE EREFAT 69.3% AR® ARE  EERBEREER
BRAF “EE0E (FEHE) 50,000,000 50,000,007
([TEE]) tZAThA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEEELES

£ AMRLLERAH EEERER Bt BEORERRE EERE  TERH

Tangshan Fengrun Qu Tong PRC Limited liability 69.3% RVMB5,000,000  RMB5,000,000  Purchase and sale of
Yuan Trading Company 22 May 2009 company (Indlrectly held) ferrous metal and coke
Limited (‘Tong Yuan
Trading’)

BUTERREEHE GilE? EREMRA £9.3% ARE ARE  BERELE
ERAR ZETNE (BEHA) 5000000 5000007  RER
Giz) iz g =

Hebei Jinxi Boyuan Real PRC Limited liabilty 97.6%  RMB 100,000,000 RMB 100,000,000  Development and sales
Estate Co. Ltd. (‘Boyuan 17 December 2009 company (Indirectly held) of real estate
Real Estate’) ()

MitEERERE GlET EREEAT 97.6% N A% REREE
REERAA ZEENE (REHA) 1000000007 1000000007  REiE
(&) TZATtA

Clear Precision Limited BVI Limited liability 100% Us$2 US§50,000  Investment holding
(‘Clear Precision”) 22 July 2010 company (Directly held)

HEBRAR ZREARHES BREFAR 100% ¥ S0000ET  RERR
(Lija) “2EE (BBFR)

tAZt+ZH

Beiing Jinxi Investment PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB RMB  Investment holding
Holding Co. Ltd. 26 August 2010 company (Indirectly held) 100,000,000 100,000,000
(‘Befing Jinxi Investment’)

I REERARRARAR H BREAR 97.6% ARE ARE  RERR
([rrEERE)) T34 (FEsE) 100,000,0007c  100,000,0007

NAZt7H

Origntal Evertrust Finance PRC Limited liabilty 98.20%  US$200,000000 US$200,000,000  Financial leasing and leasing
Leasing Co. Ltd. (‘Oriental 27 September 2010 company (Indirectly held)

Evertrust')

ROERRARERRAR  PH BREEAR 98.20% 200000000 200000000 RBARERME
i) I S 2 (R#EE) 0 S

hAZT+E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised

Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES

£ AR A EEERER Bt BREORERRE EERE  TEER

Origntal Green Energy-Saving ~ PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB 100,000,000 RMB 100,000,000  Environmental Protection

Environmental Protection 20 Qctober 2010 company (Indirectly held) Engineering

Engineering Co. Lid.
(‘Oriental Green’)

RAGREBRIRRIE el EREMAA 97.6% ARE ARE  BEREIR
BRAR(EAER) 3% (REHA) 100,000,007 100,000,007
+A=1A
Hebei Jinshun Energy-Saving ~ PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB RMB  Research and development on
Technology Development 17 November 2010 company (Indirectly held) 100,000,000 100,000,000 recycling and energy-saving
Co. Ltd. (*Jinshun technology and other
Energy-Saving’) recycling business
IR R RIS el BREMAA 97.6% AR® ARE  HERRRESGHRE
BRAR (2R ]) 5% (FEHE) 10000000070 1000000007  REMERER
t-At8
Beiing Jinxi Boyuan Real PRC Limited liabilfty 97.6% RMB RMB  Development and sales of
Estate Co. Ltd. (‘Beiing 18 November 2010 company (Indirectly held) 100,000,000 100,000,000 redl estate
Real Estate”)
TRERREERARAR  HH EREMAA 97.6% ARE ARE  FEREERME
(EREHE]) i S 3 (REHA) 100,000,0007 100,000,007
T=-AT/\A
China Oriental Singapore Singapore Limited liabilty 100% US§10,000,000  Not applicable  Trading of iron ore and
Pte. Ltd. (‘China Origntal 29 November 2010 company (Indirectly held) related products
Singapore’)
China Oriental Singapore g BREFAR 100%  10,000,000%% MER  BEARORNEEER
Pte. Ltd. ([China Orientl ~ —2-8% (BEsE)
Singapore] ) T-A=thA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
MESEANARBTIREN) BE_Z—REFT_A=+—-BILFE

10.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRAAEH -

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

R

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Dafang Heavy
Industry Science and
Technology Co. Limited
(*Jinxi Dafang’) (i) (vi)

MRS R ET
HEERAR
(TR )i (i)

Jinxi International Trade:
Co. Litd. (*Jinxi
International Trade)

EREREHRRAA
([ZEERES))

Heboei Caofeidian Jinxing
Resource Development
Co. Ltd. (‘Caofeidian
Jinxing’)

Mt ERMRRRRRE
ERAR([ERa=a))

Beiing Jinxi LongXiang Culture
Co. Ltd.
(‘Longxiang Culture’)
TrEmRAU R
ARAR
 54d)

Tianjin Oriental Huitong
Microcredit Co. Ltd.
(‘Oriental Huitong’)

RERAEREEHR
ARAT
(TRHER)

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER RS

PRC
27 November 2003

BE
e e

PRC

23 March 2011

HE
“2-——%=f-1=H
PRC

1 July 2011

HE
“F——E+f-H
PRC

4 May 2012

HE
“S-"£7AMA
PRC

29 June 2012

HE
“Z-—ExAZTAR

Legal status

EETREH

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited fiabilty
company

EREEAA

Limited liability
company

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELES
Al

56.75%
(Indirectly held)

86.75%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(&%)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(R&HH)

97.8%
(Indirectly held)

97.8%
(BEHE)

10. KMIBATE (&)

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital
BETRERRA EERA
RMB 93,098,162  RMB 93,098,162
AEE AEH#
930981627 93,098,1627C
RVB RVB
100,000,000 100,000,000
ARE AR
100,000,007z 100,000,000
RMB 6,000,000  RMB 6,000,000
AEE AEH#
6,000,0007¢ 6,000,000
RMB 10,000,000  RMB 10,000,000
N NG
10,000,000z 10,000,0007C
RMB 100,000,000 RMB 100,000,000
AEE AEH#
100,000,007z 100,000,0007%

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

Principal activities

IEXE

Manufacture and sales of
casting products and
equipment maintenance

International trading

anEs

Motor vehicle scrap and
crush demolition solution

GHELE LS
E#EENZ

Publication

hal7E

Provision of loans

RIHER

211



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES
£ ARRLLERAH EEERER BAl  EEARERRA EERE  TEEH
Tianjin Jini Logistics Co. Ltd. ~ PRC Limited liabilty 97.6% RVB RMB Provision of agency
(*Jinxi Logistics”) 31 July 2012 company (Indirectly held) 20,000,000 20,000,000 services for import/export
REEEMRERAA el EREEAT 97.6% NG AR®  REELORERS
(@) ZE-CEtA=T-R (FEHE) 20,000,000 20,000,007
Qianxi Xinhalyuan Trade PRC Limited liabilty 97.6% RMB 2,000,000  RMB 2,000,000  Sales of mining
Co. Ltd. (*Xinhaiyuan’) 24 Qctober 2012 company (Indlrectly held) machinery accessories
ERERERAEARAR  1E EREEAT 97.6% NG ARE  HERBRARSE
(88" “E-CETAZTEA (REHA) 20000007 2,000,007
Tianjin Juli Trade Co. Ltd. PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB RVMB  International tracing
("Juli Trade") 25 Qctober 2012 company (Indlrectly held) 100,000,000 100,000,000
RERNESERAA i BREAR 97.6% NG A% ERES
([ZHEZ]) ZE-CETAZTAR (FEHE) 100,000,0007C 100,000,000 7
Suzhou Jinxi Boyuan Real PRC Limited liability 58.56% RMB 80,000,000 RMB 80,000,000  Development and sales
Estate Co. Ltd. ("Suzhou 23 January 2013 company (Indlrectly held) of real estate
Boyuan”) i)
BNZERERHERE hE EREFAT 58.56% AR® ARE  BHERERHE
BRAE(ENERD )  —F-=%-A=1=H (FEHE) 80,000,0007c 80,000,007t
Beijing Jinxi Boyuan Project PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB 1,000,000  RMB 1,000,000  Construction project
Management Co. Ltd. 12 July 2013 company (Indirectly held) management
(‘Beiiing Boyuan Project
Management’)
IREERREEERERAR R EREFAT 97.6% AR® AR TREREE
([rrEEBEER)) ZE-=5tATCR (FEHE) 1,000,0007¢ 1,000,0007
Well Balanced Global Limted BV Limited liabilty 100% US§ 1 US$50000  Investment holaing
(‘Well Balance”) 2 January 2014 company (Directly held)
Wl Balanced Global Limited ~ £B#ERES BREEAR 100% 1% 5000%m RERK
(IWel Balance ) “2-mE-A=A (BEHA)
Finest Sino Intemational Limited BV Limited fiability 100% US$ 1 US§50,000  Investment holding
(‘Finest Sina”) 2 January 2014 company (Indirectly held)
Finest Sino Intermational Limted ~ £B&BREE BREMAR 100% 151 50000%T  REER
(TFinest Sino ) “Z-RE-AZR (H&#E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
MESEANARBTIREN) BE_Z—REFT_A=+—-BILFE

10.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

R

Origntal Jingyuan Science
Technology (Beiing) Co. Ltd.
(‘Oriental Jingyuan”) (v) (vil

RAGRMETRE(LR)
BRAR(RARR])0) ()

Tian Jin Hainjin International
Trade Co. Ltd.
(Tian Jin Haingjin’
REEHEARESERAT
([X2hhe))

Tian Jin Hengyuanda Goal
Trade Co. Ltd.
(Tian Jin Hengyuanda’)
REEEERREHRRAT
([R2ERE))

Tian Jin Haichangsheng
Steel Trade Co. Ltd.
(Tian Jin Haichangsheng’)
REBEAAMESERAT
(TR#8E7 )

Tian Jin Longshunxiang
Environmental Protection
Engineering Co. Lid.

(Tian Jin Longshunxiang’)

REREARR TRERA
([RRIER)

Suzhou Jinxi Boyun Real
Estate Co. Ltd.
(*Suzhou Boyun’)

BHEREERERS
AR ([EMEE))

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER RS

PRC
18 February 2014

o
“F-mECATAR

PRC
20 February 2014

HE
“F-WE-A-1H

PRC
26 March 2014

BE
“E2-ME=A-15A

PRC
26 March 2014

B
“E-ME=R=F~H

PRC
26 March 2014

hE

“E-ME=R=F~H

PRC
25 Aprl 2014

GilEd
“F-MEMA-TEA

(BRAAEH -

Legal status

EETREH

Limited liability
company

BRELEAA

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited fiability

company

EREEAA

Limited liability
company

EREEAA

Limited liability
company

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Group
AEEELES
Al

49.8%
(Indlrectly held)

49.8%
(BEHR)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(RiRA)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(R&HH)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%

(BEER)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

10. KMIBATE (&)

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital
BETRERRA EERA
RvB RVB
100,000,000 100,000,000
ARE ARE
100,000,0007c 100,000,000
RMB RVB
100,000,000 100,000,000
ARE AR
100,000,007z 100,000,000
RvB RVB
0 10,000,000
AR AEH#
ET 10,000,0007
RVB RVB
0 10,000,000
ARHE NG

L 10,000,000

RMB RMB

0 30,000,000

N AR#

T 30,000,000

RvB RMB
30,000,000 30,000,000
ARE AEE
30,000,000t 30,000,007

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

Principal activities

IEXE

Technology and import and
export of goods

R REmERO

International trading

anEs

Wholesale and retall trade

HSREEES

Wholesale and refall trade

HERTERS

Environmental protection
engineering

BRLIE

Development and sales
of real estate

BHERIRHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES

£ ARRLLERAH EEERER Bt BREORERRE EERE  TEEH

Qianx Xian Dafang Pengcheng ~ PRC Limited liability 45.75% RMB RMB  Development of energy
Science and Technology 21 July 2014 company (Indirectly held) 6,000,000 6,000,000 saving technology and
Co. Ltd. (‘Dafang freight transport
Pengcheng’) (il

ERZANERNEARAT  hE EREMAA 45.75% ARE ARE  FRERREREE
(TRABER) (i) “B-MELAZT-R (REHA) 6000000 6,000,000

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group  PRC Limited liabilfty 97.6% RMB RMB  Manufacture and sales of
Special Steel Co. Ltd. 16 October 2014 company (Indirectly held) 1,570,000,000  2,150,000,000 steel products
(*Jinxi Special Stegl’)

EplA=Fif il 3] el EREEAT 97.6% NG ARE  EERHEREER
RHARAT ZE-METATAR (FERE) 15700000007  2150,000,0007
)it )

Tangshan Jinxi Logistics PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB RMB  Transport agency of import
Co. Ltd. 7 April 2015 company (Indirectly held) 10,000,000 10,000,000 and export goods
(‘Tangshan Logistics’)

BUREMRERAA el EREMAA 97.6% ARE ARE  EHREMESRSE
([ELmz]) ZE-REMALA (FEHE) 10,000,000z 10,000,000

Qianxi Boshun Logistics PRC Limited fiabilty 97.6% RMB RMB  Logistics
Co. Ltd. 9 April 2015 company (Indirectly held) 10,000,000 10,000,000
(‘Boshun Logistics’)

BEZERTARAR el EREfFAT 97.6% ARE ARE Wik
([EIEmi ) “2-15mANA (REHA) 10,000,000 100000007

New Asia Prosperity PRC Limited liabilfty 97.6% RVB RMB  International tracing
International Trade Co. Lid. 10 June 2015 company (Indirectly held) 0 100,000,000
(‘New Asia Prosperity”)

AENEEERESERAT  hE EREMAA 97.6% ARE ARE  ERES
(HERES]) “2-1%5A1H (REHA) 1 1000000007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
MESEANARBTIREN) BE_Z—REFT_A=+—-BILFE

10.

Name

R

Dongfang Jingyuan Hong Kong
Co. Ltd. (‘Dongfang Jingyuan
Hong Kong') (v

RRREERRAR
(TRA&REE i

Tianjin Ansai Assets Management
Co. Ltd (*Ansai Asset
Management’)

REZEEERRARAR
ed333)

Qianxi County Jinx
Wantong Ductile Iron
Pipe Co. Ltd. (“Jinxi
Wantong’) ()
il it el
BRAR([RAEER]) W

Tianjin Origntal Jiangtian
Section Steel Sales Co. Ltd.
(‘Oriental Jiangtian’)

REMFEALAHAHE
ERAR(RAILX)

Tianjin Jinxi Zhengda Hengxin
International Trade Co. Ltd.
(‘Zhengda Hengxin’)

REERLERLER
CULI
([TFEERD)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation

(BRAAEH -

Legal status

AMRLLERAH EELRE
Hong Kong Limited liabilty
18 September 2015 company
B EREFAT
“E-REARTIR

PRC Limited fiabifty
30 September 2015 company
hE BREMAR
“E-RENA=TR

PRC Limited fiabifty
22 July 2009 company
e EREMRA
“EENELACTCR

PRC Limited liabilty
25 December 2015 company
e EREMAR
Z2-RET-ACTEA

PRC Limited liabilty
23 March 2016 company
ke EREMRA
- EZAZTER

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELES
Al

49.8%
(Indlrectly held)

49.8%
(BERE)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BERR)

97.6%

(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

69.3%
(Indirectly held)

69.3%
(BEHE)

10. KMIBATE (&)

Issued

and fully

paid capital
BETRERRA

HK$ 1

R\B
2,000,000

AEH
2,000,000

RVB
680,000,000
I\

680,000,007

RMB
0

AEH

RMB

AEH

£

Authorised
capital

EERK

Not applicable

RER

R\VB

100,000,000

ARK
100,000,007

R\VB
680,000,000

NRH

680,000,000t

R\VB
10,000,000

ARE
10,000,007

R\VB
100,000,000

ARE
100,000,0007¢
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Principal activities

IEXE

Investment holding

RAZR

Assets management

HEER

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

EEREEREER

Manufacture and sales of

steel products

EEREEREER

International trading

RES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES
£ ARRLLERAH EEERER BAl  EEARERRA EERE  TEEH
Tianjin Jinxi Zhiyuan PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB RVMB  International tracing
Interational Trade Co. Ltd. 23 March 2016 company (Indirectly held) 0 100,000,000
(“Jinxi Zhiyuan”)
REEEHRERES i BREMRA 97.6% AR® NS )
BRAR Z5-5=Az1=A (BEHA) L 1000000007
(=it
Tianjin Xinhui Finance Leasing~ PRC Limited liabilty 98.2% RVB RMB  Financial leasing and leasing
Co. Ltd. (‘Tianjin Xinhui ) 13 April 2016 company (Indirectly held) 1 bilion 1 bilion
AECERENEARAR  HE EREFAT 98.2% AR% ARE  HEEEREE
(TR2E) 2 EMATER (B#RE) 10000000007 1,000,000,0007
Hebei Jinxi Interational Trade ~ PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB RVMB  International tracing
Co. Ltd. (*Hebei Jinxi 27 April 2016 company (Indirectly held) 0 100,000,000
International Tradg”)
MEEEREFERAR  HE EREFAT 97.6% AR% NS )
(ML zERE]) 2 EMACTLA (REHA) BT 1000000007
Zhongke Jingyuan Science PRC Limited liability 44.8% RVB RMB  Technology and import and
Technology (Befing) Co. Ltd. 25 August 2016 company (Indirectly held) 8,000,000 100,000,000 export of goods
(‘Zhongke Jingyuan”) (vi)
HRERNE TR P EREFAT 44.8% AR® ARE  BiREmELD
(L) BRAT “2-E\A-T1A (BEHA) 80000007 100,000,0007%
(Tt ]) (i
Zhongjin Finance Leasing PRC Limited liabilty 99.1% RVB RMB  Financial leasing and leasing
Co. Ltd. (‘Zhongjin Leasing”) 15 December 2016 company (Indirectly held) 750,000,000 1 bilion
HEBARERRAT e EREFAT 99.1% AR% ARE  HEEERES
([mizga)) ZE-NETZRTER (FEHE) 750,000,0007c  1,000,000,0007¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The English name of certain companies referred in this financial

statements represent management’s best effort at translating

the Chinese names of these companies as no English names

have been registered.

U)

(i)

(i)

On 5 February 2016, Beijing Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment Management Company Limited (“Jingtang
Guangzhi Investment”), which is controlled by Mr. Wang
Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real Estate, transferred
its 40% equity interest in Boyuan Real Estate to a third
party while this part was subsequently acquired by
Jinxi Limited on 2 March 2016 with payment in notes
receivables. The difference between the fair value of
consideration paid by the Group and the 40% share of
the net assets of Boyuan Real Estate, amounting to RMB
24.5 million, is credited in equity and attributable to the
owner of the Group.

Jinxi Limited acquired 10% equity interest in Jinxi
Dafang from another shareholder with payment in notes
receivables and the percentage of equity interest in Jinxi
Dafang and Dafang Pengcheng attributable to the Group
correspondingly rised to 55.9%. The difference between
the fair value of consideration paid by the Group and the
10% share of the net assets of Jinxi Dafang, amounting
to RMB 4 million, is debited in equity and attributable to
the owner of the Group.

Beijing Real Estate and Mudanjiang Ruiyuan Investment
Company Limited separately decreased share capital of
RMB 30 million and RMB 20 million from Suzhou Boyuan
with repayment in notes receivables and the equity
percentage has not changed.

10.

BE_Z—RET-A=T—BILFE

MRS (&)

AP BEIRER S T ARRE XA
RERBRBES X EHEREREMN

=l
1=

BTy % A R RO A

BHRXAH -

(i)

R-ZE—XRNFE-_ARB ' &K
REEEREEEBEBERAA
(REEXEZRE]) (ABEREH
ENEE T EAT AL &
HRBIREHE40% I T —
BE=F  MZBHRERE
ME—NE=ZA - A hEmMH
HUEE - UEREEAR &
EEMEXAREZAREER
FE(RE R E B EFE40%
ZEEAARE24508TT 0 K
=N R R BN AL B
mIBA °

EAMEE S —BRERERE
FARTT10% IRt - AR R 18
N AEBEEEARA R
AITBREZBREE DG INE
55.9% ° NEBZAREZA
ABEABLEAASEEF
B10% 2 =8 A ARE4008
TC REZR AR REBRA
EEERFEA -

It REHE RS THRRIEE
ERARSZBRDREMNE
BRARM3000&ETRARE
2,000 BT .2 R7N + AR IR
B8 - MiEma DL WEES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIBEATE (&)

218

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

On 1 April 2016, Jinxi Special Steel, the subsidiary of
Jinxi Limited, acquired all equity interest of Jinxi Wantong
whose original paid-in capital was RMB 100 million at a
consideration of RMB 263 million in notes receivables
amounting to RMB 55 million and cash amounting to
RMB 208 million from a third party and increased its
share capital to RMB 680 million in notes receivables
consequently (Note 43).

Beijing Jinxi Investment injected new capital contribution
of RMB 5 million to Oriental Jingyuan without changing
the percentage of equity interest. The difference of the
49% share of net assets owned by non-controlling
interest before and after the capital contribution by
Beijing Jinxi Investment, amounting to RMB 2.5 million,
is debited in equity and attributable to the owner of the
Group.

Jinxi Dafang transferred all equity interest in Hebei
Jinxi Kaixin Energy-Saving Technology Development
Company Limited (“Kaixin Energy-Saving”) to a third
party at a consideration of RMB 3.1 million. The
difference between the fair value of consideration
received and the net assets of Kaixin Energy-Saving,
amounting to RMB 1.7 million, is recorded in “other
losses — net” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Although the equity holdings of the Group in these
subsidiaries are below 51%, the Directors are of the
review that the Group has control over these subsidiaries
given that majority of the directors of the companies
are appointed by the Group by virtue of the article of
association of the respective companies.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 B A FR 2 7]

(iv)

(vii)

RZZF—A"FMNA—H  2FA
S E Q= ic: i vl ) == /NI DR
REBARE263ET(AARE
5,500 B L E R R AR
2088 E—RE = HEBHIE
)W EAEB(HREEHE
REANREARIT) 2P
R B b DA e Wi 3 4% 38 N EL AR AR
E AR 6.8187T (Hi7E43) °

ERREAREEREERER
DHZER T ARG @REE
ARKEB008TT © LFRORAIRE
REE BIR B AG IRHE S 1 HE a8
BBEAON CEEFBEZERR
AR#25087TT - IERATIRR
KEBNAEERSRAA -

EARTAREBAREII0ET
B2 3% 0m 46 2 74 B B AR e BH IR
AR ([FERETEE ) KA
BT —RE=77 - 2K
BZAREBERMEMECE
EFEZEBRRAREI708
T WEtARHHERKRPH [H
fl &8 - FEE ] -

B AR E BB R EN B A A
TRBIERS1% - ERZEA
AABHEFEAEERER
ENFHABESRANNEL
EERAREEYZEHEA
TR -

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEBRUUARE T TREN

(BRAAEH -

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@)

Material non-controlling interests

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2016, there
were no significant non-controlling interests of the
subsidiaries in the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, loss attributable
to non-controlling interests is RMB 191 million, of which
RMB 188 million is attributed to the non-controlling
interests of Zhengda Iron and Steel.

Summarised financial information on subsidiary
with material loss attributable to non-controlling
interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the subsidiary that has loss attributable to non-

controlling interests that is material to the group.

Summarised balance sheet

Current RE

Assets &=

Liabilities =L

Total current net assets BREEEFE
Non-current FERED

Assets BE

Liabilities =

Total non-current net assets BIERENEEFE
Net assets BEFRE

10. HMEAA

(@)

B Ot IR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—RFt+-A=TBLLEFE

(%)
EARIHE IR LS

REBE-_Z—-XF+-A
=T—BHEFE AEENH
EYNCINZ:E st 2 Sl

RBEE_ZT-R"F+_-A
=T BLIEFE  FEHERE
aREBEESAREINE
T BEPARBA1BETHEE
E’\IE 2 S 5 A TR 5 1 S

FEGMERFERNERNK
BATR M BENRER

T ICERGI SRR M S PR B
BHAEEMNSBERZHE
R BERRE -
BEABERME

Zhengda Iron and Steel

IFERE
2016 2015
—g-AF —2-HF
908,194 931,989
(1,265,302) (920,345)
(357,108) 11,644
181,384 1,053,394
- (594,034)
181,384 459,360
(175,724) 471,004
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
(@)  Material non-controlling interests (continued) @ EARIEEFIMEES(E)
Summarised statement of profit or loss BRiRHE

Zhengda Iron and Steel
=ik
2016 2015
=A% CZTH#F

Revenue g A 2,160,154 2,127,522
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETS TR (B18R), S5l (602,060) 8,854
Income tax expense FriSHi & /A (44,668) (60,821)
Post-tax loss from continuing B IR T 12 518

operations (646,728) (561,967)
Other comprehensive income HAbsrE Was = -
Total comprehensive loss RE R (646,728) (51,967)
Total comprehensive loss allocated DR T34z 2

to non-controlling interests 4 A BSR4 EE (187,551) (15,071)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B I A 2 2 AR

interests - =
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
(@  Material non-controlling interests (continued) @ EARIEEFIEER(E)
Summarised cash flows HEeREHRE

Zhengda Iron and Steel

IFERE
2016 2015
—E-REF g
Cash flows from operating RELEEHNRESRE
activities
Cash generated from/(used in) BEEAN(FA)R:
operations 244,911 (836,942)
Income tax paid EASFriSHR (126,142) (163,817)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EETEBEAR(FrR) RS
operating activities 118,769 (500,759)
Net cash used in investing activites ~ FARKRE/EHHIE & /F58 (127,323) (91,529)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTH),EER
financing activities NS EEE (33,881) 558,559
Net decrease in cash and cash RERRESEEBEYRD FE
equivalents (42,435) (83,729)
Cash and cash equivalents FUREMREEEY
at beginning of year 99,066 132,795
Cash and cash equivalents FRBEMREGEED
at end of year 56,631 99,066
The information above is the amount before inter- FitER A ARIEEEA £ o

company eliminations.
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

11. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 11. RBEQRZ2RE

2016 2015
—E-REF —FT—RF

At 1 January n—H—H 8,836 -
Establishment of an associate B S — R & A A 20,000 =
Capital injection (i) JEE (i) 8,658 9,581
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BRIELEH B AR M 19,160 -
with the remaining interest BRI RS RE R
retained in an associate (i) — B E R R ()
Share of results of associates FE(EHE DRI LA (1,022) (745)
At 31 December RNt+-=HA=+—H 55,632 8,836
The information of the unlisted associated company at 31 RZE—RFE+ZA=+—H B#
December 2016 is as follows: e EMEEE A RIRERIESIAT
Percentage
of equity
Place and interest
date of attributable Net profit/
Name incorporation to the Group Assets Liabilities Revenues (loss)
rEEE -1
a7 A bR K A EREE DL BE af5 KA (B18)
Palma Ceia SemiDesign, USA 30% 279 14,143 7,781 (14,358)
Inc. (‘PCS’) 5 November 2012 (indirectly held)
Palma Ceia SemiDesign, XM 30% 279 14,143 7,781 (14,358)
Inc. (PCS]) —T-—F (FERA)
T—RAHA
XTAL Inc. (“XTAL”) (i) USA 32.13% 6,589 13,980 64,411 10,224
27 January 2014 (indirectly held)
XTAL Inc. ([XTALJ) () ESE 32.13% 6,589 13,980 64,411 10,224
—Z—F (H#ERSB)
—A=++H
Beijing Wofu Energy Co. Ltd PRC 20% 100,000 - = =
(“Wofu”) (ii) 6 December 2016 (indirectly held)
IRAREERERAR H 20% 100,000 - - -
(DRE D (i) ZERE (H#ERSB)
+=AX~A
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

11. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

U)

(i)

Pursuant to a stock purchase agreement dated 20
January 2016, both Finest Sino, a subsidiary of the
Group and a third party agreed to subscribe Series A
Preferred Stock newly issued by XTAL amounting to US$
1.3 million (approximately RMB 8.7 million) and US$ 4
million (approximately RMB 26.0 million) respectively.
As a result, the Group’s equity interest was diluted from
67.1% to 32.13% and XTAL had become an associate
of the Group. After remeasurement of the fair value of
investment in XTAL, the gain on deemed disposal of
XTAL, amounting to RMB 28.6 million, is recorded in
“other losses — net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Pursuant to a collaboration agreement between Ansai
Asset Management and other shareholders of Wofu
dated 1 November 2016, Ansai Asset Management
agreed to participate in setting up Wofu by injecting
capital contribution of RMB 20 million, owning 20%
of equity interest. Besides, Ansai Asset Management
occupied one of the four seats in the board of directors
of Wofu and had significant influence.

For the period ended 31 December 2016, the Group
had recognised share of loss of associates amounted to

approximately RMB 1 million from application of equity

accounting.

11. REZEQATZRE(E)

U)

(i)

BEBSHE-_ZT—F—A
“TTRZERRE AEEZ
B A &l Finest Sinok—%& %
=R EREXTALHEITH
AZRTIEBER - D RIA13083E
TL(HWAREESTOE L) X 4008
EL(HARKE2,600&7TT) °
Ut REE 2 RIERGT7.1%HE
£32.13% MXTALRK BAEE 2
AT o MEFETENXTAL
JEZRAREEE BIEHE
XTALZ W e A AR #2,860 &
TC - W AGBHERKTR [
fthE518 —F 5 o

BEZEEEEEREAEZHE
MRRERR=ZZE—RF+—H—
eIz & REBE
EEREERTIEARE 2000
&t (B 20% &4 ) R ELRK 3T
RE o o REBEEEER
ABESZHABHNEESR 2 —1E
BRI R EERFE -

BE_T-—REFT-_A=1T—HLH
f - AEBECEAERSIARERE

16

FENBBIROARB 1008 -
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. €T A (&RER)
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
Loans and profit and financial
receivables loss assets Total
BOER
FEREEH
&Nk HARRRZ AHEE
FEWBRR SREE SREE fif
Assets as per consolidated AHEEERRATNEE
balance sheet
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—AETZA=1—H
Avallable-for-sale financial assets (Note 15) A ESBEE (M 15) - - 489,555 489,555
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) ENE SBR REE (3 17) 2,802,482 = = 2,822,482
Deposits and other receivables (Note 18) 158 REMEERS (i3 18) 938,440 - - 938,440
Financial assets at fair value through BRAEEEALEHHA
profit or loss (Note 20) itk eRAE (Mi20) - 387,458 - 387,458
Derivative financial instruments TEERTIA - 6,220 - 6,220
Amounts due from related TR 75 78 (B 44(c))
parties (Note 44(c)) 16,671 - - 16,671
Loan receivables (Note 19) el EF (3 19) 401,000 - - 401,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 21) SRR TER (i 21) 890,617 = = 890,617
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) Be kR EEY (1) 1,200,199 - - 1,200,199
Total @it 6,359,409 393,678 480555 7,242,642
As at 31 December 2015 RZE-R5+-A=t-H
Avallable-for-sale financial assets (Note 15) At ESRERE (1) - - 109,60 109,605
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) EWE SRR REE (H:17) 3,456,825 - - 3,456,825
Deposits and other recelvables (Note 18) 1% REAEYER (3 18) 715,667 - - 715,667
Derivative financial instruments fTEEBIA - 10,233 - 10,233
Financial assets at fair value through BRABEE BEEETA
proft or loss (Note 20) BRERZEBERE (M20) - 131,951 - 131,951
Amounts due from related Fe R 08 (BitEE 44()
parties (Note 44(c)) 5,828 - = 5,828
Loan recelvables (Note 19) e ER (i 19) 400,000 - - 400,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 21) SR A CIRZAD) 1,773,697 - - 1,773,697
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) BeRASEEM (o1 2,337,547 - - 2337547
Total @t 8,689,564 142,184 109,605 8,941,353
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. €@ITE (RER)(E)

(continued)
Financial liabilities Financial
measured at liabilities
fair value through measured at
profitor loss  amortised cost Total
RAAEE REH
FTEEEZEHTA AT
BERZERAE SRERE At
Liabilities as per consolidated EHEERRRATNEAR
balance sheet
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—E+-A=t-H
Trade payables (Note 24) JEE SR (fitsE24) = 5,425,323 5,425,323
Other payables (Note 25) Efh Rt BRa (Pifst 25) - 479,073 479273
Borrowings (Note 26) EEAGIEZ) - 1,381,007 1,381,007
Other long-term payables (Note 27) R BRI (i or) - 1,166,586 1,166,586
Amounts due to related {5 AR 77 70B (Rt 44(c))
parties (Note 44(c)) - 79,125 79,125
Derivative financial instruments fTEERIA 15,669 - 15,669
Total st 15,669 8,531,314 8,546,983
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z-RF+-A=t-H
Trade payables (Note 24) JE 8 SR (fitsE24) = 5,641,030 5,641,030
Other payables (Note 25) EhERBR R (FifiE25) = 644,466 644,466
Borrowings (Note 26) 3% (fiti26) - 3,402,375 3,402,375
Other long-term payables (Note 27) Eft AR (HEer) - 1,229,784 1,229,784
Amounts due to related SRR 77 30B (Mt 44(c))
parties (Note 44(c)) - 134,903 134,903
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 3,616 - 3,616
Total @t 3,616 11,052,558 11,056,174
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(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 13. ERMEEMNEENRR
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due HMABINEERENSREENS
nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets BRI RS MEERER - WAE
and by reference to historical information about counterparty BRE T HB /R L B E 2 B R ETTET
default rates. The Group categorised the trade, notes o REBEKRIWE SRR - ERE
receivables and loan receivables as follows: B REWERDIENT
e Group 1 - Bank acceptance notes e ZFM-RITEAHER
e Group 2 - Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables s FBE-BUBEEHRLE
due from customers with no defaults in the past MNEPHEWE SR - B
EERREWRER
e Group 3 - Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables s F-H-RYBEBMHEHER
due from customers with some defaults in the past EERNEFNEWE SRR

PR R I R E 5K

Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables JEUE ZERFR  FEWEE K BN E TR
2016 2015
TE-RE —E—hF
Group 1 E—H 2,339,669 2,452,299
Group 2 F-fF 883,813 1,004,526
Group 3 E=4 - 400,000
3,223,482 3,856,825
The credit quality of ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’, AEB[AIEHESHEE]  [ES
‘Deposits and other receivables’ and ‘Amounts due from R H fh e AR SR ] & [ FE U B Bt 5 5%
related parties’ of the Group is disclosed in Notes 15, 18 and B ] MEERRD RIRHEES - 18 K&
44(c) respectively. 44(c) 155 o
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(BABEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 13. EREBENEERR ()

The Group categorises cash in banks as follows: REEFEBITREHNT :
e Group 1 —Major international banks o FH-TEERIRIT
e Group 2 - Listed banks in the PRC o  FM—hB ETIRIT
e Group 3 - Subsidiary of listed banks and other banks in o F-F-—FhE EMRITHBHE
the PRC B R H M IRTT
The Directors considered the credit risks in respect of cash in BHREHESEEEFTHRS AT
banks and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively HRFTRPESH ARET  HES
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit rating REFHRSRIMENIRTIRS &R
or is state-owned bank and large local banks in the PRC. TEREERBIRE -
Cash in banks and bank deposits IRITH S MIRITER
2016 2015

ZE-RE —F—AF
Group 1 E—1 616,524 970,619
Group 2 F48 976,835 2,654,984
Group 3 FE=48 554,663 465,150

2,148,022 4,090,753
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND HELD 14. BEHRRBEHEYE

FOR SALE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
Properties under development comprise:  ZEFY)EEIE ¢
— Construction costs —FERRAAN 156,322 459,017
— Land use rights — b {E R 53,412 492,156
— Interests capitalised —BAREF B 22,059 92,225

231,793 1,043,398

B IER R E L SR 1,187,320 270,314
1,419,113 1,313,712

Completed properties held for sale

The properties under development and held for sale are all
located in the PRC. The related land use rights are on lease of
40 to 70 years.

As at 31 December 2015, land use rights with the carrying
amount of approximately RMB 146 million was pledged as
security for the Group’s bank borrowings.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 15 million (2015: RMB 45
million) were capitalised into the cost of properties under
development at an annual average capitalisation rate of 6.38%
(2015: 7.57%) approximately.

Properties under development BERPYMESRE
comprised:

Expected to be completed and FEEIR 12 A AT
available for sale within 12 months KAa#HHE

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

BRHP M EHEMROURTE -
MERE L FAETEHIR40E 705 -

R-ZE—RAFE+-A=+—8 " &M@\
EHAREA 46 BT L HERES
REE KR T iE B EE AR -

HE_Z—E+-A=+—HLtHF
[ BEERAHAREA,5008T (=
T—RF : AR¥E4,5008 L) BIRF
EFHERLLL £46.38% (=T —H
F :7.57%) B BERFYELK

231,793 1,043,398
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(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unlisted equity interests (a)
Less: provision for impairment

Net

Listed equity interests
Add: fair value gains credited to other
comprehensive income (Note 23)
Less: disposal

Net

Listed debt securities (b)
Add: fair value gains credited to other
comprehensive income (Note 23)

FE LML (a)
B OREE R

15. Al

HE-T—R"E+A=1T—HLEFE

HESHEE

2016
—E-XF —F-EF

HE

TR (o)

o FFAEAARE WES 2
A EERE (7 23)
W e

FE

LW ERES D)
e FFAEMERE W
~ e EEWE (HFE23)

Total &5r

The Group’s unlisted equity interests mainly comprised
an investment amounted to RMB 230 million in a 3%
equity interest in Bank of Cangzhou Company Limited
(“Bank of Cangzhou”), an investment amounted to RMB
188 million in a 51% equity interest in Qianxi County
Jinjin Mine Co. Ltd. (“Jinjin Mine”) and an investment
amounted to RMB 95 million in a 10% equity interest
in Caofeidian Port Company Limited. The investee
companies are all operating in the PRC.

As the above investments do not have any quoted
market price in an active market, the range of reasonable
fair value estimate is so significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, the Directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be reliably measured. Therefore, these
investments are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

527,705 297,705
(188,100) (188,100)
339,605 109,605
- 11,638

= 3,979

- (15,617)
148,429 -
1,521 -
149,950 -
489,555 109,605

AEEMELTREEZEDRE
UARB23BILIEERSEBA
MERTTIRD BRAF ([AMER
1T1) B 3% izt - LAAR® 1.88
BLRENSEAREZSHEE
BRAR(NESTEZE]) BI51%
&t K A AR ¥ 9,500 B TR &
BEELELEEOERAA
B10% R - ZEEBERENA
AR EEE -

R Ll R B R IE BT 5 &
EATERE AABEEARE
EEtEEEEER  mMY&
R LS EED
A MEER/EAAEBE
EAAEAE At ZFER
BRI ERESIR(NE) o
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BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIREN) HE-Z-— ST _A=1t—HILFE

230

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

(@ (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Oriental
Green, a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
investment in shares agreement with Bank of Cangzhou,
an independent third party of the Group pursuant to
which Oriental Green agreed to invest and subscribe
for, and Bank of Cangzhou agreed to issue and allot
100 million ordinary shares of Bank of Cangzhou for the
consideration of approximately RMB 230 million. The
100 million ordinary shares represented approximately
3% of the enlarged issued share capital of Bank of
Cangzhou after completion of the private subscription.

(o) The Group’s listed debt securities comprised
investments in debentures of several companies.

16. INVENTORIES

15. AHHESREE (&)

(@ (&)

REBEE-_ZFT—X"XF+=A8
=+—BLEFE  BAZR(K
SEZHBAR)EAMBRT
(AEBZBYE=7) MK
MEEHZE Bt RAKR
BERRBEmMAMBRITREE
77 & i % 100,000,000 A% & M
RITEBR REHAARE
2.30f& 7T ° 100,000,000 f% & i
AR (58 M ER1 TR FL L R B T K
BISHERNBE BITIRALI3% o

b)) AEBFHEBEZESEERE
MAR 2 EREEZIRE -
16. FE&

2016 2015
—E-REF —F—RF

Raw materials and materials in-transit B R R EETE 2,595,524 1,652,499
Work-in-progress R 252,834 171,872
Finished goods BUAY T 485,992 819,251

Less: impairment provision B R EEE - (149,598)
Inventories — net FE—F5 3,334,350 2,494,024

As at 31 December 2016, inventories with a net book value
of RMB 69 million (2015: RMB 62 million) were pledged as
security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 24).

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB 23,565 million
(2015: RMB 20,307 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recognised
a loss of RMB 105 million, in respect of the write-down of
inventories to their net realisable values (Note 32).
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RZE-—RFE+_A=+—H BER
NE B FE SRR (B 7E 24) MK IR A
FENE@FEAAREKE9008 T
(Z=—h% : AR%6,20087T) °

HE-ZT-— X F+A=+—HItF
& BERABHERANTER RS
AR 23565 IL(ZFE—HF : A
R¥203.0787T) °

BE_T-AFt-_A=1+—HLLF
B AEBCHERIARB1.05ET
SEBWMEFEER 2 FENER
(FffaE32) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

17.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEUE 5 IR K
Long-term trade receivables RHEWE 5 8RR
— current portion —mEED

Less: impairment provision for
trade receivables

BB
Trade receivables — net

eSS

Notes receivable

Total trade and notes receivables,

kR B

net of provision

The long-term trade receivables — current portion as at 31
December 2015 represented the receivables for the provision
of construction services in the previous years, and bear
interest at a rate of 6.3% per annum. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the receivables from Jinxi Wantong had been
settled through a business combination.

The notes receivable are all bank acceptance notes. The
settlement of the notes receivable were guaranteed by banks
with maturity dates within six months and the credit risks of the
notes receivable are considered low. As at 31 December 2016,
approximately RMB 358 million (2015: RMB 582 miillion) were
pledged as security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 24)
and no notes receivable (2015: RMB 844 million) was pledged
as security for the Group’s borrowings (Note 26).

The fair values of trade and notes receivables approximated
their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

W EUCE B AR

FEWE 5 fR K — 8

FEWE ZIRR N RIRAERR

17. BREZRIAERE

509,659 614,405

- 400,000

(26,846) (9,879)
482,813 1,004,526
2,339,669 2,452,299
2,822,482 3,456,825

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H &£
JEWE 5 BRR— MBS D BRI
R TR 2 IR - WIRFEF
EB.3%FR c REE_ZT—RF+=
A=1T—HItFE  BREAERL
HIBEL BB HFBEHEE -

FEW IR BIRTT AR IESE o FEINEE
BHEEBERBEANA - AAER
RITERREERREFER AR - K=
T—RE+_A=+—8 HARK
358BIL(ZE—HRF : ARKS82(E
70) A BN B R R =R (F15E24)
ERIR R EENEE (22— hF
AR 44187 ) RS B R &7 (K
F£26) EHH -

RIFRFETEKX - BREFHRH R

ZENEE AN A BEOUERE
8-
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(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

17.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Except for the long-term trade receivables — current portion,
the credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the sales of
products to customers is to deliver goods either upon receipt
in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with the
maturity dates within six months.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the ageing analysis of the
gross amount of trade and notes receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAR
4-6 months AZE6MEA
7-12 months 7E1218 A
Over 1 year —FE

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables amounting to
RMB 58 million (2015: RMB 239 million) were secured by
letters of credit issued by third party customers and no trade
receivable (2015: RMB 479 million) was secured by the pledge
of property, plant and equipment of customers.

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of RMB 30 million
(2015: RMB 433 million) were past due, of which amounting
to RMB 27 million (2015: RMB 10 million) were fully impaired.
The remaining balances of these receivables were past due but
not impaired which related to a number of customers with no
recent history of default.
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17.

e E 5 R R RE (&)

B ERHIEWE 2R —RB DI -
AEEHITHERHEEEBR @
T RPUEIR & 5B B RS E A A
AR TR ERBRATPRNEY)

RZE—RNFER_FT—AF+=A
=+—H ' BRESERNEZEERE
RIBRBR DATAN T :

2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—RF
1,882,767 1,215,906
860,059 1,717,523
45,661 44,396
60,841 488,879
2,849,328 3,466,704

R-E—RE+-—A=+—H ' UE
=HFEPHAENERBEERNEK
BORABARKS808IL(=ZE
—HRF: AR¥239E5T) » ML E
EUWESER(ZZE—RF : ARK
A79BTL) LR PHIYIZE - BFE k&
EVEHEAT o

R-ZE—ARF+-_A=+—8" ' AR
3008 L(ZTE—RF: AR¥
43318 7T) MEWE SR E B -
Hp AR 7008 T (ZE—RHF :
AR 1,00087T) WEWE ZRAE
2RRE - ZZEWERRWRED @
HERBE  WHEEZERILEE
FBFGEHES ©
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(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months
Over 1 year

3EAA
—F LA E

The gross amounts of the Group’s trade and notes receivables

are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
us$

AR
E v

Movements on the Group’s allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follow:

At 1 January
Provision for impairment (Note 32)
Derecognition of receivables

At 31 December

R—A—H
BB R (fizE32)
4R FRER R IR X

R+=—A=+—8

17.

HE-T—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
ANE+ZA=T—BILFE

FEWE 5 IR R R ()

ZERWE ZRAORESITAT

2016 2015
—EB—REF —ET—AF
3,591 22,626
26,846 409,879
30,437 432,505

AEERKE SRS REBROERTY
ATNIIERE BN

2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—RF
2,787,318 3,227,915

62,010 238,789
2,849,328 3,466,704

REEEWE ZRFRERFBE S

T
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—RF
9,879 13,5633
16,967 4,186
- (7,840)
26,846 9,879
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

REEREIN  FTASEIUARBTLAEN) BE-Z—R"F+A=T—HLFE
18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18.
RECEIVABLES
Non-current IERED
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEYE  MENMERE
plant and equipment (a) ol NE L)
Less: impairment provision B ORBERE
Prepayments for purchase of ﬁ%f‘f%% - B K&
property, plant and equipment — net RABRTEN FRIE — 5
Other receivables H At EUER SR
Current B
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEHFEMTENIE
Other receivables H At IR FX
Less: impairment provision B ORER
Other receivables — net H At IR K —
Prepaid tax SEENEEN
Deposits i
Prepaid expenses SEANE- 035!

The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other receivables

approximated their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet

date, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

SEAREN

B O IR R

H - BREREMERRR

2016 2015
—E-X¥ —ZT—AfF
234,235 234,235
(234,235) (234,235)
13,000 23,000
13,000 23,000
784,611 553,383
549,503 667,054
(315,826) (86,283)
233,677 580,771
214,370 208,307
161,567 44,198
10,898 8,497
1,405,123 1,395,156
1,418,123 1,418,156

ESEiigZ)

2 40

TETEKN BAE - 22

REMBUREIRGEEANAAEBE
AR BREE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. AARE - RERHEMERER
RECEIVABLES (continued) (#&)
Details of certain prepayment, deposits and other receivables ETFIEMNFIE - e K EMmEKERR
are set out below: HIFFIBESI AT
(@)  This prepayment was fully impaired in year 2013 due to @@ EEMNFEER-_Z—=F%%
the supplier was in significant financial difficulty and had B - ThARA R ENE AN
defaulted the payment of the remaining balance. TSR B HE /R S (RS o
Movement on the Group’s impairment provision of NEBEFENRIE © He REMEWER
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as follows: RHVREREEZEE T ¢
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
At 1 January w—A—~H (320,518) (291,245)
Provision for impairment (Note 32) ERE (FizE32) (231,713) (29,273)
Derecognition of receivables #% 1 TR FE AR X 2,170 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (550,061) (820,518)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES

236

19. EBWRER

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AhF

Non-current FERE
Long-term loan receivable (a) FEREEAE TR (a) - 400,000

Current TRE

Long-term loan receivable (a) FERREAE K (a) 400,000 =
Loan receivables (a) UM ET (a) 48,000 57,000
Less: impairment provision (o) B RE TS (o) (47,000) (57,000)
401,000 -
Total loan receivables JEW E AR za 401,000 400,000

The Group provided loans to third parties. The details of the

loans are set out below:

(@)

As at 31 December 2016, loan receivable of RMB
400 million (2015: RMB 400 million) was secured by
the pledge of certain property, plant and equipment
of borrower, bearing interest at a rate of 12% per
annum and repayable in full in December 2017. A
loan receivable of RMB 1 million represented the rent
receivables from finance lease. The remaining RMB 47
million (2015: RMB 57 million) comprised various loans
of individual amount ranging from RMB 7 million to RMB
20 million (2015: RMB 7 million to RMB 20 million),
which were secured by the pledged of property, plant
and equipment of the borrowers or guarantees of the
borrowers or other parties, and interest bearing at rates
ranging from 19.8% to 24.0% (2015:19.8% to 24.0%)
per annum.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

AEBRE=ZHREER - EXRFE
HymT

(@)

RZE—RNREF+A=+—
B ARB4BT(ZZE—H
F: AREAET) HEKE
HERANE TWE  BEK
REERER  REFEA12%
PR WERZE—tF+=
AZFERN - AR¥K100&TH
BRERREKMERE 2H
o BRTARKEL47008T(=
T—RF: AR¥570087T)
BRESEER  BEBESBENT
AR 7008 T E AR 2,000
BL(ZZE—HF : AR¥700
ETEAR®2000877T) ' A
BRASERARERASE
A EE - BKERZEER
TR BRENENF19.8% =
24.0% (ZF—HF : 19.8% &
24.0% )58 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EWRERK (&)

(o)  Asat 31 December 2016, provisions amounting to RMB by RZBE—REFE+_A=+—
47 million (2015: RMB 57 million) were made on the loan A ERERAHEREXNK
receivables given that the borrowers were in significant REEREERENRTE - BHog
financial difficulty and had defaulted in scheduled il 380 77 4% 78 4 ) L [0 e Uk B R
payments and there was significant uncertainty of GFEEANTHBARZE  WHtE
recovering the loan receivables by the enforcement of WERIEH AR 44,7008 T
mortgage rights. —E—RF: AR%57008

TT) R o

The fair values of loan receivables approximated their carrying AIFRZETEKX  EREFTNREH

amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the impact of BRARBEIUEREE -

discounting is not significant.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. EAREBEFEEHESEAER
PROFIT OR LOSS RZEMEE
2016 2015
—E—XKEF —E—RF
Money market funds EEHISES 214,658 38,392
Financial investment products SRICEEm 172,800 93,559
387,458 131,951
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through BEAREBETEEEEFHTABRER
profit or loss are recorded in ‘other losses — net’ in the ZERMEEZ AR BEE (LG AES
consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 30). Bk [ EaEe— 58] (M
30) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—XF+_A=t—HLFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 21. RERFEEEYRZIRFARITE

BANK BALANCES i
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF

Cash and cash equivalents RENEESEEY 1,290,199 2,337,547

Restricted bank balances LR HIRTTEES 890,617 1,773,697

Total cash and bank balances Re RRITEREFT 2,180,816 4,111,244

As at 31 December 2016, restricted bank balances comprised RZE—XRF+_A=+—H " ZR

the following: FIRITAEER IS T HIRIE -

(@  Approximately RMB 830.3 milion (2015: RMB 1,066.3 @ HARMBI0ZEIT(ZE—H
million) were pledged as security for issuing notes F : AR®10.663187T) 2 A
payable of the Group (Note 24); BAREEENER(MFE24) 1E

R

(o)  Approximately US$ 1.67 million (equivalent to RMB 11.6 b) WIBTEET(HERARE
million) (2015: US$ 6.91 million (equivalent to RMB 44.9 1,16087T) (ZT—HF : 691
million)) and RMB 48.7 million (2015: RMB 12.6 million) BET(EENARK44908
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit of L)) RAREKA80ETL(ZF
the Group; —hHF: AR¥126087T)E

REAERNEE{ERABERR

(©)  No cash in bank (2015: RMB 649.9 milion) were pledged © WERTHES(ZZE—HF: A
as security for current borrowings of the Group (Note R#6.4991E87T) B RAKE R
26). SR (7t 26) (B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

21.

22,

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 21.

BANK BALANCES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following

RERBESEYRZMBBITE

& (&)

December 2016

B MReFEYRZRHBITHES
MRREETIA T ER RSB -

currencies:
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hEF
Cash and cash equivalents and R RIBEEEBMAR
restricted bank balances ZRRHIIRITAERR
RMB NG 1,692,179 3,538,465
us$ =TT 484,108 571,274
HK$ BT 4,529 1,505
Total =0 2,180,816 4,111,244
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 22. BRARBRHRE
Amount
8
Number of
shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
RAEE
(Th) LBk R EE b
As at1 January 2015and 2016,and R-Z-HEK-F-~E-F-H KR
at 31 December 2015 and 2016 “E-IER-E-AE+=A=1-H 2,931,425 311,853 2,192,131 2,503,984

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the total number of
authorised ordinary shares of the Company is 5,000,000,000
shares with a par value of HK$ 0.1 per share.

RZEBE—RER-_ZE—FAF+=A
=t+—H ARRZEELBEREES
5,000,000,000 fx Z A& B 0.1 8 T 2

Bedn o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

23. OTHER RESERVES

Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit appropriation

Changes in ownership interests
in a subsidiary without
change of control

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)

Transfer of fair value losses previously
taken to reserve to statement of
profit or loss upon impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets

Balance at 31 December 2015

Profit appropriation

Changes in ownership interests
in a subsidiary without change of
control (Note 10 (ji)(v)

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)

Balance at 31 December 2016

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

R-2-1%-B-RVEH

IR
R EEERT
ST

IhEERAEN DL EE
Yo (it 15)

RAft ESRARAER KA
AARBNLABEBREE
ElE

RIE-RE+ZA=1-AMEE

HHIAE
EPSEERIENERT
SENHBLANAARIES
(Fit=E 10)())
ARIESREE
KD A Bk (5 15)

R-B-RETZA=T-RlGH

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_Z—AF+-A=ZT—HLLEFE

23. HiufEE
Available-
for-sale
Merger ~ Capital Statutory financial
reserve  surplus  reserve  Options  assets Total
At
AfRE EA0R TR BRE SHEE A5t
(a) (b) (c) (d)
(699) 6,696 1199386 419,748 4775 1,630,006
- - 16422 - - 16422
- 28649 - - - 28649
- - - - 3979 3,979
- - - - (8,754) (8,754)
(699 35345 1215808 419,748 1,670,302
- - 13468 - - 13463
- 1802 - - - 1802
- - - - 1,521 1,521
(699) 53367 1229271 419,748 1,621 1,703,308




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

23. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(@)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Capital surplus

The Group’s capital surplus arose from transactions with
non-controlling interests.

Statutory reserve

(i) Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
of the Group registered in the PRC, before
distributing the net profit of each year, these PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting any
prior year’s losses as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations to the statutory surplus
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further
appropriation is optional.

The statutory surplus reserve fund can be utilised
to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, such statutory surplus reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the entity’s share capital after such issuance.

(ii) Discretionary reserves

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

BE_Z—RET-A=T—BILFE

23. HftufkE (&)

(@)

B

AEBHE GHE D BN
BRrREOOHEERREES
RARBBAREMETHARRRR
E{EREHE

BRI

AEENEARNTER B EIFE
BRI S

SRR
() EEBRHFRE

BREFBEVER R AEER
B E THEA
AN EIRAR - BF
D IRFEFIAT - % F T E
BB A B R IE T Bl & 5t
AR EEHEEFNER
% ABEFEAE R4
MBI 10% 25 E B ERFEE
B HERRBEERHE
PR 50% A 1E - AIEE
BB ERIIZERE -

EERBFEEE ST BIE
HIHEFREERBEITA
B o AT - RRORTE BERE
BESLANBTRES
ZERBANRD25% -

i) EERHE

EBHBERSHAEIH
FEHEARNEERR
% CAEREAE L
k- EEERALTAIE
155438 15 4F RO RS 1R 3L
VS AR -
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23. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(d)  Employee share option scheme

As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain
share options were granted to selected directors
and employees as follows. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

Date of grant

®¥H

24 February 2009 —EENF-A=FIUH
11 May 2009 “ZTNFRAT—H

29 December 2009 “ETNF+_A=+NH
20 December 2010 —E-FF+—-H-+H
24 December 2010 —T-TF+-AZ+MmA
14 January 2011 —F——%—Ht@mA
27 April 2011 —E——FNA=+LtH
30 March 2012 —T——F#=A=1+H

30 May 2012 —E——FRA=+H

Note 1: The share options are exercisable in different
periods from February 2009 to December 2020,
and with different vesting requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIREMN) BE-_T—RF+_A=t—HLFE

23. HftufkE (&)

(@

Number

of share
options in an
aggregate
BREAYA

21,200,000
6,600,000
148,780,000
6,000,000
47,100,000
800,000
9,800,000
75,370,000

9,800,000

& B et &l

BRARAEZRSZILER
TIRKENEEREEDE
RY&aTHERE AEEYE
VAR & 8 [0 o 45 B R RO 0K
EREERE -

Exercises Exercisable

price period

THEE AT
HK$/share
BRET

1.39 Note 1

BT 1

1.50 Note 1

B EE 1

2.84 Note 1

BT 1

3.00 Note 1

BT 1

3.182 Note 1

B EE 1

3.20 Note 1

Bt 1

3.08 Note 1

BT 1

2.08 Note 1

B EE 1

2.03 Note 1

Bt 1

Hat1: ZERBEERN_ZFTNF_/A=E

—E2CRE+ - ATRMER
TR - THEERSE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

23. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 23. HttifEE (&)

(d) Employee share option scheme (continued) d) 1EERERETS(E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding BE_ZT—RF+-_A=+—
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and their BIEFEA - BARITHEHER
related weighted average exercise prices were as HEEE R EBBEMNEFSTE
follows: EREBT :

2016 2015
—E—REF —FT—0F
Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of options price per of options
share in HK$ (thousands) sharein HK$ (thousands)
BRERGH BRARGE

FHTEE BREHE FOTRE BRUEHE
(&) (F13) (&) (F13)

At 1 January R—A—A 2.59 242,670 2.59 293,020
Lapsed B &K 2.76 (8,000) 2.59 (50,350)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 2.58 234,670 2.59 242,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—XF+_A=t—HLFE

23. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 23. HttifEE (&)
(d)  Employee share option scheme (continued) d) 1EERERERS(E)
Share options outstanding at 31 December 2016 and RZE—RFEFR_ZT—HF
2015 have the expiry dates and exercise prices as TZA=T—HHERTEANE
follows: AR fEm B B RATE BT

Number of options

Exercise price (thousands)
TEE BREHE (T14)

Expiry date HKS$ per share 2016 2015
b= BFRET —EB-RE —T—hF
23 February 2019 —E-hF-_A=-+=H 1.39 13,900 13,900
10 May 2019 —T-AFRAT+H 1.50 - -
28 December 2019 —E-AF+-_A=-+N\H 2.84 116,650 116,650
16 May 2016 —E—RFRATH 3.00 - 6,000
19 December 2020 —E-FTF+—-A+NH 3.18 28,700 28,700
13 January 2021 —E-—F—F+=H 3.20 - -
27 March 2021 T —4%=H=++tH 3.08 9,800 9,800
19 December 2020 —E-FTF+-_A+NH 2.08 55,820 57,820
19 December 2020 —E-FTF+-A+NH 2.03 9,800 9,800

234,670 242,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24, BNEFERR

2016 2015
—E-XF —F-EF

Account payables FERBRRR 3,146,492 2,651,537
Notes payable JES E 45 2,278,831 2,989,493

5,425,323 5,641,030

R-ZE—E+-A=+—8 FERkE
NEEARITERLES - HhaE
ARMESBBIETL(ZE—HF : AR
5.751870) bAE TIEWERIR (aE17) /5
I ARB182818T (ZT—h%F
ARBE23121870) AR TR HIERT 745
& (MisE21) (RIE I R A R 93008 7T
(ZZF—h8F : ARE1028T) AET
FE (MisE16) k& TR IR TR

As at 31 December 2016, all notes payable represented bank
acceptance notes, of which RMB 358 million (2015: RMB 575
million) were secured by certain notes receivable (Note 17),
RMB 1,828 million (2015: RMB 2,312 million) were secured by
certain restricted bank balances (Note 21), and RMB 93 million
(2015: RMB 102 million) were secured by certain inventories
(Note 16) and certain restricted bank balances (Note 21).

(BtaE21) FEHECHR o
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the ageing analysis of the RZEBE—RERZZ—HE+=A
trade payables was as follows: =+—H ' BB SRRNERR ST
T
2016 2015

—EB—RE —T—F4F

Within 3 months 3EANR 4,595,245 3,319,454
4-6 months 4= 61@A 437,988 1,921,146
7-9 months 7E9ER 123,111 125,444
10-12 months 102 121 A 31,980 48,059
Over 1 year —E 236,999 226,927

5,425,323 5,641,030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

246

24. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 24,

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

FE B 5 IR (2)

AEBERMNEZERRNREAEIAT
DGR BB -

2016 2015
=A% CZTH#F

RMB AR 5,369,056 5,588,227
uss$ ETT 56,267 52,803
5,425,323 5,641,030

25. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES AND OTHER CURRENT BARER  AUREREMREA
LIABILITIES &
2016 2015
—B-AE —ZT—hfF
Advances from customers AR FFRIE 2,215,134 1,665,095
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE BEK
plant and equipment RAHYE T BRFR 308,854 488,828
Deposits from customers BEFES 138,403 126,203
Value-added tax payable and FERHEET R E b
other taxes payables FEST TR 88,686 40,364
Accrual of interest expense JEIRA B E A 9,232 37,572
Salary, pension and other social EFE BRek
welfare payables Hirt =12 F| 153,570 118,062
Provisions for legal claims FERRIEREE 20,000 20,000
Accrual for iron ore importing expenses TEIREE O E OB A 144,034 51,404
Employee deposits EEi&kE 32,016 29,435
Others =i} 258,581 269,206
3,368,510 2,846,169
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HILEE

26. BORROWINGS 26. fEX

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hF
Non-current IERE
Bank borrowings (a) IRITIER ()
Secured VR 246,500 24,000
Senior Notes (b) (=5 (o) - 719,891
246,500 743,891
Current B
Bank borrowings (a) RITIER ()
Secured V=Riswi 35,000 1,515,654
Unsecured ARE 3 3 1,034,507 1,077,830
1,069,507 2,593,484
Other borrowings, unsecured (c) HAbfEFR - I () 65,000 65,000
1,134,507 2,658,484
Total borrowings HBIER 1,381,007 3,402,375
(a)  The secured bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016 @ RZE—ARF+ZA=+—

A HHBTEREXARE
2.8151BTCAYIZE - BRI R &1
(7)) AR E L0 &+t E
FR#E (BiRE6) (EHEHR o

totalling RMB 281.5 million were secured by property,
plant and equipment (Note 7) and leasehold land and
land use rights (Note 6).

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—
A HHBITEREXARE
154 BT AR B E + X R
RITHERR (KIsE21) BRER
(M sE17) BB E o 2 (BT =
14) fEEAR - RAEE—EHE
AR AR -

The secured bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015
totalling RMB 1,540 million were secured by certain
restricted bank balances (Note 21), notes receivable
(Note 17) and properties under development (Note 14) of
the Group and guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

26. BORROWINGS (continued) 26. B

(o) On 17 November 2010, the Group issued US$ 300 (o)
million senior notes (the “2017 Senior Notes”), which
bears interest at 7% per annum and payable semi-
annually, to refinance its outstanding short-term debts.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
repurchased US$ 111 million of the 2017 Senior Notes,
resulted in a loss of approximately RMB 1 million (Note
30). As at 31 December 2016, the principal amount and
interest of the 2017 Senior Notes have been fully repaid.

(¢)  The other unsecured borrowings of RMB 65 million ©
(2015: RMB 65 million) represented a borrowing
from a local county government without fixed term of
repayment. Interest is charged at the RMB bank deposit
rate for one year fixed deposit.

(d) As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s (d)
borrowings were repayable as follows:

Bank borrowings
RITER

(&)

W-F—FE+-A+LR
7 % B % 1780018 % 7T 89 18
AER(-F - LFEAE
1) - R 7% 3 B R
FEBEE  UADRE Y
RSB BT -

REE=-_ZFT—X<F+=A
=+—HIEFER ~EEE
E111ERT T —LtFEBL
Z BHESEHARK100
BT (fIzE30) s RZE—RF
+—A=+—8 ' —Z—+&
BAZEBRAERFEERHE

o

pli

HAb IR (E RA R 6,500 8
T(ZZE—ARF : AR¥6,500
Br)EEHEBTRENE
P ZEEREETEERD-
M BT IRBITARE —FH
EHFHMEE -

RZTE—AFER-T—AHF
+=—A=+—8  ~EEMHHE
EEREARR AT

Other borrowings
and Senior Notes

HittfERREBERE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RFE ZEZ—HF ZEBE-XRE —T—hF

Within 1 year 1FER 1,069,507 2,593,484 65,000 65,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1 & 24 - 24,000 - 719,891
Between 2 and 5 years 2 & 54F 246,500 - - -

1,316,007 2,617,484 65,000 784,891

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

26. BORROWINGS (continued) 26. B (&)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as RESEHNERFIZNT !
follows:
2016 2015
“E-RE —E-nf
RMB Us$ RMB USs$

ARH EY ARE £
Bank borrowings RITER 4.75%-6.00% 1.43%-1.50% 5.09%-7.69% 1.41%-3.81%
Other borrowings HipfE 3.60% - 3.60% -
Senior Notes BEZE - - - 7.00%
The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximated HRFRFZETK  RBERNEE
their fair values as at the balance sheet date as the impact of ARREELUEAREE -

discounting is not significant.

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current bank FRBIBITERRBERBHREE
borrowings and Senior Notes are as follows: RAREBEAT !
Carrying amount Fair value
BREE AREE
2016 2015 2016 2015

—E-RFE ZE—RF ZE-XRE T—hF

Bank borrowings RITREK 246,500 24,000 225,642 23,985
Senior Notes BRER - 719,891 - 692,389

246,500 743,891 225,642 716,374
The fair values of non-current bank borrowings are based on FERMBBITERN AR BEEALRE
discounted cash flow approach using the prevailing market EREAE B GRS R EFBAREHER
rates of interest available to the Group for financial institution TRIMBHNIRITIISNEIRESRE
with substantially the same terms and characteristics at the EMBREE - BEEBRHNAREEBER
respective balance sheet dates. The fair values of Senior Notes BEMIZHRETER -

are based on quoted market price.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the RZE—RFE+=-A=+—H"  EHE
borrowings amounting to RMB 370 million (2015: RMB 1,799 BEAARKEITOETL(ZE—HF:

million) and RMB 1,011 million (2015: RMB 1,603 million) were ARM¥17.99 1575) RARK10.111E
denominated in US$ and RMB respectively. T(ZZE—h%F: AR¥16.03/87T)

HERDBIARTRAREEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

26. BORROWINGS (continued) 26. B (&)
The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate NEBBITEIRERNREH AR K
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: BRIENEEBRBMT

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—RF

6 months or less 6 &8 AR 419,507 2,181,203
6-12 months 6ZE 121 A 650,000 436,281
More than 12 months 121& B LA E 246,500 =

1,316,007 2,617,484

27. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES 27. HtRHESR™R
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
Non-current IERED
Finance lease obligations (i) R A E AR () 603,761 1,155,214
Other payable Fo M ET K 11,433 26,129
615,194 1,181,343
Current RED
Finance lease obligations (i) (ii) B T S (i) (i) 551,392 48,441
Total other long-term payables Hit R EN IR 1,166,586 1,229,784
()  In November 2015, the Group entered into certain asset () RZE—RAF+—H &%
sale and leaseback agreements (the “Sale and Lease H—HemMEBiI v e TEE
Agreement”) with one financial institution. The sales & 1% B M & ([ 5 & B #
proceeds of the relevant property, plant and equipment & HEEBAYE  BEK
were RMB 1,200 million with a notional disposal loss of HEMEREBEBAEARKI2E
RMB 10 million which was amortised over the lease term T HEEBEAARK 1,0008
of 36 months. The Group was entitled to purchase the TCIR T E RR6 B A # 6 - A%
related asset at a cost of RMB 3 at the end of the lease. EREEHAREGRENUAREI T
B NEE B A E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

27. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES (continued)

(i)

(i)

Given that a subsidiary of the Group is required to shut
down all of its remaining production facilities in the year
2017, the relevant covenant term of one sales and lease
back agreement is triggered, the Directors reclassified
the finance lease obligation from non-current to current
portion at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, total minimum lease payments
under the finance lease based on the PBOC interest rate
as at the balance sheet date and their present values
were as follows:

Gross finance lease liabilities MERERERTE
— minimum lease payments —REBEMK

Within 1 year 16K

Between 1 and 5 years 1E5%F

Future finance charges on
finance leases

Present value of finance
lease liabilities

The present value of finance lease
liabilities is as follows:
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

1FERN
15254

The range of effective interest rates of the finance lease
obligations of the Group is 6.21% to 6.39% per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the finance
lease obligations equals to carrying amount as the
effective interest rates of the finance lease obligations
equals to the prevailing market rates of interest available
to the Group.

REAENRZERE

HE-T—R"E+A=1T—HLEFE

27. HitREAEMNRI(E)

(i)

(i)

BMEHEZ RRBES H

MEHERBEZHREWT :

R=T—RE+ZA=+—
B ERARE—HHBAR
AN -F—LEEMARHBT
FiAEERYE - AR
RHEEGE Y RGN EF
M RAREAERRDE

LA KE 7S 37 i 2
i BEREED o

WoF—AFT=A=+—
B R EARRTREEE
Rz BARE RIEA
E AR IR ¢

2016
—F—XF

591,955
638,062

1,230,017

(74,864)

1,155,153

551,392
603,761

1,155,153

AEERERSAENERFEN T
HFE6.21% % 6.39% °

AA —
N
)\_

E-RF+ZA=+—H B

REMERBECERNETERAKE
A RRRITHSH R - SEERE A
BEZARBESNEREE

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

251



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

28. DEFERRED REVENUE 28. EZEWA

Deferred government grant

IR FE BN B
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hF—F—H 59,284
Addition NE 44,4083
Credited to the consolidated REFHERR AR
statement of profit or loss (17,370)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—hF+-_A=+—H 86,317
Addition NE 8,850
Credited to the consolidated REMERRARLE
statement of profit or loss (17,060)
At 31 December 2016 N_E—RF+=-_A=1+—H 78,107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29. EIEFTS
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there EABASRERELRSHIEAER
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against HEH 2 AR TR THE - AR EIERE
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate FriSHi B2 [/ — T A R ot sZ FE AR TR B
to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either BT RERGEEBW FE/RE
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is B8 - 1A R R F R SRR
an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset R RIEEHMEEREEE2E
amounts are as follows: 5 o EHSKEWT ¢
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—hHF
Deferred tax assets: IREFHIR A =
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered — 12 &8 A & Uk El
after more than 12 months RRER IHE B 94,850 299,655
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered — #5128 A Uk El
within 12 months RIRER IR E EE 61,030 78,294
155,880 377,949
Deferred tax liabilities: ELEHIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — B 12 1@ B 1 s
after more than 12 months FEETIEE & (37,900) -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — R 1218 A N 8H
within 12 months REER IR B & (4,304) =
(42,204) -
Deferred tax assets — net BEFIBE E — /55 113,676 377,949
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as RIEPTISTHAR B RO E SN T -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF e S
At 1 January w—H—H 377,949 342,238
(Charged)/Credited to the consolidated NEHHETRR
statement of profit or loss (Note 35) (B ), L8R (Ffi3E35) (221,940) 35,711
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — B A A (36,101) =
Diaposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAR (6,232) -
At 31 December nt+=—A=+—H 113,676 377,949
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIREN) HE-Z-—A"FT_A=1t—HILFE

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that is
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting

20, IRIEFTEH (&)

BERERAAEEREREERR
HEE—T—RNFT+_A=1+—HIt
FERBKOIHEE T —HHF X
RBEHE -

RSB A E R A KOS A
AER— BB NE RO EE) 0%

of balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: IO -
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFTEREE -
Impairment
Temporary provision
difference arising  of assets and
Tax  from expense provision of Unrealised
losses recognition legal claims gains Total
ERRAN EEHERRER HAZR
HEk ERHER  LEZERG g &5t
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1%-F-H 24472 65,534 225,637 76,855 392,498
(Charged)/Credited to the consolivated  RAGHERR (k) /25
statement of profit or loss 220,579 4,382 (206,955) 20,926 38,982
At 31 December 2015 i ﬁir A=1+-R 245,061 69,916 18,682 97,781 431,430
(Cherged)/Credlted to the consolidated  RAEHERR (1B) /2%
statement of profit orloss (205,586) 1,385 (36) (14,297) (218,534)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAR (6,232) - - - (6,232)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E+ZA=1-A 33,233 71,301 18,646 83484 206,664
The Directors are of opinion that accumulated tax losses EEZMRBE RZE—~F+=A

of RMB 345 million and unused tax credits arising from
impairment provision of assets of RMB 2,498 million as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB 368 million and
RMB 1,462 million) were unlikely to be utilised, therefore no
deferred income tax assets were recognised in this regard. Tax
loss amounting to RMB 163 million (2015: RMB 172 million),
RMB 119 million (2015: RMB 119 million), RMB 33 million
(2015: RMB 77 million) and RMB 30 million (2015: Nil) expire in
2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—AFt-A=T—BLLFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 29. EZEFTISHL(E)
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFFSTRAE -
Fair value Capitalised  Investment in
gains interest associates Total
NABEWE — ERMAERBEARZRE At
At 1 January 2015 W-E-1%F—HF—H (5,725) (44,535) - (50,260)
Credlt/(Charged) to the consolidated WAFHEERE /(M)
statement of profit or loss 358 (8,579 - (8,221)
At 31 December 2015 R_E—8&+-A=1—H (5,367) (48,114 - (63,481)
Credlt/(Charged) to the consolidated WAFHERR R/ (k)
statement of profit or loss 3,961 1,964 (9,331) (3,406)
Acauisition of a subsidliary WE—HHB AR (36,101) - - (36,101)
At 31 December 2016 RZEB—"ETZA=1-H (37,507) (46,150) (9,331) (92,988)

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB 412 million (2015: RMB
324 million) have not been recognised for the withholding tax
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in PRC amounting to RMB 4,122 million as at 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB 3,243 million). The Directors are
of the view that the Group will not distribute the unremitted
earnings in the foreseeable future.

R—E—ARE+=—A=+—H I&E
HPEETFHBRAAARE 412218
T(ZE—RF : AR¥E2.431ET
B R B A U 25 mO FE BB FR R R A
REA1BIT(ZZE—R2F : ARK
324 EBIL)MBELEFBHARE -ES
MRE  AEBBTSHRA R GRS
IR A FE A U2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B O IR R

REEREIN  FASEOUARBTLAEN) BEZ—"F+_A=T—HLFE
30. OTHER LOSSES - NET 30. Hitt#5iE— B4
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—hF
Government grants BRJFF e B 51,570 106,622
(Losses)/Gains on repurchase of EREEER s (BE),/

Senior Notes (Note 26) Weas (Mi3E26) (1,041) 105,677
Reversal for legal claims EERERD - 61,278
Gain on disposal of mining rights i &S BRIERE 2 e - 10,150
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERH T E SR E E 2 Wk

financial assets = 8,754
Fair value gain of financial assets RAnBETEEEZE:E

at fair value through profit or loss ANEmERZCREE

(Note 20) Z A fEERE (s 20) 8,496 1,195
Gains on disposal of property, TEYE BMEMKEZ

plant and equipment (Note 40) Weas (Mi3E40) 4,763 563
Losses of raw materials and by-products B R R EIE L ER (2,902) (260)
Other foreign exchange gains/(losses) — net  E{thf& 5 Uizs (E548)

(Note 36) — F &8 (H17£36) 52,819 (68,718)
Impairment of property, plant and Y%~ BE MR ERE

equipment (Note 7) (PfFEET) (809,790) (521,019)
Gain on disposal of the subsidiaries HEK B ARz Mz 31,487 -
Others, net HAth - JFEE 7,639 (3,288)
Total other losses — net Hih BB FEEE (656,959) (299,046)

31. OTHER INCOME 31. HflgA
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
Interest income from available-for-sale A ESREE 2 F WA

financial assets 3,525 =
Investment income from available-for-sale ~ AJ &S RIEE 2 REW A

financial assets - 9,981
Income from other operating leases HEeaBlE 2z A - 9,838
Rental income from investment TEME 2 HSIA

properties (Note 8) (Mf7E8) 2,574 2,616
Others HAtb 30 120
Total SR 6,129 22,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

32. EXPENSES BY NATURE

32. BMEZIINAX

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—AF
Employee benefit expense (Note 33) B E@FIF Sz (FIsE33) 1,096,917 870,882
Changes in inventories of finished Ik R ERMNTFEES)
goods and work in progress (250,219) (245,669)
Raw materials used Bt AR L 20,055,941 17,463,429
Cost of properties sold EHEMEMRAN 186,919 408,323
Utilities gER 1,818,390 1,083,028
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEMRETS
equipment (Note 7) (FfE7) 1,068,590 1,083,798
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9)  @EF & E# 45 (F13E9) 10,246 10,240
Amortisation of leasehold land and land FHE 1 3h N b PR A 8
use rights (Note 6) (FfzE®) 5,390 3,578
Depreciation of investment HEMFENE (FE8)
properties (Note 8) 441 441
Operating lease expenses in respect AR ERARENRE
of land use rights HEER 1,850 2,592
Provision for impairment of trade FEUWE 5 BR SR B <
receivables (Note 17) (BI7E17) 16,967 4,186
Impairment provision of prepayments, AR ~ e REAMEIR
deposits and other receivables (Note 18) BRI R B (fIFE18) 231,713 29,273
Provision for write-down of inventories to FEEEWRZA &R
net realisable value (Note 16) B2 B (M EE16) - 105,373
Auditors’ remuneration i Gl
— Audit services — 2R 4,050 4,131
— Non-audit services - IEZ RS 143 142
Rental fee HEEM 108,535 177,993
Export fee T OER 39,474 42,049
Technical consulting fees KA E 24,096 1,679
Others Hib 264,763 211,626
Total = 24,684,206 21,257,094
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 33. REERAFX

2016 2015
—E-REF —FT—RF

258

Staff costs (including directors’ EERA (BIEESHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and welfare —¥H2 RAER 974,739 704,584
— Pension costs-defined — RIS — EFEHR
contribution plans (a) =2l (a) 122,178 166,298
1,096,917 870,882

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that
are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the
relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 33. EEEABEX(E)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b)) ABZ=FMMALT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest AREEARAEBE AN ZSFHHA
in the Group for the year include four (2015: four) +TEENG(ZE—R4F: [
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis )EE  HMEE K478
of Note 47. The emoluments of the remaining one (2015: DITAHEET c RFEEALNTF
one) highest paid individual for the year are as follows: Hep—f((ZZE—FHE: —u)
R ATHME0T
2016 2015

—E—RE =

Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 1,075 850
Fair value of employee share B iR & EE
options granted NAREE = -
1,075 850
The remuneration fell within the following bands: B F LA T & -

Number of individuals

A
2016 2015
ZE-RE 0%
RMB 500,000 to RMB 1,000,000 (approximately AR®500,000722 AR 1,000,000
HK$ 577,271 to HK$ 1,154,541) (#0577,2711 BT E1,154,541 BTT) = 1
RMB 1,000,001 to RMB 3,000,000 (approximately A& #1,000,001 L2 AR 3,000,000 7T
HKS 1,154,542 to HKS$ 3,463,629) (#1,154,542 BT E 3,463,623 57T 1 -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

34. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 34. B AREA

2016 2015
=A% CZThH#F

Interest expenses FEEH
— borrowings —f&® (78,161) (389,622)
— amounts due to related parties — A RERS 5 3R - (5,447)
— discount of notes receivable — B EEALE (23,965) (25,332
— finance lease liabilities —-BEREGE (77,634) (3,655)
Net foreign exchange losses on fE A E K B
borrowings (Note 36) (FfzE36) (28,663) (199,631)
Finance costs BIEIEN (208,423) (623,687)
Less: amounts capitalised as W BEREEENMLER
qualifying assets 26,261 79,722
Total finance costs (Note 40) BT K AN 4858 (B E 40) (182,162) (543,965)
Interest income FIEHA
— bank deposits —RI7fFK 36,464 48,446
— trade receivables —EWE SRR 3,717 23,667
— prepayments, deposits and —ERRE - BER
other receivables H i eI BR 5K 20,772 28,630
— loan receivables — W ER 48,940 21,386
Total finance income (Note 40) B IS A 4258 (FI5E 40) 109,893 122,129
Finance costs — net BATE R AR — 55 (72,269) (421,8306)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

35.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax

— PRC enterprise income tax (the “EIT”)

— Sinagpore profit tax
Deferred income tax (Note 29)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—AFt-A=T—BLLFE

35. FREBLER

2016 2015

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of
Bermuda income tax.

The subsidiaries directly held by the Company were
incorporated in BVI with limited liability under the International
Business Companies Act Chapter 291 and, accordingly, are
exempted from payment of BVI income tax.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided since the
Company and the subsidiaries traded or incorporated in
Hong Kong do not have assessable taxable profits during the
year ended 31 December 2016 after utilising accumulated
tax losses (2015: nil). The Directors are of opinion that the
accumulated tax losses of the Company and the subsidiaries
are unlikely to be utilised in the future. No deferred tax assets
were recognised.

China Oriental Singapore has been awarded the “Global
Trader Programme” status for 2 years 9 months with effect
from 1 April 2011 and continued to be awarded from 1 January
2014 for 5 years. Income from qualifying transactions will
be taxed at the concessionary corporate tax rate of 10%,
subject to China Oriental Singapore meeting certain terms
and conditions as stated in the letter issued by International
Enterprise Singapore.

EHIFTS
— B ZEFSH
(TZEmEHEL) 295,042 82,060
— NG 6,954 =
EIEFTSEE (F1sE29) 221,940 (35,711)
523,936 46,349

ARARBEERE-NN—FRBX
ERREAMK L AERRARAE
RAE] - PEBLHNBFEMRSEH

ARBEERA OB R RREER
BERREAE 2N EERBHEBREE
SHEMALASEREMERR]  HEH
PENEBERREBAEN

HRESARFHBABRE - RER
ETE S REMALHAR T R HE
RARBE_ZE-—RF+A=1—
RIEFEEYEBRVAE - $ARE
AHRABNGHR(ZF—1F &) -
BEERR ARBRMBRBNKRE
BARARABEZATREETA &
W ERERELCHIBEE

PERGHMEEESE —T——F
MA—RBEEXRNMETNMEAN
[RIRE S8l - WEEESH
“E-WF-A-HBRERAF R
1 TR B ER 7 B DR 22 BT 3 BB 4
EHRBBHH R APATIEE T E
ARG - BEROR S ZBMARIZ
FrRF MK 10% =8 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

35. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 35. FISBiERA (&)
The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit of Fh B 1R ZEFTIS B T E A P B R A
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the SHHBRARREE RN - REFR
PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments on certain MISERE RGN - NS T IEZR
income and expense items which are not assessable or ek A HR AT B 5 By U A K B 7 18
deductible for income tax purposes. The EIT rate applicable to BEFTE o HARESR R FMA LA
the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC is 25% (2015: 25%). MiEB AR ERERHRAE25%

—ZE—FHF :25%) °

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from NEBEKRBMINSANHREREEZ -
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted —RNEN_FTE—RHE+_A=1+—
average applicable tax rate of 21.79% (2015: 29.58%) to HIEFEEHERNEFNEERS N
respective profits of the consolidated entities for the years BEHBRE2179% (T — [ F
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as follows: 29.58%) s EHIEmATENEZ D 5l
W
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hEF
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BB ALRT] (E18) 1,054,948 (889,668)
Taxation calculated at statutory tax rate AR R E N FIE 229,826 (263,305)
Temporary difference and tax losses for ARIERELEFTSHEE
which no deferred income R R RIIEEE
tax asset was recognised 281,126 125,369
Withholding tax of investment KRB =R F]
in associates ZIWE 2T 9,331 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FRBAEARER 2 HIEEE
tax losses (15,337) -
Write-off of deferred income tax asset WEE BT FERER BT
recognised in prior years TSt &E 11,695 186,946
Withholding tax of intra-group interest RINREAEBRBFE
SR 1,387 6,987
Effect of non-taxable income BARBBA Z & (2,964) (29,309)
Effect of non-deductible expenses AT & R & 8,872 19,655
523,936 46,349
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

36. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) 36. EXWzm (&R) FE
The exchange differences credited in the consolidated RAGERE NIV IE S = 2E5|
statement of profit or loss included the followings: T
2016 2015

—E-XF —F-EF

Other gains/(losses) — net (Note 30) HUezs /(B8 ) — F58
(PfF5E30) 52,819 (68,718)
Finance costs — net (Note 34) BF TSR AN — 28 (F1sE 34) (28,663) (199,631)
24,156 (268,349)
37. GAINS/(LOSSES) FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 37 FASBMTAIKE (FE)
INSTRUMENTS
2016 2015
—E-KF —ET—RF
Investment gains from foreign INSIRBR B K 2
currency forward contracts (a) B Wz (a) 2,879 4,292
Investment gains/(losses) from iron ore EHEAREHREL 2
swap contracts (b) & W= (E18) (b) 3,284 (215)
Investment gains/(losses) from rebar BAGREE A2
future contracts (c) &S (E8) () 29,669 (9,117)
Total &zt 35,832 (5,040)
(@) As at 31 December 2016, realised gains amounted @ RZE—R"E+ZA=+—
to RMB 5.6 million and unrealised losses amounted H NERHIGHEEARE
to RMB 2.7 million (2015: realised gains amounted to 560& T B R M= kA R
RMB 1.0 million and unrealised gains amounted to RMB 0B TABRER(ZE—1
3.3 million) were derived from foreign currency forward F: ARB1008 TE BRI
contracts. A derivative financial liability of RMB 2.7 million =R ARBI30E TARERK
was recognised on balance sheet as at 31 December @) At RZZBE—RFE+=
2016 accordingly. A=+—8 ' AR¥270&TH
MESBREBEREEARRT
FERR. ©
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE
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37. GAINS/(LOSSES) FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2016, realised losses amounted
to RMB 2.1 million and unrealised gains amounted to
RMB 5.4 million (2015: realised losses amounted to
RMB 6.8 million and unrealised gains amounted to RMB
6.6 million) were derived from iron ore swap contracts.
A derivative financial asset of RMB 6.2 million and a
derivative financial liability of RMB 0.9 million were
recognised on balance sheet as at 31 December 2016
accordingly.

As at 31 December 2016, realised gains amounted to
RMB 41.8 million (2015: realised losses amounted to
RMB 5.8 million) and unrealised losses amounted to
RMB 12.1 million (2015: unrealised losses amounted
to RMB 3.8 million) were derived from rebar future
contracts. A derivative financial liability of RMB 12.1
million was recognised on balance sheet as at 31
December 2016 accordingly.

37 fTEEmMTIAzWE (FE)(#E)

b)) RZE—RNEF+_A=+—
H BBEAEBHENEEAR
210 BT EERE B R AR
SA0ETTAERW = (ZF—H
F: ANRBGSOE TEERE
B R AREE660E T A R
@) At RZE—RE+=
A=+—H ' AR¥620&TH
MESMEERAREIET
WITESRMBEREERER
PR

© R=ZFE—R"E+=ZA=+-—
H BAMHBAEENEEAR
4,180 B TEERME (ZF
—hF: AR¥S80ELE &
REE) RARK12108 LK
BRABR(ZZ—AF : AR
3RO TLABRER) - Bt -
RZE—-—RF+=ZRAR=+—
B ARE1210BTTHITES
MEEREEABERTHER

38. EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE 38. ERKE (BE)
Basic HAR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FREARRE DR BEARN AR ERFE

attrib

utable to owners of the Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

EREENRAFAD BT EBERD
B Mt H o

2016 2015
—B-KF —ZE-AF
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners NARERFFEEEN
of the Company wm A, (E518) 722,127 (766,503)
Weighted average number of ordinary B TE AR e i a2
shares in issue (thousands) (Fh) 2,931,425 2,931,425
Basic earnings/(losses) per share BREARKZ(EE)
(RMB per share) (Bl ARETT) 0.25 (0.26)
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38.

39.

B Ot I ERRM

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BAEEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HLEE

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE (continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

The diluted earnings per shares is the same as the basic
earnings per shares since the employee share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 would have an
anti-dilutive effect on the earnings per share.

DIVIDENDS

At a meeting held on 31 March 2017, the Board proposed
a final dividend of HK$ 175.9 million (approximately RMB
157.3 million), representing HK$ 0.05 per ordinary share and
a special dividend of HK$ 351.8 million (approximately RMB
314.7 million), representing HK$ 0.10 per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016.

At a meeting held on 31 March 2016, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2015.

38.

39.

BRWKE (BE) (&)
Wi

SRR T ERERA N HERN
VBAE AR KR iﬁﬂuﬂﬁﬂiﬁé
TEBRMOINEFHREGEGTE - A2

AEE — R HEMEBEYS ﬁﬂx i3
At - FREEARIET 5 - BRI M ARTITE
BIRERMRERENEEER &
ERAREBE(EEANRAAIRMNK
FHEEME) JBANRMDEE -
LA AR E MG BB TYERERR
BREITEMEE TR MEE 1
HEEES o

T NFR-F—HF+=
— B ARITE 2 (B BB ES
MERBELE  WERFEE
1GREARRFER -

EA*”—J:EZHZJr—El?ﬁ%ﬁE@@

2L ESRESMEE—T—XF
+ A=+—HAILFERERARS
17591“%%(%/\&%15731 7T )
(BN E3@A% 0.05 78 7T ) AT R &
3518 BT (N ARKE3147ET)
(BNt &A% 0.1087T) °

R-ZE—ARFZA=1+—HETHE
L EERITERNBE—_ZT—H
F+ZA=t+—BLEFERMAEAER
HAAR S, ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_T—

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRBRAIN - A SREAARE T AERL)

40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40.

(@)

NETZA=t—BRILFE

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax to cash (@)
generated from operations is as follows:

Profit/(Loss) before income tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of leasehold land and land
use rights (Notes 6, 32)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Notes 7, 32)
Depreciation of investment properties (Notes 8, 32)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Notes 9, 32)
Gain on disposal for property, plant and
equipment (Note 30)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Notes 7, 30)
Provision for write-down of inventories to net
redlisable value (Notes 16, 32)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(Notes 17, 32)
Impairment provision of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (Notes 18, 32)
Share of results of associates
Gain on disposal of mining rights
Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale
financial assets (Note 30)
Gain on disposal of the subsidiaries (Note 30)
(Gains)/Losses from derivative financial instruments
(Note 37)
Investment income from available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 31)
Interest income from available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 31)
Investment income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 30)
Other foreign exchange (gains)/losses (Notes 30, 36)
Finance income (Note 34)
Finance costs (Note 34)
Loss/(Gain) on repurchase of Senior Notes (Note 30)
Reversal of Provision for legal claims (Notes 25, 30)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories and properties
under development and held for sale
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and notes receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in amount due from related parties
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted bank balances
Increase in deferred revenue (Note 28)
Increase in trade payables, accruals, advances from
customers and other current liabilities
Decrease in trade balance due to related parties

Cash generated from operation

BEEHEH/ (B

Dﬂﬂz
BETH R ERES S
(Mt6-32)

% BERRENE

(W37 32)

REMENE (s 32)
EAESR (9 32)
HEWE  BRERFE kG
(B#30)

% BERRERNE

(K7 30)
FEEEMAZEAERFEBE
(K16 32)
ERESERE AR
(W17 32)
BNHA R RS
ERE (18 32)

3N e

HERRE 2 i

HETHNESHEE
(Bi330)

HENE R AN (HFE30)
BT A (KE)/ Bl
(GEXY)
AEHESRER CRERA
(HtE31)

AL ESREE 2 FISMA (i 31)

BRAREEBAEES T AREEY
SREE AR (HE)
Rl (Weas) /B8 (330 - 36)
B (HfE34)

BTEAAR (fiEo4)
ROEEZE BB/ () (M 30)
HERRERE (FE251 30)

FERYER RIHELEMEEM) /D

EREZSETNER  BRZE  7ER
EftlERET (g m) /)

FM&E@W B (%) /b
SRFIRGERAD /(M)

ERBASEM (FiizE28)

ENESEN  BRER  BUEPER
AftREaEEm

R, 2 580D

EEELNTE
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B O IR R

BEELNRE

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ SEADER(ER) &2

EimﬁﬁmﬂﬁimT-

2016 2015
ZE-5E “2-1f
1,054,948 (889,668)
5,390 3,578
1,068,590 1,083,798
441 441
10,246 10,240
(4,763) (563)
809,790 521,019
- 105,373
16,967 4,186
231,713 29,273
1,022 745
- (10,150)
- 8754
(31,487) -
(35,832) 5,040
- (9,981)
(3,525) -
(8,496) (1,199)
(52,819) 68,718
(109,893) (122,129)
182,162 543,965
1,041 (105,677)
- 61,279
(783,501) 543363
(866,653) 982,442
(10,843) 172,915
233,216 (670,810)
(8,210) 27,033
315,822 3,386,298
(55,778) (169,935)
1,959,458 5,438,287




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEFN - MESREINARETTREM

40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)  Major non-cash transactions:

Except the major non-cash transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group endorsed bank acceptance notes to suppliers for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB 779 million (2015: approximately
RMB 544 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(¢) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment comprised:

Net book amount of property, plant

40. EEELANRE (E)

(b)

PR EME - BE K

and equipment disposed (Note 7) RBRELFE (FiFET)
Gains on disposals of property, LEE - BE K&
plant and equipment (Note 30) Wz (M93E30)
Non-cash assets received BEWIEReEE
Cash (payments)/proceeds from HEWE  BEKR

disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Non-cash assets received mainly represented bank
acceptance notes and other receivables received from
deductions of property, plant and equipment.

& () Frisie

For the year ended 31 December 2016
) BEZZ—R"F+A=+—HLFE

ERHFRERS ¢

BR & 0F B 15 R R L b 28145 BT
BNEEHRERZH BE
—E—RF+ZHA=+—HL
FE AEEREEME K
FERERERMHERSERTEA
HEZHARK779ET(ZF
—hF  HARMKS5.4418TT) -

REERERA HEWE -
BB KR PS5 IR B -

2016 2015
=F-AxF ZTIF
6,826 4,337
4,763 563

(11,646) (4,719
(57) 181

WHHIFREEETERERYD
% BB kR MR
1T FE SR I B At UK BR K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREOUNARBTIREN) BE-Z—"FT_A=1T—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Guarantee for bank borrowings RE =TT HIRIT
of third parties fER AR

As at 31 December 2016, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee
for bank borrowings in favour of a third party amounted to
approximately RMB 11 million. (2015: RMB 11 million). The fair
value of the financial guarantee is not significant.

The Directors are of the view that such obligation will not cause
an outflow of the Group’s resources embodying economic
benefits.

42. COMMITMENTS

(@ Capital commitments

Purchase of property, plant HBEWE  BEX

and equipment

— Contracted but not provided for —BETAEREME
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B (B R T4

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

41.

42.

&l

MBRRED

2016 2015
=A% CZThH#F

10,960 10,960

RZE—XRE+=-A=+—8 " Zf
WA —RE = FNRITERE AR
R EHARE1,1008L(ZF—A
F: ARKE11008TT) - ZEVIBE
ROARBELTERK -

EERRZEEREEBETZENLSE
BeEENmMERRE
TRIE

(@) BAEYE

2016 2015
—F-XE  —F-TF
553,600 266,387
750,440 149,873
1,304,040 416,260
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

42. COMMITMENTS (continued) 42, EIE(E)
(o) Commitments to properties under development (o) ZEEAPYEZAE
2016 2015
—®-—AF —T-HF
Purchase of properties under BERERYF
development 106,649 291,524
(©) Operating lease commitments () REHEANE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in BT HEREHEETH
respect of land use rights, property, plant and equipment T AR WE - BB R®
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as HEHENRREEHER 2B
follows: SHAT -
2016 2015

—EB—RE =

No later than one year 1FR 10,341 10,188
Later than one year and no 1FLAE - 5FUR
later than five years 31,687 31,732
Later than five years 5% E 105,479 112,889
147,507 154,809
43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 43. EBEH
On 1 April 2016, the Group acquired all share equity of Jinxi RZZE—RFMA—H @ REBUR
Wantong, a company that manufactures and sells steel BAOAREKE263 ETWEEAE R
products, at a consideration of about RMB 263 miillion. The (—EREREEMHMEMNAR) 2
acquisition is expected to secure the Group’s production ERARAE - TERUMEE IR B AR B M £
capacity and reduce cost of leasing production facilities. None Ef N KR HEEERERRA
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for TE AR B iR R B A A BEET 158
income tax purposes. IR, ©
The goodwill of RMB 25 million arises from a number of factors AR 2500 ETHHERESE T
including obtaining greater production efficiencies through = PREBREFLERNESES
securing production capacity and reducing cash outflow by EEMRERERROHEERZ KR
cost reductions in leasing expense and unrecognised assets RAREREE (WMBE ) MBLRE
such as the workforce. e e
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 43.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Jinxi Wantong, and the amounts of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed recognised at the acquisition date.

Purchase consideration BERE

— Cash paid —BfRe

— Bank acceptance notes —ERITEAIESR
Total purchase consideration BEREHAZE
Recognised amounts of WEAEBIEEREEN

identifiable assets acquired EECHEIALEE

and liabilities assumed
Provisional fair value FEAAEER
Cash and banks e RIRIT
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB &R
Intangibles: mIVEE :

— Land use rights — TP A

— Leasehold land —HE M
Receivables FEWRIE
Payables JEERIE
Borrowings B
Net deferred tax liabilities BRETR IR BF5

Total identifiable net assets

Goodwill

Acquisition-related costs (included
in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016)

AR B AR R

]

[

W RRAR AR
(BREFABEZZ—RF
T-A=T—BLFERN
BHFRERNTHRER)

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss since 1 April 2016 contributed by Jinxi Wantong was RMB
2,372 million. Jinxi Wantong also contributed profit of RMB 11
million over the same period.

270
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EBEH(E)

TR AN EE B D st 2
BRENRE  REUBEEZS
BMABNEE -

1 April 2016
—E—RE
mA—H

207,843
55,000

262,843

4,754
852,385

9,901
48,190
93,037
(487,975)
(246,500)
(36,101)

237,691

25,162

262,843

75

BE-T—AFMOA—HB# st ASH
BarmEaSBERMOBABAR
®23. 72187 - REVEAEBINE R
AREE 1,100 BITH) & F o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 43. ¥KS6t(E)

Had Jinxi Wantong been consolidated from 1 January 2016,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss would show pro-
forma revenue of RMB 2,372 million and profit of RMB 16

WEASER —T—"F—H—HE
BHAR RAHBERKETRA
REB2BTHEZRARARK

million. 1,600 B ITTHYE ) ©
44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BBERB
(@)  For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the @ BEZE—XREEK_ZT—HF

Directors are of the view that the following companies

TZA=+—HILFE E=

and persons are related parties of the Group: MRBREBATAERALTAEERSE

Elfso]ezl:a
Name Relationship with the Group
a8 HEAREENER

Foshan Jin Lan Aluminium Company Limited
(“Foshan Jin Lan”)

L EREBRERAF
(TEsuem])

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals Product Co. Ltd.

(“Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals”)
HlLeHEEeBERERAR
([eHEELB])

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Jinxi Fenggang Iron and
Steel Co. Ltd. (“Jinxi Fenggang”)

Jo& L T A 2 S
BRAR(MNEEEH])

Beijing Jingtang Guangzhi Investment
Management Co. Ltd.
(“Jingtang Guangzhi Investment”)
TRREEEREEERRAA

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

Eitlend [:0E% S ChEd

Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

B HORBAT

Chairman of the board of Jinxi Fenggang is Mr Shen

Xiaoling, a director of the Company
ERENEERFRARARERIBIC L

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan
Real Estate (before 5 February 2016)

HEREHENES T TAL LA

((REEERE]) (RZZT—"F=_RAAHA)
Mr. Li Hejun Minority shareholder of Jinxi Dafang, a subsidiary of the
Group
FEERE AEE B ARZEANL N DEIRE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 44. BIBAERB (&)

(@  For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the (a)
Directors are of the view that the following companies

BE-T AER-F-1%
+=A=t-ALEE EF

and persons are related parties of the Group: (continued) RBEANT AR RALTRAE

Name

=L

Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. and it’s subsidiaries
(“Oriental Sheet Piling”)

Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. 5 £ Kt & 2 7]
([Oriental Sheet Piling])

Arcelor International Steel Trading (Shanghai)
Co. Ltd (“Arcelor International Trading”)

Arcelor International Steel Trading (Shanghai)
Co. Ltd ([ Arcelor International Trading )

Arcelor Mittal Singapore PTE
(“Arcelor Mittal Singapore”)

Arcelor Mittal Singapore PTE
(“Arcelor Mittal Singapore”)

XTAL Inc. (“XTAL")
XTAL Inc. ([XTAL])

HEREE T - (&)

Relationship with the Group
HEAKEHNRAEZ

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20%
equity interests in the Company

REGARAREE20% EnfEE
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG #I#8 Rl S48 B2l

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20%
equity interests in the Company

REGARARBE20% ERMEE
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG #48 R S 4< &F 2 Rl

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20%
equity interests in the Company

REGARAREE20% EnFEE

ArcelorMittal Holdings AG HI#E Rl S48 &1 2 Rl

An associated company of the Group
REEREE AR

BB HEFNET A AL
RERBIREE D X EBR W
8 W ERRE AT EBRET
BT -

The English name of certain companies referred in this financial
statements represent management’s best effort at translating
the Chinese names of these companies as no English names
have been registered.

272 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 44,

)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (b)
financial statements, the Directors were of the view that

the following significant related party transactions were

carried out in the normal course of business of the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

RIS (&)

Br AN & G B 7% 3R 3% b 20 {9
BEHEEIN REE_ZT—XRF
r—ZFE—HRF+-_A=+—H
EFERN EFMRAEUTH
EAEBARZTINAEEB

BEBBER#ET
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—hHF
Sales of goods HEEY
— Oriental Shest Piling — Oriental Sheet Piling 51,757 71,505
— Arcelor International — Arcelor International
Trading Trading 20,605 34,058
72,362 105,563
Sales of utilities SHEREIR
— Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals —HEBEE 28,809 28,588
Purchase of raw materials EEEME
— Arcelor Mittal Singapore —Arcelor Mittal Singapore - 23,555
Service provided B AR
— XTAL — XTAL 9,257 -
Service received BB W BARTS
— XTAL — XTAL 10,266 -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

44, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 4. BHMHERS (&)

() Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (o) BRAEHHBHREREMI DT
financial statements, the Directors were of the view that BREIN REE_ZT—F
the following significant related party transactions were rE—_E—RFE+_A=+—H
carried out in the normal course of business of the Group IEFERN EFMRAEUTH
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015: BERABARZTIIRAEEAR
(continued) FEBBRTET : ()

() Key management compensation i) EEEBEAEHE
Key management includes executive and non- FTEERABBERTR
executive directors. The compensation paid or FEHITESE - BLE B RS
payable to key management for employee services MENXKENEEEREA
is shown below: BHMESAT
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hEF

Salaries and other short-term %4 R H fih 55 Hi(E B 12 7

employee benefits 12,939 10,147
Post-employment benefits RIRS MK 80 75
Share-based payments RS = -

13,019 10,222
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 4. BMERS (&)
(c) The following were the related party balances of the © RZBE—XREK_ZT—HHF
Group as at 31December 2016 and 2015: +=—A=+—8 AEEKH
B 7 45BN T
2016 2015
AL —=—h%F
Amounts due from related parties JE UK B S 5 TR I
Current .
— Oriental Sheet Piling —Oriental Sheet Piling
(trade balance) (BS5%8) 3,678 5,216
— Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals —SHBEEE
(trade balance) (B 48) 1,424 612
— XTAL (non-trade balance) —XTAL (GEZ S#582) 11,569 =
16,671 5,828

R=B—XET=A=+—
A R TE ARG E
BA=EARN -

As at 31 December 2016, the ageing of trade balances
due from related parties were within three months.
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

44, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 44, BEAERZ (E)
(c) The following were the related party balances of the © RZEBE—XREXK_ZT—HHF
Group as at 31December 2016 and 2015: (continued) TZA=+—H XEEHH
s

B m aERan s - (48)
2016 2015
—E-REF —EF—RF

Amounts due to related parties JE < BEESE 5 7R0R
Non-Current FETE)
Borrowing from related parties REES & 3K
— Li Hejun (ii) == () 51,859 51,859
Current I,
Borrowing from related parties REBE T (&
- Jingtang Guangzhi Investment (i) ~ — REBEERE (i) - 53,341
— Foshan Jin Lan (j) s () 23,931 23,931
23,931 77,272
Others HAtb
— Arcelor International Trading — Arcelor International Trading 733 2,891
— Oriental Sheet Piling — Oriental Sheet Piling 302 503
— Foshan Jin Lan — #BILEH 383 383
— Jinxi Fenggang — AETEH 1,917 1,995
3,335 5,772
27,266 83,044
79,125 134,903
Except for the related party balances disclosed in (i) to (ii) B TR 32 (i) 2= (i) SR ER RO RS 5 45 8RN
below, others were unsecured, interest-free and without Hipth AEiKH 2B BEREFESE
fixed terms of repayments. Hj o
() The borrowing from Foshan Jinlan was unsecured, ) LS REREZ ERAEER
interest-free. ERB -
(i) The borrowing from Mr. Li Hejun was unsecured, i) FEELERFEZERRESL
interest-free. HRRE o
(i)  The loan from Jingtang Guangzhi Investment was (i) REBSRERHNOERSE
unsecured and bore interest at a rate of 6.31% O & & F F R6.31%5t B
per annum and had been paid in notes receivables FRERBEZFT—AF+A
during the year ended 31 December 2016. =T BLEFEARERRRE
ST e
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(BABEFN - MESREINARETTREM

45. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(@)

On 20 January 2017, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement 1”) with
Shenwan Hongyuan Securities (H.K.) Limited (“the
Placing Agent”) whereby the Company agreed to place,
through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, a
maximum of 586,285,000 Shares (“Placing Shares 1”)
to not less than six placees (“Placees 1) at a price of
HK$ 1.30 per Placing Share I. (“Placing 1”)

On 20 January 2017, Wellbeing Holdings Limited
(“Vendor”), the controlling shareholder of the Company,
entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement II”) with the Placing Agent in order to assist
the Company to restore its public float. Pursuant to the
Placing Agreement Il, the Placing Agent agreed to place,
on a best effort basis, 64,314,000 Shares representing
approximately 1.83% of the issued share capital of the
Company of 3,517,710,000 Shares as enlarged by the
issue of the 586,285,000 Placing Shares I. (“Placing II”)

On 27 January 2017, completion of the Placing | took
place in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Placing Agreement |. An aggregate of 586,284,000
Placing Shares |, representing approximately 16.67%
of the issued share capital of the Company immediately
after completion of the Placing |, have been successfully
placed to not less than six Placees | at the placing price
of HK$ 1.30 per Placing Shares |.

BE_Z—RET-A=T—BILFE

45. GHEARSR

(@)

RZE—tF—HA=+H AR
RHEABRRESR(BB)AR
ARI([EEERE DTS
(TeEH=—1) - Bk - ARA]
EREEREERER IR
RANBERA((FREA—DRE
%% 586,285,000 f% f& 17 ([ B &
&in—1) - ERREREERGR
—1.30%7T ° ([RREEE—])

RZE—tF—A=+H, AR
A) B9 % B B Wellbeing Holdings
Limited ([E77]) BEAEERIEET
vEEERZE(REHBHE=]
EEBBARRMEEARIFR
= - BREREHZET ' EERE
2 [F & & /1 B & 64,314,000 A%
% 1 (i 4% 2% 77 586,285,000 %
RERGLD —BANA AR BT
% 753,517,710,000 B& 3% 15 B 49
1.83%) ° ([EEEHE=])

RZZE—+tF—A=++tH &
EEEH-BIRESHE — 2B
NMAGHSER © & 586,284,000
ARBEE AR — (AR R ERET
KEEESE R BITRALD
16.67%) BRI & ETREL SR
B —1.30B TERINRE T
RIRZEFRA— o
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

45. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued) 45. HEEHBZBE(E)

278

On 27 January 2017, completion of the Placing Il took
place in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Placing Agreement Il. An aggregate of 64,314,000
Placing Shares I, representing approximately 1.83% of
the issued share capital of the Company immediately
after completion of the Placing |, have been successfully
placed at the placing price of HK$ 1.30 per Placing
Shares |I.

Immediately after the completion of the Placing | and
Placing Il, the Vendor and parties acting in concert
with it and other connected persons of the Company
are interested in 2,638,280,740 Shares (representing
approximately 75.00% of the total issued share capital of
the Company) and the balance of 879,428,260 Shares
(representing approximately 25.00% of the total issued
share capital of the Company) will be held in the hands of
the public. Accordingly, the public float of the Company
has been restored and the Company has met the
minimum prescribed percentage of shares being held by
public shareholders in accordance with Rule 8.08 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

On 1 February 2017, the trading in the shares of the
Company had been resumed.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

“T—+F—A=-+tRH " BE
FEHE_BREEHE - Z KK
RAG4 TR © & $£64,314,000
IRERE IR = ({5 AN A R EFE T
RELE FH BB FHITRAL
1.83%) B IR BL & B BRALE IR
D= 1.30 BT EKINRE °

ERERERE - MEEFEE_
TG BARE-BUTHA
TUARAA R E AR EA TR
2,638,280, 740 &A% 1n ({5 A A
2 EE BITRANA) 75.00% ) H
s - M | 879,428,260 f%
Bfn (EAR AR 2 EE BEITIRA
#4125.00%) # B ARIFH ©
It ARRNARIFRED T
18 - BARRIEREHRAES
EmHRA( =T8I £8.08
BARER A RIRR ERRE 5
Lt o
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

46. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 46. RAFEEEBEXREFEEED
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—H
2016 2015

—B-KRF —T-hF

ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRR 552 596
Investments in subsidiaries B ATIEE 574,873 574,873
Loans to subsidiaries WEBARIEK 1,378,393 1,930,379
Available-for-sale financial assets AT ECREE 149,950 -
2,103,768 2,505,848
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 48,696 86,529
Prepayments, deposits and JEREIE  BHE R
other receivables H b e UG BR SR 1,717 7,398
Amounts due from a related party Uk BA B 5 5 E 11,569 =
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 224,046 334,979
286,028 428,906
Total assets HMEE 2,389,796 2,934,754
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(BABEAN FESEINARETIREMN) BE-_T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

46. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 46. ARFEEABRREEEE (Z)
THE COMPANY (continued)

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2016 2015

—E-REF —FT—RF

EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners ] YNNI
of the Company BEEEWERS
Share capital R& 2 311,853 311,853
Share premium (B 2,192,131 2,192,131
Other reserves HibEE 421,269 419,748
Accumulated losses Z5HEE (603,844) (812,201)
Total equity Rz ast 2,321,409 2,111,631
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Borrowings (RN - 719,891
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FEHE BRI 52,987 85,365
Accruals and other current liabilities EREAREMREEE 15,253 17,835
Dividends payable FERTRR B 147 132
68,387 103,332
Total liabilities HMEE 68,387 823,223
Total equity and liabilities EmRaEasT 2,389,796 2,934,754
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the ARARBEERBBEREN_ZE—tF=
Board of Directors on 31 March 2017 and were signed on its A=1T—BEEERMENLRUNTE
behalf. ERAEE o
Han Jingyuan Han Li
BHE Bh
Chairman Director
ES EF
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

46. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 46. XPFEEABRRREEEE (E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Available-
for-sale
financial Accumulated

Options assets losses Total
AfHE
BRE SREE ZiER &3t
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E-1E5-A-Az&8 419,748 4,775 (922,683) (498,160)
Profit for the year ER A - - 110,482 110,482
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AR ES AR BEYE
financial assets - 3,979 - 3,979
Transfer of fair value losses previously — RA[EHESREEHER
credited to reserve to statement Bral \BEN AL EE
of profit or loss upon disposal of FEEZEGR
avallable-for-sale financial assets - (8,754) - (8,754)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-B-RE+ZA=t-Az&8 419,748 - (812,201) (392,459)
Profit for the year ERE A - - 208,357 208,357
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AR ESRAEA BEYE
financial assets - 1,521 - 1,521
Balance at 31 December 2016 RoE-AE+-A=+-B24&H% 419,748 1,521 (603,844) (182,575)
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(BABERN FESEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

47. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 47. EERMNRER
The emoluments received/receivable by individual directors BAAEERTETHBAEC K B
and the chief executive is set out below: ST
()  For the year ended 31 December 2016: i) BE_ZE—XRE+_A=+—
HIEFE :
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
share defined
Salaries and options  contribution
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus granted plans Total

ERILES £
RREHE:  HA-EE

£ e HEREH 4 MfER EHE it
2016 -5
Mr. Han Jingyuan () EWETE() 851 5,207 - - 16 6,164
Mr. Zhu Jun RERE 622 1,048 - - 16 1,686
Mr. Shen Xiaoling MBRTE 346 1,230 - - 16 1,592
Mr. Han Li [yl 800 680 - - 16 1,496
Mr. Znu Hao RERE 6 434 - - 16 7%
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %5 346 - - - - 346
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis & X R4 346 - - - - 346
Mr. Wang Tianyi IRERE 346 - - - - 346
Mr. Zhou Guoping RETRE
(resigned on 1 Aprl 2016)  (W=B—~EMA—REHT) 87 - - - - 87
Mr. Wang Bing Tikts
(eppointedon 15 Juy 2016)  (R=F—E+ A+ R HEE() 160 - - - - 160
4,250 8,689 - - 80 13,019
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(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BET—RFTA=T—HILEE

47. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 47. EETARER (&)
(continued)
(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2015: ) BEZZ—ARE+-A=+-—
HIEFE :
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
share defined
Salaries and options  contribution
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus granted plans Total
ERiES R
BREHEz  AE-EE
£ e HeREd # MMEE e it
2015 “Z-3fF
Mr. Han Jingyuan () EWELE() 724 3,465 - - 15 4,204
Mr. Zhu Jun RELE 602 595 - - 15 1212
Mr. Shen Xiaoling HEREE 48 522 - - 15 955
Mr. Han Li BNkE 821 982 - - 15 1,818
Mr. Zhu Hao RELE 326 406 - - 15 746
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec &4
(re-appointed on (R=Z-1%5-At~A
16 January 2015) EBEZT) 312 - - - - 312
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis & 3R 72 325 - - - - 326
Mr. Wang Tianyi IRERE 325 - - - - 325
Mr. Zhou Guoping FETRE
resignedon 1 Aprl 2016)  (R=B—AEMA-AEF) 305 - - - - 305
4177 5,970 - - 75 10,222

(i) Mr. Han Jingyuan is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015. The emoluments of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company during the year are
approximately RMB 0.9 million (2015: RMB 1.0 million).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

) BEERELETSARBEFEHR

78 -

HE_Z—XER-_ZT—hHF+_A
=+—HIFE  HMEEEHREXR
EREEANE - FR - XAFTFARD
AMBMIERITEETHHESOARE
NVETL(ZE—RF: ARKE1008
JL) °

REBE-_Z—ARER-ZT-—AFT=
A=t —BULEFEFRIRZFEE
IS - ARBREP R ELANEE
BN EARARREEE RN ERE
BEARGZEEZR S  ZHHE
#]
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Five-year Financial Information & & & # & %l

A summary of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and of the AEFBHZAAEMBRFEENSHFIBEREK
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the RAGEE  AERIEES S ES
Group for the last five financial years is as set out below: FIEAR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss SRR

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1+-BLEE

Audited

REY
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE “T-RF —TmF —T-=F —T——F
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB'000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AR®TR) (AR¥TT) (AR%TR) (ARETT) (AR%TR)

Revenue A 26,427,443 21,071,538 28,495,498 32,516,937 36,122,358
Profit/(Loss) before BRETE LA
income tax ikl (ER) 1,054,948 (889,668) 245,080 249,341 326,056
Income tax expense Fi5HER (523,936) (46,349) (178,600) (186,313) (179,579)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEEF/(B8) 531,012 (936,017) 66,480 63,028 146,477
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: &%,/ (E518) RER :
Owners of ARRER
the Company FEE 722,127 (766,503) 66,715 101,609 126,062
Non-controling interests JEEl R (191,115) (169,514) (235) (38,581) 20,415
531,012 (936,017) 66,480 63,028 146,477
Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests SEHEE - AEHEIEEH R
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+-H
Audited
BEY
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RE “Z-A1F —E-mF —T—=F —Z2-CF
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AE¥TR) (AR®TRT) (ARETT) (ARETRT) (ARETT)
Total assets wEE 21,048,562 22,363,723 23,743,408 23,750,600 24,751,983
Total liabilties Bak (11,684,021)  (13451,561)  (13,971,562)  (14,039,698)  (15,196,967)
Non-controlling interests JEPRHI RS (108,443) (397,734) (514,789) (519,698) (513,247

9,256,098 8,614,428 9,257,067 9,191,204 9,041,769
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